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Vision
To position the province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading tourism destination nationally and internationally.

Mission
To initiate, facilitate, co-ordinate and implement

•	 Strategic	tourism	marketing;		and

•		 Demand-driven	tourism	development	programmes

 which grow tourism, thereby serving to achieve:

•		 The	transformation	of	the	tourism	sector	within	the	province;	and

•		 Provide	economic	benefits	to	all	stakeholders	and	the	province.

Objectives
•	 Increase	foreign	arrivals;

•	 Increase	share	of	domestic	visitors;

•	 Increase	tourism	expenditure	(spend);

•	 Reduce	foreign	seasonality;

•	 Increase	geographic	spread;

•	 Improve	destination	image	and	service	excellence;

•	 Responsible	and	demand-driven	tourism	development	and	accessibility;

•	 Strategic	leadership;

•	 Transformation;	and

•	 Enabling	the	environment.

Values
•	 We	value	the	contribution	of	our	people	by	recognising	their	performance	and	appreciating																																			

	 them	as	people;

•	 We	all	strive	for	superior	delivery	of	customer	service	both	internally	and	externally;

•	 We	are	committed	to	making	KwaZulu-Natal	the	top	destination	in	Africa;

•	 In	performing	our	duties,	we	will	trust	each	other	to	be	honest	and	reliable;

•	 In	all	our	dealings	we	will	act	with	integrity,	so	that	people	trust	us;

•	 Through	our	professionalism,	people	will	value	dealing	with	us;	and

•	 Team	spirit	is	what	will	make	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	a	great	place	to	work!
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Ours	 is	 a	province	blessed	with	 numerous	competitive	 and	

comparative	 advantages;	 advantages	which	 have	 seen	 the	

province	 re-affirm	 its	 undisputed	 status	 as	 South	 Africa’s	

domestic tourism leader

Michael Mabuyakhulu (MPP)
MEC	for	Economic	Development	and	Tourism
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BOUNTIFUL LEGACY
“With	the	World	Cup	behind	us,	we	must	now	ensure	that	we	capitalise	

on its bountiful legacy, riding the wave of momentum that the tournament 

and	the	attendant	exposure	created.”

Message from the MEC
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The	Province	of	KwaZulu-Natal	recognises	the	role	

played by the tourism industry in the global economy 

and,	 more	 importantly,	 its	 significance	 to	 South	

Africa	generally	and	KwaZulu-Natal	specifically.

KwaZulu-Natal is blessed with a stunningly beautiful 

and diverse natural environment, a wonderful year-

round climate, bountiful wildlife and a rich cultural 

heritage that is second to none. There can, therefore, 

be no doubt that KwaZulu-Natal is the jewel in our 

country’s tourism crown.

Ours	 is	 a	 province	 blessed	 with	 numerous	

competitive	 and	 comparative	 advantages;	

advantages	which	have	seen	the	province	re-affirm	

its	 undisputed	 status	 as	 South	 Africa’s	 domestic	

tourism leader, while emerging as a rapidly growing 

must-see destination for a discerning international 

market.

Indeed,	 our	 province’s	 international	 profile	 has	

been	 effectively	 raised	 to	 a	 new	 level	 in	 the	wake	

of our country’s most successful hosting of the 

FIFA	 World	 Cup	 football	 tournament	 –	 the	 single	

biggest	sporting	event	in	the	world	–	in	the	middle	

of	2010.	Football	 fans	 from	around	 the	globe,	 the	

vast	majority	of	whom	were	first-time	visitors	to	our	

shores, flooded into the country and the world’s 

media showcased the country and its numerous 

tourism attributes, beaming positive messages and 

images	 back	 to	 readers,	 listeners	 and	 viewers	 in	

their home countries, reaching millions of both sport 

and non-sport-minded people.

Staging	 the	 World	 Cup,	 albeit	 on	 the	 back	 of	 a	

recession	the	like	of	which	we	have	not	witnessed	

since	the	Great	Depression,	has	placed	South	Africa	

squarely	in	the	global	tourism	arena.

With	the	World	Cup	behind	us,	we	must	now	ensure	

that we capitalise on its bountiful legacy, riding the 

wave of momentum that the tournament and the 

attendant	exposure	created.

In	 this	 regard,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 the	 entity	

mandated	 by	 the	 Provincial	 Government	 to	

vigorously	market	KwaZulu-Natal	domestically	and	

internationally as a primary destination of choice, 

faces	 a	 daunting	 –	 though	 not	 insurmountable	

–	 challenge.	 The	 organisation	 must	 set	 out	 to	

positively	 exploit	 the	World	Cup	 legacy	 to	 the	 full,	

enticing ever-increasing numbers of tourists to enjoy 

the piece of paradise which is KwaZulu-Natal.

In	 line	 with	 a	 recent	 Cabinet	 decision,	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal	is	tasked	with	aligning	its	marketing	

initiatives and interventions with our national 

priorities. Through a national brand alignment 

initiative, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s business efforts 

become	an	integral	part	of	the	collective	and	unified	

promotion	 of	 South	 Africa	 as	 a	 justifiably	 world-

class tourist destination.

It	is	our	firm	belief	that	this	task	has	been	made	all	the	
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more	bearable	and	achievable	as	a	consequence	of	

the	launch	last	year	of	the	Dube	TradePort,	home	to	

the	new	and	ultra-modern	King	Shaka	International	

Airport, coupled with ongoing efforts to increasingly 

bring	on-stream	direct	travel	links	between	Durban	

and a range of international long-haul destinations.

There can be no doubt that direct access to our 

province will be a major tourist draw-card, further 

enhancing the tourism viability of KwaZulu-Natal.

We	have	the	appropriate	marketing	tools,	we	have	

the	 South	 African	 destination	 and	 we	 have	 the	

benefits	of	an	improving	world	economy.	Now	is	the	

time	to	re-affirm	our	commitment	to	the	promotion	

and development of the tourism sector in KwaZulu-

Natal.

This results-driven approach demands absolute 

dedication	 to	 the	 task	 at	 hand	 and	 in	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal we have no doubt that we have an 

organisation which is clearly up to the challenge.

Michael Mabuyakhulu (MPP)
MEC	for	Economic	Development	and	Tourism

K
w

aZ
ul

u-
N

at
al

 T
ou

ris
m

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

5



Our	 Board	 recognises	 and	 acknowledges	 the	 importance	

of	 good	 corporate	 governance	 practices	 in	 the	 workplace.

Accordingly, we willingly and actively embrace the best 

practice ideal.

Tholakele Dlamini
Chairperson
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CONVENTION BUREAU
“Of	strategic	importance	to	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	was	the	implementation	in	

the	2010/11	financial	year	of	a	new	partnership	venture,	the	Convention	Bureau,	

located	in	Durban	and	the	first	of	its	kind	in	South	Africa.”

Chairperson’s Foreword    
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Introduction
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s strategic positioning was 

consolidated	during	the	2010/11	financial	year	with	

the	continued	 roll-out	of	our	2008-2012	Provincial	

Tourism	Strategy	against	the	backdrop	of	the	2010	

FIFA	World	Cup,	a	time	when	the	eyes	of	the	world	

were upon us.

This was a strategically important period for the 

organisation which is charged with the responsibility 

of positioning KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading 

tourism destination.

It	 is	a	responsibility	the	organisation	does	not	take	

lightly and proved to be a responsibility made 

significantly	 more	 difficult	 as	 a	 result	 of	 the	 slow	

pace of economic recovery world-wide following the 

earlier global economic collapse, a collapse which 

had	potentially	 dire	 consequences	 for	 the	 tourism	

sector.

Fortunately, the strength of various relationships 

with	our	strategic	partners	and	the	 joint	marketing	

agreements we have in place, coupled with our 

global and local tourism trends intelligence and 

sound internal leadership provided the necessary 

stimulus	 for	 us	 to	 continue	 making	 significant	

inroads in our ongoing pursuit of the effective 

promotion, locally and abroad, of KwaZulu-Natal as 

a premier tourism destination.

Of	strategic	 importance	 to	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	

was	 the	 implementation	 in	 the	 2010/11	 financial	

year	 of	 a	 new	 partnership	 venture,	 the	 Durban	

KwaZulu-Natal Convention Bureau, located in 

Durban	and	the	first	of	its	kind	in	South	Africa.	The	

purpose behind the bureau is to vigorously identify 

business tourism opportunities and to provide the 

necessary support to bid for such events. 

Business tourism is an especially lucrative form of 

tourism for KwaZulu-Natal and it has been shown 

that	one	of	the	most	significant	determining	factors	

behind the success of business tourism destinations 

is	the	presence	of	such	dedicated	bureaux.	

An	additional	benefit	of	launching	such	a	facility	here	

is the strategic alliances it has created between 

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal,	the	ICC	Durban,	the	Durban	

Chamber	of	Commerce	and	Industry,	the	eThekwini	

Municipality	 and,	 of	 course,	 the	 Department	 of	

Economic	Development	and	Tourism,	relationships	

which will facilitate the improved co-ordination of 

tourism-related business activities between these 

like-minded	entities.	

2010/11 Performance
Our	 Board	 recognises	 and	 acknowledges	 the	

importance of good corporate governance practices 

in	the	workplace.

Accordingly, we willingly and actively embrace 

the best practice ideal. As a responsible business 

organisation	reporting	to	the	Provincial	Government	
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of KwaZulu-Natal, we remain acutely aware of our 

accountability to our shareholder, strategic alliance 

partners,	 tourism	 stakeholders	 and	 all	 those	 with	

whom we interact on a day-to-day basis.

We	 constantly	 strive	 to	 ensure	 integrity	 and	

transparency in each and every business activity, 

achieved through the process of continuously 

strengthening our governance policies and 

procedures, adhering stringently to the corporate 

governance ideal and building on the foundation laid 

in	the	previous	financial	year.

Our	 efforts	 have	 paid	 handsome	 dividends	 in	

this regard, as we comply with all legislative 

requirements.

We	 also	 remain	 committed	 to	 the	 furtherance	 of	

transformation	in	this	province’s	tourism	sector.	We	

regard the need for meaningful transformation as 

critical	and	work	tirelessly	towards	the	achievement	

of this objective.

There are encouraging signs that strategic 

interventions designed to accelerate the 

transformation process, providing for the inclusion 

of historically disadvantaged individuals, in this 

economic	 sector	 are	 bearing	 fruit.	We	 have	 been	

particularly heartened by the success of our own 

Small,	Medium	and	Micro	Enterprise	development	

programme, which has seen pleasingly increasing 

numbers of new entrants from historically 

disadvantaged	 backgrounds	 to	 the	 provincial	

tourism environment.

In	 addition,	 our	 incubation	 programme,	 together	

with the business information and advisory services 

we offer emerging entrepreneurs, have provided 

participants with the necessary business acumen, 

skills	and	confidence	to	begin	growing	their	business	

enterprises, setting out unassisted in the delivery of 

tourism	products	and	services	for	the	benefit	of	our	

visitors.

This, in turn, will give effect to the long-term 

sustainability of such businesses, while also 

broadening and diversifying the range of service 

providers available to tourists.

Going hand-in-hand with the introduction of new 

entrants to the tourism environment in KwaZulu-

Natal is the vital need for the delivery of service 

excellence	throughout	this	economic	sector.	

Historically,	 service	 levels	 in	South	Africa	generally	

have	been	regarded	as	an	issue	for	concern.	Whilst	

service delivery in any sector of the economy is 

necessarily important, service in the tourism sector 

simply cannot afford to be compromised if we are to 

be successful in portraying our destination as world-

class.

In	view	of	this,	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	maintains	a	

close focus on addressing the service issue. 

We,	 together	with	a	number	of	 strategic	partners,	

continue spearheading a series of programmes 

specifically	 aimed	 at	 instilling	 in	 all	 those	 involved	

in the tourism sector and, especially, those who 

interface	with	tourists,	a	keen	sense	of	pride	in	their	

work	and	a	commitment	to	making	service	delivery	

a lifestyle.

We	have	a	wonderful	destination	with	a	great	year-

round climate, we have a tremendous array of 

products… it is up to us all to ensure that we are 

able	 to	deliver	a	 top	quality	service	 to	our	visitors.	

A	 first-class	 experience	will	 contribute	 significantly	

in giving them a reason to become repeat visitors 

and they will also be more inclined to endorse our 

province to others, so becoming ambassadors for 

our destination.

With	 the	 hugely	 successful	 hosting	 of	 the	 FIFA	

Chairperson’s Foreword    
continued
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World	Cup	in	the	middle	of	2010,	we	have	created	

a superb service delivery platform, a platform 

off which we must now leverage further service 

enhancements	in	our	quest	to	take	KwaZulu-Natal’s	

tourism environment to a new level.

Importantly,	we	in	the	provincial	tourism	environment	

should	not	 regard	all	 the	hard	work	 that	went	 into	

preparing	for	the	World	Cup	as	the	end	of	the	job.	

On	 the	 contrary,	 we	 have	 barely	 scratched	 the	

surface. Far from resting on our laurels, now is the 

time for us to learn from the lessons the staging 

of	 the	 World	 Cup	 provided	 and	 to	 exploit	 every	

opportunity the event presented, capitalising on the 

world-wide	 exposure	 we	 attained	 and	 developing	

the new relationships we formed.

Now is the time to grow the tourism sector. Now 

is the time to consolidate our position on the world 

tourism stage.     

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal having risen to every 

challenge and overcoming every obstacle during 

an	eventful	and	most	successful	2010/11	financial	

year	–	as	evidenced	by	the	content	of	our	detailed	

Programme	Performance	Reports	contained	in	this	

Annual	 Report	 –	 is	 poised	 now	 to	 lead	 renewed	

endeavours	 to	 vigorously	 promote,	 market	 and	

develop our province’s tourism sector.

Going Forward
We	 therefore	 look	 forward	 to	 the	 future	 with	

confidence.

An improving economy both at home and around 

the world, together with the platform afforded to us 

through	the	exposure	South	Africa	and,	especially,	

KwaZulu-Natal enjoyed in the build-up to and during 

the	staging	of	the	World	Cup	event,	clearly	stands	

us in good stead.

We	 aim	 to	 seize	 every	 opportunity	 to	 further	

showcase KwaZulu-Natal’s attributes in the dogged 

pursuit of our vision.

We	 are	 intent	 on	 and	 dedicated	 to	 the	 task	 of	

achieving our long-term vision.

Appreciation
The	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 proved	 to	 be	 an	

impressively successful period in the history of 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.

I	am	pleased,	therefore,	to	take	this	opportunity	to	

thank	most	 sincerely	 the	provincial	 government	of	

KwaZulu-Natal	 and,	 more	 especially,	 Mr	 Michael	

Mabuyakhulu,	the	MEC	for	Economic	Development	

and	Tourism,	 for	 the	 confidence	he	has	displayed	

in	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 and	 its	 work	 and	 for	

the tremendous support he has provided the local 

tourism sector.

I	further	extend	my	grateful	thanks	to	each	and	every	

member of our Board for their sound leadership 

skills	and	business	acumen,	as	well	as	the	strategic	

direction they bring to Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.

Lastly,	 I	would	 like	 to	 thank	Mr	Ndabo	Khoza,	our	

Chief	Executive	Officer,	his	Executive	Management	

team and our dedicated members of staff for their 

absolute commitment to our cause, their passion 

for	 the	 task	at	hand	and	their	willingness	 to	assist	

in growing the KwaZulu-Natal economy through the 

effective promotion of the tourism sector here.

Rest	assured	that	our	continued	efforts	will	 impact	

positively on the lives of the people of KwaZulu-

Natal.

Tholakele Dlamini
Chairperson
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During	the	2010/11	financial	year,	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	Board	of	Directors	comprised	the

following members:

Ms T Dlamini
Chairperson

Ms N Freysen-Pretorius

Ms N Kheswa

Mr K Pretorius

Mr S Naidoo
Deputy	Chairperson
(Appointed	Deputy	Chairperson	
in	March	2011)

Mr Z Gwala

Ms S Maharaj

Ms NZ Qunta Dr AT Nzama
(Appointed	in	March	2011)

Mr N Khoza
Chief	Executive	Officer	(ex	officio)

Ms Y Bacus Dr SV Chonco
Deputy	Chairperson
(Resigned	on	31	May	2010)

Mr K Harie Mr T Mzileni
(Appointed	in	February	2011)

Mr S Mshengu Mr S Adam
(Appointed	in	February	2011)

Board of Directors
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Membership and Attendance: Board Meetings in 2010/11 

Board Meetings in 2010/11

Membership and Attendance: Committee Meetings in 2010/11

Marketing and Tourism Development Committee

Human Resource and Compensation Committee

Member 04 June 
2010

28 July
 2010
(Special 
Meeting)

10 
September 
2010

10 
December 
2010

28 
March 
2011

Ms	T	Dlamini	(Chairperson) A

Mr	S	Naidoo
(Deputy	Chairperson)

Ms	Y	Bacus A A

Ms	N	Freysen-Pretorius A A A A

Mr	Z	Gwala A

Mr	K	Harie A A

Ms	N	Kheswa M	L M	L A

Ms	S	Maharaj A A A

Mr	S	Mshengu

Mr	K	Pretorius A A

Ms	NZ	Qunta A

Dr	S	Chonco R R R R R

Member 16 April 
2010

16 July 
2010

28 July 
2010
(Special 
Meeting)

22 October 
2010

28 January 
2011

Mr	S	Naidoo	(Chairperson)

Dr	S	Chonco A R R R R

Ms	S	Maharaj

Mr	S	Mshengu A

Member 15 April 2010 15 July 2010 02 November 
2010

27 February 
2011

Ms	N	Freysen-Pretorius

Mr	K	Harie A A

Mr	K	Pretorius A A

	=		Attendance		 A	=		Apology	 									R	=		Resigned	 					M	L	=		Maternity	Leave	

	=		Attendance		 A	=		Apology	 									R	=		Resigned	

 =  Attendance  A =  Apology
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Given	 the	 global	 economic	 turmoil	 of	 2008	 and	 2009	 and	

attendant	 recession,	 South	 Africa’s	 hosting	 of	 the	World	Cup,	

coupled with the beginnings of economic recovery, provided our 

country	and	this	province’s	tourism	sector	with	a	tremendous	fillip.

Ndabo Khoza
Chief Executive Officer
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OPPORTUNITIES
“Our task was clear from the very outset – showcase 
KwaZulu-Natal to the world as a premier tourism destination 
– and the 2010/11 financial year saw us leverage every 
available opportunity.”

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
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Introduction
The	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 proved	 a	 remarkable,	

exciting	and	challenging	period	for	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal,	the	organisation	responsible	to	the	Provincial	

Government of KwaZulu-Natal for the promotion, 

development	 and	 marketing	 of	 tourism	 into	 and	

within	this	province.	 It	will	be	 long	remembered	as	

a	 remarkable	 time	by	both	our	 citizens	 and	 those	

more directly involved in the tourism sector.

It	 marked	 a	 critical	 milestone	 in	 our	 history	 –	 the	

first	 ever	 staging	 of	 the	 FIFA	 World	 Cup	 football	

tournament	 in	 Africa,	 South	 Africa	 and	 KwaZulu-

Natal.	Winning	the	bid	to	host	this	biggest	of	sporting	

occasions denoted the beginning of a marathon 

which	 ended	 in	 a	 sprint	 as	 we	 worked	 feverishly	

to ensure an absolute state of readiness ahead 

of	 the	 influx	 of	 fans,	 media	 and	 a	 range	 of	 other	

stakeholders	who	would	become	ambassadors	for	

destination	South	Africa	and,	especially,	destination	

KwaZulu-Natal.

Given	the	global	economic	turmoil	of	2008	and	2009	

and	 attendant	 recession,	 South	 Africa’s	 hosting	

of	 the	World	Cup,	coupled	with	 the	beginnings	of	

economic recovery, provided our country and this 

province’s	tourism	sector	with	a	tremendous	fillip.

Leveraging Tourism Opportunities 
off the World Cup
Our	task	was	clear	from	the	very	outset	–	showcase	

KwaZulu-Natal to the world as a premier tourism 

destination	–	and	the	2010/11	financial	year	saw	us	

leverage every available opportunity.

We	 consolidated	 our	 tourism	 promotional	 and	

marketing	 energies,	 focusing	 on,	 especially,	 the	

countries whose national teams’ games were to 

be	 played	 in	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 namely	 Switzerland,	

Spain,	 Nigeria,	 the	 Netherlands,	 Germany	 and	

Australia.	 We	 were	 fortunate,	 too,	 that	 the	 draw	

for	 games	 also	 exposed	 our	 province	 to	markets	

in	 Eastern	 Europe	 and	 Brazil.	 In	 addition,	 the	

Australian	 contingent	 opted	 to	make	Durban	 their	

base for the duration of the event. The challenge 

we	set	ourselves,	therefore,	was	to	create	extreme	

levels of awareness regarding our province and its 

attributes, while providing a high degree of comfort 

for the benefit	 of	 prospective	 visitors	 to	KwaZulu-

Natal.	In	essence,	the	advent	of	the	FIFA	World	Cup	

opened	 the	way	 for	 us	 to	 expand	 our	markets	 in	

the global arena and to secure a greater share of 

the	world	 tourism	market.	 However,	we	 remained	

cognisant of the fact that the tournament provided 

a very small window of opportunity to achieve our 

goals.

In	 setting	 out	 to	 source	 such	 new	 markets,	 we	

recognised the need to ensure that we did not dilute 

efforts	in	our	existing	core	markets.	Our	challenge,	

then,	was	to	maintain	the	fine	line	between	pursuing	

expansion	 of	 our	 tourism	 initiatives	 and	 ensuring	

the	continuation	of	flows	from	our	existing	markets.	

In	 this	 regard,	 I	 believe	 we	 found	 the	 necessary	
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balance, as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s overall results 

in	2010/11	proved	most	pleasing,	especially	coming	

on	 the	 back	 of	 negative	 sentiments	 associated	

with	 the	 earlier	 recession	 and	 subsequent	 slow	

economic recovery.

Based	on	our	initial	estimates,	the	World	Cup	visitor	

numbers	 for	 Durban	 far	 exceeded	 expectations,	

although, sadly, the length of stay by visitors proved 

shorter than had been hoped and this, in turn, 

threw	up	another	challenge,	 that	of	 selling	excess	

capacity.	In	this	regard,	mutual	support	between	the	

trade	and	our	organisation	ensured	that	this	worked	

well, given the importance of the June-July season 

at	the	coast.	As	a	result,	we	supported	the	Durban	

Chamber	 Tourism	Committee	 and	 FEDHASA	east	

coast	initiative,	launching	Durbanlastminute.com	to	

create	market	awareness	regarding	excess	capacity.	

Further to the level of investment in the tourism 

sector	ahead	of	the	World	Cup,	we	are	concerned	

about the negative impact of an over-supply 

of	 beds	 in	 the	 wake	 of	 this	 sporting	 event.	 We	

believe, however, that our province is in the 

advantageous position of being able to leverage 

off our traditionally high levels of domestic tourism, 

our year-round seasonality and competitive pricing 

within	 the	 domestic	 range.	 Indeed,	 such	 added	

capacity presents an opportunity for us to further 

grow domestic tourism inflows to KwaZulu-Natal. 

Accordingly	and	going	forward	in	a	post-World	Cup	

environment, we advocate a concerted domestic 

campaign, in partnership with the private sector, 

using	various	platforms	to	grow	the	market.					

Unquestionably,	 the	 successes	 associated	 with	

hosting	 the	 FIFA	 World	 Cup	 football	 tournament	

have far-reaching effects, not least of which was the 

fact that nationally and, particularly provincially, we 

effectively demonstrated to the world our ability to 

host	major	 events	here.	The	success	of	 the	2010	

World	Cup	essentially	gives	notice	of	 the	 fact	 that	

we are an aspiring destination in terms of bidding 

for	 major	 events	 going	 forward.	 Successful	 bids	

are	based	largely	on	credibility	and	a	proven	track-

record.	 We	 now	 have	 these	 credentials,	 together	

with determination and a prevailing spirit of co-

operation between the provinces in presenting a 

united promotional front.

It	is	our	intention	to	put	our	destination	squarely	on	

the	agenda	of	marketing	events	around	 the	world	

for long-term awareness creation. 

Demand-Driven Product 
Development
In	 order	 to	 keep	 pace	 with	 intense	 international	

competition for a share of the global tourism 

market,	it	is	necessary	to	constantly	look	to	product	

diversification	and	destination	development.	Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal recognises this fact and accordingly, 

acts to ensure that KwaZulu-Natal remains at the 

forefront of destination appeal.

We	continuously	strive	to	diversify	our	offerings	and	

to provide visitors with something new and novel.

The	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 saw	 our	 organisation	

leverage off the early stages of new tourist route 

development	 initiatives.	 It	 is	 evident	 that	 a	 lot	 of	

tourists	to	South	Africa,	as	a	long-haul	destination,	

expect	to	visit	more	than	just	one	part	of	the	country	

and it is, therefore, all the more important that the 

provinces co-operate with one another in order to 

link	routes.

Such	 co-operation,	 in	 the	 interests	 of	 expanding	

the	 tourist	experience,	 is	evidenced	with	 the	work	

being	done	on	the	Coastal	Route,	linking	the	famed	

Garden	 Route	 with	 Durban.	 Historically,	 much	 of	

the	Eastern	Cape	and	KwaZulu-Natal’s	south	coast	

were	excluded,	but	new	efforts	during	the	2010/11	

financial	year	have	resulted	in	the	inclusion	of	these	

areas,	 creating	 new	 and	 diverse	 experiences	 for	

visitors.

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
continued
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During	 the	 review	 period	 our	 organisation	 also	

assisted in the formulation of a Business and 

Implementation	 Plan	 for	 Route	 66,	 the	 Zululand	

Heritage	 Route.	 We	 worked	 with	 a	 number	 of	

stakeholders	 and	 strategic	partners	 in	 an	effort	 to	

fully	determine	the	extent	and	nature	of	the	proposed	

route,	 its	 infrastructure,	 signage	 and	 marketing	

requirements,	 as	 well	 as	 addressing	 development	

and funding necessities.

In	 addition,	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 saw	 our	

organisation integrally involved in initiating another 

new	 trail,	 Route	 22,	 the	 Elephant	 Coast	 Route,	

designed	 to	 provide	 a	 corridor	 linkage	 from	

the	 north	 coast	 of	 KwaZulu-Natal	 to	 Ponto	 Do	

Ouro	 in	 Mozambique	 and,	 ultimately	 (subject	 to	

infrastructure	development),	 to	 the	city	of	Maputo.	

We	partnered	with	 the	 iSimangaliso	Wetland	Park	

Authority	to	assist	in	driving	this	exciting	project.	We	

are	also	looking	into	how	best	to	include	Accessible	

Tourism in the development of this route. There 

exists	 a	 strong	 sense	 of	 commitment	 by	 all	 the	

stakeholders	 involved	 and,	 looking	 forward,	 this	

tourist	route	has	the	potential	to	prove	exceptional.

Efforts	 were	 also	 underway	 to	 develop	 the	 Sani	

Pass	Route	 in	 the	 Southern	Drakensberg	 in	 such	

a	way	 as	 to	make	 it	more	 accessible	 to	 all,	while	

establishing	 an	 improved	 link	 with	 the	 Mountain	

Kingdom	of	 Lesotho.	 Importantly,	 too,	 steps	were	

taken	 to	 improve	 access	 to	 the	 Freedom	 Route,	

which	 links	 Durban	 and	 Pietermaritzburg	 and	

provides	a	multi-perspective	view	of	the	dark	days	

of apartheid and life under that regime. The route 

was designed in such a way as to allow visitors 

interested in passive resistance the opportunity to 

discover	 the	 movement’s	 significant	 contribution	

in bringing about the downfall of apartheid in 

South	Africa.	

Cruise tourism proved to be another area with 

tremendous potential and was one on which we 

focused	 during	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year.	 The	

cruise industry is, contrary to popular belief, not the 

domain	 of	 the	 elite	 exclusively;	 cruise	 enthusiasts	

in fact cut across all income groups. This is a 

growth industry and an industry in search of new 

destinations.	With	 two	major	ports,	an	 idyllic	year-

round	 climate	 and	 a	 host	 of	 tourist	 experiences	

close at hand, we in KwaZulu-Natal enjoy a 

tremendous competitive advantage with regard to 

the advent of cruise tourism. Huge opportunities 

exist	for	cruise	visitors	and	tourism	service	providers	

alike.	Of	particular	significance	is	the	opportunity	for	

itinerary	expansion,	which	will	contribute	to	greater	

occupancy	 rates	 with	 cruise	 visitors	 –	 especially	

those	 from	 land-locked	 countries	 –	 spending	

time in the coastal regions of the province before 

and	 after	 cruises.	 As	 part	 of	 the	 Cruise	 Indian	

Ocean	 Association,	 we	 participated	 in	 Seatrade	

Mediterranean	and	Seatrade	Miami.	This	afforded	us	

the	opportunity	to	promote	the	 inaugural	Seatrade	

Africa	Cruise	Forum,	scheduled	to	take	place	in	May	

2011	and	the	first	of	the	kind	on	the	continent.	

We	were	particularly	excited	by	the	launch	of	the	

National	Cruise	Tourism	Strategy	in	Durban	by	the	

National	Minister	 of	 Tourism	 in	November	 2010.	

We	 also	 successfully	 attracted	 leading	 cruise	

operators during the review period for fruitful 

discussions	about	Africa	and	its	cruise	potential.	It	

is our intention now to establish relationships with 

strategic partners so as to be able to promote 

the cruise sector effectively and especially the 

attributes of KwaZulu-Natal’s port destinations. 

In	 terms	 of	 a	 cautionary	 note,	 we	 acknowledge	

the wide-felt concerns about piracy on the east 

coast of Africa, given the huge tourism potential 

this coastal belt has to offer.

Crucially,	 1	 May	 2010	 marked	 the	 official	

opening of the new and ultra-modern King 

Shaka	 International	 Airport.	 The	 new	 airport	

now constitutes a legacy project because it was 
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designed to cater for future passenger volumes, 

opening the door to effective forward tourism 

planning.	Infrastructure	upgrades, such as this, have 

placed Tourism KwaZulu-Natal in a great space 

for	marketing	our	province’s	vast	 range	of	 tourism	

products	 and	 available	 experiences	 in	 both	 the	

markets	we	traditionally	compete	for,	as	well	as	new	

markets.	In	this	regard,	Emirates	celebrated	its	first	

full	 year	 of	 operating	 its	 daily	 Durban-Dubai	 route	

in	 October	 2010.	 This	 route	 has	 achieved	 more	

than	70%	 load	 factors,	which	 is	most	 satisfactory	

for a newly-established route outside the main hub. 

We	 will	 endeavour	 to	 continue	 co-operating	 and	

supporting initiatives to grow passenger numbers 

on this route.

Convention Bureau to Benefit 
Business Tourism
During	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 an	 independent	

and dedicated Convention Bureau was established 

in	Durban	to	serve	the	city	and	province	in	a	quest	

to further develop and enhance KwaZulu-Natal’s 

business tourism potential.

This	venture,	a	partnership	between	the	Department	

of	 Economic	 Development	 and	 Tourism,	 the	

eThekwini	 Municipality,	 the	 ICC	 Durban	 and	 the	

Durban	Chamber	of	Commerce	and	 Industry,	was	

created	specifically	to	identify	and	support	bids	for	

the	hosting,	in	Durban	and	venues	around	KwaZulu-

Natal,	 of	 Meetings,	 Incentives,	 Conferences	 and	

Exhibitions	(MICE).		

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s contribution to the convention 

bureau ideal was the secondment to the bureau of our 

General	 Manager:	 Tourism	 Information	 Services,	 Mr	

James	Seymour,	as	Acting	Chief	Executive	Officer,	to	

drive the new enterprise’s activities. Launched in July 

2010,	the	venture	proved	immediately	successful	and	

during	the	next	several	years	we	aim	to	progressively	

improve	 our	 International	 Congress	 and	Convention	

Association	(ICCA)	ranking.

Strategic Partnerships and 
Alignment
Given the intense global competition for a share of 

the	tourism	market,	it	is	critical	that	KwaZulu-Natal	

is positioned competitively as a premier destination 

of choice.

Following the implementation of our sales strategy, 

we learned and came to understand the constraints 

which	 exist	 within	 the	 tourism	 value	 chain,	

constraints which impact negatively on the factors 

which	influence	competitiveness	levels.	We	utilised	

the review period to strengthen our relationships with 

the	 trade,	 inclusive	of	 the	Southern	Africa	Tourism	

Services	Association	(SATSA),	the	Southern	African	

Association	 for	 the	 Conference	 Industry	 (SAACI)	

and	 the	Board	of	Airline	Representatives	of	South	

Africa	(BARSA),	in	order	to	address	such	constraints	

and so better position KwaZulu-Natal for the future 

of tourism. Accordingly, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

supported their respective annual conferences 

which	were	held	in	the	province	during	the	financial	

year.	We	are	satisfied	that	such	support	went	a	long	

way towards strengthening our relationship with this 

organised business sector.

Whilst	each	body	is	singularly	important,	we	believe	

that the sum of the parts is greater than the whole 

in ensuring that no section of the value chain is 

excluded.	 We	 therefore	 remain	 committed	 to	 our	

strategy of establishing, developing and maintaining 

close and strong relationships with trade role-

players.

We	 have	 long	 enjoyed	 a	 close	 relationship	 with	

Emirates	 and	 during	 the	 review	 period	 took	 this	

to a new level with the joint launch of a global 

awareness	campaign.	We	also	retained	close	links	

with other airlines and engaged with them in terms 

of proposing a provincial initiative geared towards 

increased	direct	air	routes	into	Durban.	We	believe	

that a route development proposal, based on best 

Chief Executive Officer’s Report
continued
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practice, would be well received and would most 

certainly	 add	 significant	 value	 to	 KwaZulu-Natal’s	

competitiveness	 as	 an	 easily	 accessible,	 quality	

tourist destination.

Because we view tourism as a concurrent 

responsibility,	 we	 ensured	 our	 continued	 working	

relationship with national spheres of government 

and, particularly, our ongoing participation within 

various inter-governmental structures and ad hoc 

committees for the betterment of the tourism drive. 

It	 was	 symbolic,	 too,	 that	 the	 National	 Tourism	

Sector	 Strategy	 was	 launched	 by	 the	 National	

Minister	of	Tourism	during	March	2011	at	the	Inkosi	

Albert	 Luthuli	 Museum	 within	 the	 KwaDukuza	

Municipality.	Importantly,	we	also	continued	working	

extremely	 closely	with	bodies	within	 the	Provincial	

Government of KwaZulu-Natal.

Of	 particular	 significance	 during	 the	 2010/11	

financial	year	was	the	introduction	of	the	Provincial	

Tourism	 Master	 Plan	 development	 process,	

driven	 by	 the	 provincial	 Department	 of	 Economic	

Development	and	Tourism.

The	plan	is	an	exciting	prospect	and	will	ensure	overall	

alignment	in	the	pursuit	of	common	objectives.	In	line	

with	this	new	initiative,	our	2008-2012	strategy	is	set	

now	to	enter	its	final	financial	year.	We	have	remained	

extremely	focused	in	terms	of	its	implementation	and	

the	new	Provincial	Tourism	Master	Plan	will	allow	for	

the effective review of that strategy, inclusive of the 

interrogation	of	market	segmentation.

An important new relationship established during the 

review period saw our organisation and the Hotel 

Investment	 Conference	 Africa	 strike	 a	 three-year	

agreement.	This	event	will	be	staged	in	Durban	shortly	

before	 Africa’s	 biggest	 tourism-related	 exhibition,	

Tourism	 Indaba,	which	will	 continue	 being	 a	 feature	

of	the	city’s	exhibition	programme.	Key	to	the	linkage	

between these two events going forward is our ability 

now	 to	 look	 beyond	 products,	 scrutinising	 product	

competitiveness and product gaps in order that we 

work	 towards	 complimenting	 what	 we	 have	 and	

focus	on	expansion.	This	is	not	about	displacement,	

but rather the promotion of integration and industry 

knowledge-sharing.

National Brand Re-alignment 
Process
During	 the	 review	 period	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	

played	 an	 integral	 role	 in	 the	 National	 Brand	 Re-

alignment	Process,	which	was	first	initiated	in	2007	in	

an	effort	to	create	a	uniform	identity	for	South	Africa,	

ahead	 of	 the	 implementation	 phase	 in	 the	 2011/12	

financial	year.

The process has put us in the position of being able 

to	 leverage	 off	 South	 African	 Tourism	 marketing	

initiatives and to utilise the new identity on all our 

collateral,	thus	ensuring	that	our	provincial	marketing	

efforts	become	an	extension	of	national	 initiatives.	

Going	 forward,	 we	 are	 set	 to	 work	 with	 Trade	 &	

Investment	 KwaZulu-Natal	 to	 create	 widespread	

awareness of the new brand.

A	 	 further	 task	 we	 face	 is	 that	 of	 finalising	 our	

province’s	unique	selling	point	and	brand	positioning,	

in	 line	with	the	Provincial	Tourism	Master	Plan	and	

aligning this to our new tourism brand roll-out 

process.	Our	current	eight	very	distinct	sub-brands	

will	 be	 phased	 out	 and	 our	 marketing	 efforts	 will	

instead	 focus	 on	 tourism	 experiences	 throughout	

KwaZulu-Natal instead of being based on the 

geography of the province. 

Tourism Indaba
KwaZulu-Natal continued to play host to the Tourism 

Indaba,	the	biggest	tourism-related	trade	exhibition	

in	Africa,	this	being	the	22nd	time	since	its	inception	

in	 1979.	 Pleasingly,	 the	 bid	 to	 retain	 the	 hosting	

rights	–	compiled	jointly	by	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal,	

the	 ICC	Durban	and	Durban	Tourism	–	was	again	
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won,	thus	ensuring	that	the	Tourism	Indaba	will	be	

held	in	Durban	for	the	next	five	years.	

It	is,	of	course,	our	ambition	to	host	the	Tourism	

Indaba	 indefinitely,	 but	 our	 immediate	 concern	 is	

to concentrate on our portrayal of this event going 

forward in the short-term, ensuring that we remain 

focused on the need to bring buyers and sellers 

together.	 This	 is	 the	most	 significant	 event	on	 the	

South	 African	 tourism	 calendar	 and	 our	 winning	

the	 bid	 to	 host	 the	 event	 until	 2015	 affords	 us	 a	

marvellous	 opportunity	 to	 expand	 the	 exhibition,	

flanking	 it	 with	 additional	 events	 to	 draw	 more	

role-players	into	the	tourism	mix,	promoting	cross-

selling and encouraging increased participation by 

other	African	countries.	Our	aim	is	to	transform	the	

Tourism	Indaba	into	a	one-stop-shop	for	Africa.	

Appreciation
The success Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has achieved 

in furthering the promotion and development of 

tourism in this province would not have been 

possible without the support of a number of role-

players	who	have	a	passion	for	the	task	and	I	would,	

therefore,	 like	 to	 thank	 all	 our	 committed	 tourism	

sector	stakeholders.

I	 take	 this	 opportunity	 to	 thank	 Mr	 Michael	

Mabuyakhulu,	the	MEC	for	Economic	Development	

and Tourism, for his unswerving commitment to 

our tourism drive. His leadership, the time he has 

afforded us and the passion he displays is an 

inspiration to us all and we are most grateful for 

his visionary approach to tourism in this province. 

Equally,	 I	 must	 thank	 members	 of	 staff	 of	 the	

Department	of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism	

for their invaluable support of our organisation and 

its business activities. 

I	am	also	most	thankful	to	our	Board	Chairperson,	

Ms	Tholakele	Dlamini,	and	members	of	our	Board	

for their guidance and for the strategic direction 

they	have	given	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal.	In	addition,	

I	 would	 also	 like	 to	 welcome	 new	 members	 to	

our Board and to congratulate them on their 

appointment.	We	look	forward	to	their	contribution	

to ongoing tourism promotion in the months ahead.

Finally,	my	thanks	go	to	our	Executive	Management	

team and our members of staff for their commitment 

and	 dedication	 during	 an	 exceptionally	 busy,	

sometimes	 difficult	 and	 always	 exciting	 2010/11	

financial	year.

Rest	assured…	this	is	just	the	beginning!

Ndabo Khoza
Chief	Executive	Officer	
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During	the	2010/11	financial	year	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	Executive	Management	team	comprised

the following:

Mr N Khoza
Chief	Executive	Officer
y ChairpersonChairperson

Mr J Seymour
General	Manager:
Tourism	Information	Services
(Seconded	as	interim	Chief	Executive	
Officer	of	the	Durban	KwaZulu-Natal	
Convention	Bureau)

Mr T Mathibela
General	Manager:
Tourism	Developmenty 
Chairperson

Ms N Majozi
General	Manager:	Marketing
y Chairperson

Mr W Ngcobo
Chief	Financial	OfficerChairperson

Ms N Wasa
Chief	Operating	Officern

Ms L Dlamini
Manager:	Public	Relations	
and Communications
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Objectives
•	 To build a strong, integrated KwaZulu-Natal 

tourism	brand;

•	 To	defend	KwaZulu-Natal’s	domestic	market	

share;

•	 To	grow	international	arrivals;

•	 To grow KwaZulu-Natal’s business tourism 

in	partnership	with	Durban	Tourism	and	the	

ICC	Durban;

•	 To create brand alignment and synergy with 

sub-brands;	and

•	 To strengthen trade relations with trade 

partners.

Key Performance Areas
•	 Brand	and	leisure	marketing;

•	 International	marketing;

•	 Trade	marketing;

•	 Business	tourism;

•	 Events	marketing;

•	 2010	FIFA	World	Cup;

•	 Indaba;	and

•	 Group tourism support.

General Manager’s Overview
The	 role	 of	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal’s	 Marketing	

Division	is	to	promote	KwaZulu-Natal	as	a	destination	

of choice domestically and internationally in order to 

expand	 this	province’s	market	share	of	 the	overall	

tourism sector.

In	 this	 regard,	 the	 division	 enjoyed	 high	 levels	

of	 success	 during	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year,	

capitalising	–	in	particular	–	on	two	critical	areas	of	

focus,	namely	the	provincial	impact	of	the	2010	FIFA	

World	Cup	tournament	staged	in	South	Africa	and	

the	 broadening	 of	 the	 African	market,	 inclusive	 of	

the	South	African	hinterland,	SADC	countries,	East	

and	West	Africa	and	the	Indian	Ocean	islands.

Importantly,	 too,	 we	 continued	 implementing	 our	

successful	 Sales	Growth	 Strategy	 and	 formalising	

relationships	 with	 key	 trade	 partners	 to	 further	

enhance	our	destination	marketing	efforts.

In	 an	 historic	 move,	 we	 undertook	 intensive	

development	 work	 designed	 to	 give	 effect	 to	 an	

important change for the destination brand, leading 

to our Zulu Kingdom brand being aligned with that of 

South	African	Tourism,	so	providing	the	foundation	

for	 the	unification	of	 tourism	marketing	throughout	

South	 Africa.	 During	 this	 complex	 process	 our	

organisation	 embarked	 on	 an	 insight	 activator	

process	geared	 to	determining	 key	drivers	behind	

holiday	destination	choices.	This	exercise	provided	

definitive	 information	 about	 such	 aspects	 as	 our	

competitive	environment,	 the	 target	market,	brand	

insight,	benefits	and	 the	 values	and	personality	of	

the brand, amongst others. From this emerged the 

true essence of destination KwaZulu-Natal and the 

key	differentiator.
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In an historic move, we undertook intensive development work designed to give effect to an 
important change for the destination brand, leading to our Zulu Kingdom brand being aligned to 
that of South African Tourism.

Performance Information
Marketing
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Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has for many years been a 

leading light behind the long-running annual Tourism 

Indaba,	 the	 biggest	 tourism-related	 exhibition	 in	

Africa	and	the	third	most-attended	tourism	exhibition	

in	the	world.	The	2010	staging	of	the	event	at	the	

Inkosi	 Albert	 Luthuli	 ICC	Complex	 in	 Durban	was	

all	 the	more	significant	 for	 the	announcement	 that	

KwaZulu-Natal had won its bid to host the Tourism 

Indaba	for	the	next	five	years,	from	2011	to	2015,	

continuing	 our	 22-year	 dominance	 of	 staging	 this	

prestigious	tourism	exhibition.

The	year	2010	was	also	especially	 important	as	 it	

marked	 the	 historic	 staging	 in	South	Africa	 of	 the	

FIFA	World	Cup	football	tournament	–	a	first	for	the	

African continent. Accordingly, we concentrated 

close	 attention	 on	 and	 worked	 tirelessly	 towards	

ensuring the absolute readiness of trade 

organisations,	the	city	of	Durban	and	the	KwaZulu-

Natal destination overall in the critical build-up 

period	ahead	of	the	mid-2010	staging	of	the	football	

spectacle followed by billions around the world.

We,	 of	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 were	 particularly	

aware of the need to guarantee the delivery of 

every aspect of tourism-related activities to the 

satisfaction of members of an international audience 

set to flood into our province, the majority of whom 

were	first-time	visitors	to	South	Africa	and	KwaZulu-

Natal. The successful staging of this major sporting 

event, particularly as it impacted on KwaZulu-Natal, 

is testimony to our collective efforts in this regard.

The review period also provided an ideal opportunity 

to	launch	a	concerted	campaign	designed	to	market	

KwaZulu-Natal in Africa and on the islands of the 

Indian	Ocean.

A range of media-types and trade representatives 

from	 the	 SADC	 region	 were	 hosted	 by	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal, showcasing the beach and 

shopping	 experience	 which	 KwaZulu-Natal	 offers	

to,	 particularly,	 land-locked	 countries.	 One	 group	

visited	 from	 Botswana,	 while	 another	 13-strong	

media and trade team was drawn from Angola, 

Swaziland,	 Zimbabwe,	 Zambia,	 Mozambique	 and	

Botswana.	 Our	 organisation’s	 intention	 was	 to	

expose	 this	African	media	 team	 to	 the	diversity	of	

experiences	KwaZulu-Natal	has	to	offer.	Pleasingly,	

the results of our efforts were immediately rewarded, 

with trade representatives introducing tourists to 

KwaZulu-Natal	from	these	new	markets.

With	 regard	 to	 the	 Indian	 Ocean	 islands,	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal developed a strategic relationship 

with	Air	Mauritius	 –	 the	 first	 international	 airline	 to	

fly	directly	into	Durban.	This	relationship	is	regarded	

as	 critical	 as	 we	 believe	 that	 potential	 exists	 for	

improved passenger numbers and an increased 

frequency	in	flights	going	forward.

Our	 new	 destination	 marketing	 efforts	 during	

the	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 did	 not	 preclude	 us	

from continuing to pay attention to our traditional 

core	 long-haul	markets,	 inclusive	 of	 our	 top	 three	

source	 markets	 in	 terms	 of	 arrivals,	 being	 the	

United	 Kingdom,	Germany	 and	 the	 United	 States	

of	America	respectively.	For	the	first	time,	the	United	

States	of	America	outstripped	Germany	to	become	

this	province’s	second	biggest	source	market.				

A	 key	 element	 of	 our	 core	 market	 endeavours	

included	participating	 in	 the	opening	 in	May	2010	

of	 the	 King	 Shaka	 Zulu	 Venue,	 situated	 in	 central	

London, in the United Kingdom. The venue proved 

ideal for the promotion of African events, including 

the	 World	 Cup	 football	 tournament.	 His	 Majesty,	

King	Goodwill	Zwelithini,	was	a	member	of	the	South	

African delegation which attended the launch of the 

restaurant.	AMG,	which	is	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	

United	 Kingdom-based	 General	 Sales	 Agency	

(GSA)	has	actively	engaged	with	the	venue	owners	

to	 further	maximise	 destination	 awareness	 on	 our	

organisation’s behalf since the launch function.

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Performance Highlights
Brand Alignment: 

In	line	with	the	South	African	Tourism	brand	alignment	

initiative, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal commissioned a 

team to lead the Zulu Kingdom brand alignment to 

that	of	South	African	Tourism.	

The primary purpose of the brand alignment process 

was to achieve a co-ordinated and integrated brand 

message across all government departments and 

parastatal organisations responsible for international 

marketing	activities.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, in conjunction with Trade 

&	 Investment	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 completed	 the	

process	of	refining	the	Zulu	Kingdom	brand	and	its	

positioning.

Through the insight activator process a brand 

key	 was	 developed	 and	 it	 became	 clear	 that	 the	

differentiator was the ‘Zulu-ness’ and the essence 

of the brand was the ‘warmth’ of the province.

Key words associated with KwaZulu-Natal were 

found to include warmth, heritage, Zulu, family-

orientated, fun, adventure and beaches. 

Africa, Asia and Australia:

Domestic Marketing - 

In	our	ongoing	efforts	to	defend	and,	indeed,	grow	

our	 domestic	 market	 share,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-

Natal participated in four domestic shows during 

the	2010/11	financial	year.	During	the	Beeld	Show	

our	organisation,	in	partnership	with	Ezemvelo	KZN	

Wildlife,	undertook	on-stand	activation	and,	for	the	

first	 time,	 implemented	 an	 online	 campaign	 with	

Kaya	FM	to	promote	the	2010	summer	holidays	in	

KwaZulu-Natal.

In	 an	 effort	 to	 grow	Business	 Tourism,	 as	well	 as	

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal trade in business tourism, 

our	organisation	also	participated	in	Meetings	Africa	

during	the	review	period,	with	16	business	tourism	

enterprises participating in the KwaZulu-Natal pavilion, 

an achievement indicative of the tremendous 

commitment KwaZulu-Natal trade has to ensure 

growth	in	the	business	tourism	sub-sector.	In	line	with	

our	2010/11	action	plan	which	re-focused	Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal promotions towards Africa and the 

Indian	Ocean	 islands.	 Our	 organisation	 embarked	

on an aggressive promotion in Zimbabwe, Nigeria, 

Angola,	Mauritius	and	Botswana.	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal set out to establish trade partnerships and to 

assert	itself	within	the	African	market.		

Zimbabwe – Sanganai Travel and Tourism

Africa Expo:

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	participated	in	the	Sanganai	

Travel	 and	Tourism	Africa	Expo,	which	 took	place	

in	October	 2010	 in	Harare,	 Zimbabwe.	 The	 event	

was regarded as an ideal tool to target, educate 

and	entice	SADC	and	other	African	markets	which,	

according	to	statistics,	contribute	in	excess	of	65%	

to	the	total	annual	arrivals	in	South	Africa.	

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 shared	 an	 exhibition	

stand	 with	 Durban	 Tourism,	 who	 sold	 the	 beach	

experience	–	taking	advantage	of	Zimbabwe	being	

land-locked.	 A	 conference	 was	 held	 concurrently	

with	the	exhibition	during	which	a	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal participant delivered a paper.

Nigeria – Trade Workshop and Consumer 

Activation:  

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in a trade 

workshop	 and	 consumer	 activation	 exercise	 in	

Lagos,	Nigeria	during	the	2010/11	financial	year.	

KwaZulu-Natal was ably represented by Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal,	the	ICC		Durban,	African	Link	Tours	

and	 Umhlanga	 Explorer.	 The	 workshop	 afforded	

our organisation a platform to engage and forge 

links	 with	 tour	 operators,	 as	 well	 as	 to	 educate	

consumers about destination KwaZulu-Natal and 
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its	diverse	range	of	experiences.	

Angola Trade Workshop: 

A	 recent	 South	 African	 Tourism	 portfolio	 review	

indicated that Angola had emerged as a core 

market	 in	 Africa,	 based	 on	 arrivals,	 the	 highest	

average	spend	for	South	Africa	and	good	airlift	from	

that	 market.	 Further	 interest	 in	 KwaZulu-Natal	 by	

the	Angolan	market	is	likely	to	be	achieved	through	

a	Memorandum	of	Agreement	signed	between	the	

Benguela and KwaZulu-Natal provinces, which will 

see	 the	 two	 embarking	 on	 business	 exchanges	

across	 various	 industries.	 It	 was,	 therefore,	 fitting	

that	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	participated	in	a	South	

African	 Tourism	 workshop	 and	 trade	 dinner	 in	

Luanda, Angola, during the review period. KwaZulu-

Natal was represented by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

and	Umhlanga	Explorer.

Mauritius Familiarisation Trip:

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal hosted a delegation of 

tourism	trade	representatives	from	Mauritius	during	

the	2010/11	 financial	 year.	 	 The	 familiarisation	 trip	

was	 organised	 in	 partnership	with	 Air	Mauritius	 in	

line with discussions held and agreements made 

during	 the	 2010	 Tourism	 Indaba.	 The	 trip	 was	

modelled on an itinerary based on the interests from 

Mauritian	 tourism	 consumers,	 especially	 covering	

wildlife and scenery.  The trip concluded with a half-

day	workshop	in	which	selected	and	relevant	trade	

enterprises from KwaZulu-Natal participated and 

delivered presentations about their products.

Botswana: 

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal,	together	with	a	key	partner,	

hosted media from Botswana, including both print 

and	 radio	 media	 representatives,	 for	 a	 weekend	

in	 Durban.	 The	 purpose	 of	 the	 trip	was	 for	 these	

media	 representatives	 to	 sample	 first-hand	 the	

Zulu	 Kingdom’s	 beach	 and	 shopping	 experience	

and	 to	 subsequently	 generate	 awareness	 about	

these	experiences	 for	 the	benefit	of	 the	market	 in	

Botswana.	As	a	 result,	 special	Durban	beach	and	

shopping	packages	were	marketed	to	the	Botswana	

travel	market	for	the	December	2010	holidays.

Middle East:

In	 a	 move	 designed	 to	 assist	 in	 cementing	 the	

relationship between KwaZulu-Natal and the United 

Arab	Emirates,	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	participated	

in	 the	 launch	 of	 the	 Emirates	 Holidays	 Brochure.	

KwaZulu-Natal features in the brochures as a new 

destination. Tourism KwaZulu-Natal sponsored 

a luncheon function as a means of improving 

destination awareness, including a demonstration 

of traditional Zulu dancing to leave guests with a 

memorable	experience.

United Kingdom and the United States of 

America: 

USA Trade Activity - 

In	 a	 bid	 to	 ensure	 growth	 in	 visitor	 numbers	 and	

to strengthen destination awareness for trade and 

consumers, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in 

a	series	of	events	during	the	course	of	the	2010/11	

financial	year.	

During	 September	 2010,	 the	 SAT	 US	 country	

manager was hosted in KwaZulu-Natal to familiarise 

her with the province’s offerings and to ensure that 

KwaZulu-Natal was featured on a BBC documentary.

Leading	up	to	2011	Meetings	Africa,	the	UK	and	US	

regional	team	hosted	the	SAT	US	Business	Tourism	

Manager	in	KwaZulu-Natal	in	order	to	expose	her	to	

incentive products within the province which best 

showcase the environment and culture. 

 

In	 addition,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 attended	 the	

New	York	Times	Show,	which	 included	both	trade	

and consumer interactions. A team of Zulu dancers, 

brought by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal provided for 

consumer and brand awareness activation. The 

group	enjoyed	a	high-profile	at	the	show,	a	distinct	

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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advantage for KwaZulu-Natal as the dancers 

attracted	 consumers	 to	 the	 exhibition	 stand.	 The	

dancers were twice invited to perform on the main 

stage, the effect of which was to further raise 

awareness	of	South	Africa	generally	and	KwaZulu-

Natal	specifically.	Video	footage	of	the	performance	

was	 televised	 during	 prime	 time	 on	 New	 York	

TV,	 further	 boosting	 consumer	 awareness	 of	 our	

province.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal also became a member 

of	 the	Association	 for	Promoting	Tourism	 to	Africa	

(APTA).	Our	organisation	attended	the	APTA	Annual	

General	Meeting	and	was	afforded	the	opportunity	

to present a paper while the Zulu dancers were 

again given a platform to perform, further raising 

awareness about KwaZulu-Natal. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal engaged in the following 

activities	in	the	United	States	of	America:	

•	 SAA	and	On	Show	four	cities	workshops,	which	

	 took	place	in	New	York,	Dallas,	Los	Angeles	and	

	 San	Francisco;		

•	 SAT	 US	 co-ordinated	 trade	 sales	 calls,	 giving	

	 Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	useful	first-hand

	 experience	regarding	the	market	and	trade	

	 expectations;		

•	 The	Goway	40th	anniversary	brochure	launch		

	 event	and	its	agents’	workshops.	Goway	is	

	 seen	to	be	the	key	strategic	partner	for	

	 penetrating	the	Canadian	market;	and	

•	 The	Motivation	Show	(IT	and	ME)	was	

	 resuscitated	by	South	African	Tourism,	

	 boosting	business	tourism	from	the	US	market.

United Kingdom Trade Activity -

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 participated	 in	 the	 ECCO	

tours	 academy,	 which	 occurs	 annually	 in	 South	

Africa.	ECCO	Tours	is	a	full-service	ground	operator	

associated with several large United Kingdom-

based	 tour	 operators.	 During	 the	 review	 period	

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 hosted	 some	 70%	 of	 the	

ECCO	 tours	 agents	 in	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 exposing	

them to highly successful tours within the province.

 

World Travel Market 2010 -

The	 World	 Travel	 Market	 (WTM)	 was	 staged	 in	

November	 2010	 and	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 was	

represented. The United Kingdom is KwaZulu-

Natal’s	 and	 South	 Africa’s	 key	 source	 market,	

ranking	 first	 on	 the	 arrivals	 list.	 This	 has	 resulted	

in the need for Tourism KwaZulu-Natal to ensure 

a	 significant	 presence	 and	 visibility	 in	 the	 United	

Kingdom	 market,	 as	 well	 as	 developing	 strong,	

close	working	relationships	with	SAT	UK,	AMG	the	

GSA	 representing	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 in	 the	

United Kingdom and local trade in that country. 

Accordingly, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal joined the 

South	African	Tour	Operator	Association	 (SATOA).	

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 sponsored	 the	 SATOA	

networking	event	which	took	place	at	South	Africa	

House.	 Our	 organisation	 also	 attended	 two	 trade	

workshops	pre-WTM.	One	was	organised	by	South	

African	Tourism	UK	and	 the	other	by	ECCO	Tours	

–	strategic	trade	partner	to	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal.	

The	purpose	of	the	workshops	was	to	educate	travel	

agencies	about	the	destination	and	seek	feedback	

regarding	the	type	of	enquiries	such	agents	receive.

Royal Ballet and Ladysmith Black Mambazo -

As a result of our organisation’s ongoing partnership 

with	 ECCO	 Tours	 UK,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	

assisted	 with	 the	 hosting	 in	 2010	 of	 a	 UK-based	

team of choreographers and ballet dancers from 

the	 London	 Royal	 Opera	 House,	 who	 visited	

KwaZulu-Natal	to	work	on	a	joint	project	with	Zulu	

dancers	and	Ladysmith	Black	Mambazo.	The	team	

was	 exposed	 to	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 visiting	 Duma	

Manzi	 for	 a	 traditional	 Zulu	 cultural	 experience,	

Claremont	 Township	 to	 meet	 with	 Mr	 Joseph	

Shabalala	 of	 Ladysmith	 Black	 Mambazo	 and,	 for	

a	recording	session,	went	to	KZN	Music	House.	A	

further session was held to teach the ballet dancers 
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some	 Zulu	 dance	 moves,	 while	 Ladysmith	 Black	

Mambazo	performed	for	the	group	with	the	purpose	

of creating a fusion of ballet and Zulu dance. The 

experience	was	captured	on	film	and	vignettes	were	

to be created for usage in performances by the 

ballet dancers.  

As	 a	 follow-up,	 Ladysmith	 Black	Mambazo	 is	 set	

to	 visit	 London	 early	 in	 the	 next	 financial	 year	 for	

a launch event to showcase the recordings from 

South	Africa	and	to	meet	 the	creative	 team	which	

visited	South	Africa.

Europe:

German Trade Activity -

Best of Travel Group, which is a Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal	 Joint	 Marketing	 Agreement	 (JMA)	 partner	

based	 in	 Germany,	 hosted	 a	 weekend	 seminar	

for	50	top	sellers	during	the	review	period	to	 learn	

about new products.

Best	of	Travel	Group	also	confirmed	a	familiarisation	

tour to KwaZulu-Natal by four consultants. The 

group	spent	five	days	in	KwaZulu-Natal.	

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	partnered	with	SWR3	 in	 a	

joint	 Mega	 Kick	 Radio	 campaign,	 in	 collaboration	

with	South	African	Tourism.	 This	 top	 radio	 station	

reaches	3,8	million	 listeners	every	day.	The	media	

return on investment achieved through this 

partnership	amounted	to	some	35	million	Euros.

In	 addition,	 Tourlink	 worked	 closely	 with	 Emirates	

Germany	 to	 bring	 top	 MICE	 buyers	 to	 KwaZulu-

Natal	for	educational	tours	at	the	end	of	2010.	

Switzerland Trade Activity -

Following lengthy negotiations between Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal	 and	 KnechtReisen,	 the	 leading	

tour	operator	in	Switzerland,	the	two	organisations	

entered	 into	 a	 Joint	 Marketing	 Agreement	 (JMA).	

One	of	the	resultant	key	deliverables	was	the	hosting	

of	 its	 2010	 Knecht	 Reisen	 Edutainment	 event	 in	

KwaZulu-Natal.

The company annually selects a destination in 

which	 to	 hold	 this	 edutainment	 event.	 The	 2010	

event	marked	the	first	occasion	the	event	has	been	

held	 on	 South	 African	 soil.	 As	 many	 as	 80	 top-

performing agents were hosted in this province, 

attending	workshops	and	educationals.

Nine	KwaZulu-Natal	products	were	exhibited	at	the	

edutainment event.

By	way	of	confirmation	that	KwaZulu-Natal’s	efforts	

in	 this	 regard	 were	 recognised	 in	 the	 market,	

the region received an award for being the best 

province, presenting the best outdoor and best 

nature	offerings.	The	award	was	presented	by	Süd	

Afrika	Magazien.	

Sweden Trade Activity -

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 has	 in	 place	 a	 JMA	 with	

Sydafrikaresor,	 a	 tour	 operator	 based	 in	 Sweden.	

In	 terms	 of	 this	 agreement,	 the	 company	 staged	

the	 final	 of	 its	 annual	 Svenk	 Golf	 Tournament	 in	

KwaZulu-Natal. This amateur golf tournament 

is	 held	 annually	 in	 Sweden	 and	 the	 2010	 finalists	

travelled	 to	 KwaZulu-Natal	 to	 contest	 the	 finals,	

thereby	successfully	exposing	the	province’s	world-

class	golf	courses	to	the	Scandinavian	market.

France Trade Activity -

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 attended	 TOPRESA,	

the leading international business-to-business 

exhibition	for	the	French	travel	market.		

Tourism Indaba: 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal participated in the Tourism 

Indaba	 2010,	 staged	 in	 May	 at	 the	 Inkosi	 Albert	

Luthuli	 ICC	Complex,	 Durban.	 In	 addition	 to	 one-

on-one	meetings	with	tourism	trade	and	buyers,	key	

event highlights included:

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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•	 The	inaugural	KwaZulu-Natal	Wine	and	Dine	

	 exhibition,	in	partnership	with	the	Department	of	

	 Arts,	Culture	and	Sports;

•	 The	launch	of	the	World	Health	Tourism		 	

Congress;	and

•	 The	launch	of	the	Afri-Portico	brand	for	emerging	

	 Black	Economic	Empowerment	tourism	

 enterprises in KwaZulu-Natal.

A particular highlight was, of course, the 

announcement that Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, in 

partnership	 with	 Durban	 Tourism	 and	 the	 ICC	

Durban,	had	won	the	bid	to	host	the	Tourism	Indaba	

for	the	next	five	years,	from	2011	to	2015.

Division Performance:

The	Marketing	Division	achieved	all	targets	detailed	

in the action plan. 
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Africa, Asia 
and Australasia

To create KZN 
destination brand 
in alignment with 
the	South	Africa	
brand

Re-launch	the	
KwaZulu-Natal 
destination brand

Brand alignment 
between 
national, 
provincial and 
destination 
brands

June	2010 •	To	effect	the	brand	
alignment,	a	workshop	to	
develop a Brand Key for the 
Province	was	undertaken	
in	June	2010	by	Tourism	
KwaZulu-Natal	and	Trade	&	
Investment	KwaZulu-Natal.	
This led to the development 
of a KwaZulu-Natal brand 
which integrates and co-
ordinates messages across 
all provincial departments and 
parastatals.	Subsequently	
a new pay-off line which re-
aligns to the national brand, 
while re-inforcing KwaZulu-
Natal’s brand promise was 
developed. The approval by 
the KwaZulu-Natal Cabinet 
took	place	in	February	
2011	and	the	Brand	launch	
was	scheduled	to	take	
place	at	the	2011	Tourism	
Indaba	by	MEC	Mr	Michael	
Mabuyakhulu.

To increase 
brand awareness

Creation of a 
campaign which 
has a call to 
action

Brand	marketing	
campaign 
through above-
the-line and 
below-the-Line 
platforms

Year-round	
presence on 
the website and 
packages

•	Online	packages	with	a	
‘call to action’ element were 
implemented through the 
following initiatives: 
-	Joint	Marketing	
relationships which Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal entered into 
with Thompson’s Tours and 
African	Link	Tours.
- A radio campaign which 
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 
entered into with Kaya 
FM,	inclusive	of	online	and	
on-air elements, and which 
culminated in each of two 
listeners winning holidays for 
two in KwaZulu-Natal. The 
aim of the campaign was to 
create destination awareness 
and to encourage travel 
to KwaZulu-Natal during 
December	2010.	

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To grow arrivals 
from Africa, Asia, 
Australasia

Profile	
destination via 
trade	exhibitions	
and	workshops

Level of 
awareness 
generated and 
itinerary listing by 
tour operators

Participation	in	
approved shows

•	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	
participated in the following 
domestic consumer 
exhibitions:
-	DSTV	Getaway	show;
-	Soweto	Festival;
-	Cape	Destination	Expo;			
  and
-	Beeld	Holiday	Show	and		
  Cape Town gateway.
•	To	amplify	level	of	
awareness at these shows 
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 
explored	various	initiatives,	
such	as	linking	with	uKhozi	
FM	for	a	live	broadcast	and	
selling	tailor-made	packages	
at the stand, in collaboration 
with Thompsons Tours.

To increase 
brand awareness

Increase	
knowledge	
of destination 
by trade and 
consumer

Marketing	
material 
and training 
opportunities

Quarterly	fam	
trips and training 
opportunities

•	To	increase	knowledge	
of destination, Tourism 
KwaZulu-Natal hosted the 
following fam trips and 
workshops	during	the	period	
under review:
-	13	members	of	the	media	
and trade [tour operators and 
travel representatives] from 
SADC	between	29	July	and	2	
August	2010;
-	10	members	of	the	tourism	
trade	from	Mauritius,	
in conjunction with Air 
Mauritius,	between	23	and	
28	November;	
- 4 media [print and radio] 
from Botswana for a 
weekend	in	Durban	between	
19	and	21	November,	with	
the long-term view of selling 
KwaZulu-Natal as a beach 
destination to consumers in 
Botswana.
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
partners

Implementation	
of domestic 
Joint	Marketing	
Agreements 
co-operative 
initiatives

Activities done 
with trade 
partners

Number of trade 
activities

	•	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	
concluded and implemented 
two	JMAs	during	this	period:
-	One	with	Thompson’s	
Tours, focusing primarily on 
the	domestic	market;	and
-	One	with	African	Link	Tours,	
which focused primarily on 
selling KwaZulu-Natal to 
SADC	countries	through	
sporting events.

To grow KZN’s 
business 
tourism through 
partnership with 
Durban	Africa	
and	ICC

Profile	KwaZulu-
Natal as a 
business tourism 
destination

Number of bids 
won and events 
hosted.
Support	for	
events and bids

Success	on	
events hosted

•		TKZN,	together	with	the	
ICC	Durban,	Durban	Africa	
and	eThekwini	Municipality,	
supported the establishment 
of	the	Durban-KZN	
Convention Bureau. TKZN 
assisted	in	securing	10	bids	
during	the	review	period.	In	
support of the KZN business 
events sub-sector, event data 
was collated, enabling the 
city	to	move	from	an	ICCA	
ranking	of	231	(2009/10)	to	
178	(2010/11).
•		TKZN	supported	the	
SAACI	conference	held	
in KZN, by hosting a 
leading	industry	expert	and	
Executive	of	ICCA	from	
the	award-winning	Vienna	
Convention Bureau to 
conduct an industry lecture 
on building Business Tourism 
and running a successful 
convention bureau.
•		TKZN	participated	at	the	
annual Business Tourism 
Exhibition,	Meetings	Africa,	
in Johannesburg in February 
2011	with	16	KZN	products	
and following this, TKZN 
hosted international buyers 
to educate them about KZN’s 
business tourism offerings.
•		TKZN	Supported	the	SITE	
Conference which specialises 
in incentive travel by 
attending and co-sponsoring 
the event between 4 and 
7	December,	as	well	as	by	
hosting post-tours to educate 
delegates on KZN.

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Hosting of 
Tourism	Indaba

Position	
KwaZulu-Natal 
as	an	Indaba	
destination

Execution	of	all	
Indaba	elements

Successful	
Indaba	2010

•	TKZN,	in	partnership	with	
Durban	as	a	2010	World	
Cup Host City, hosted a 
successful	Tourism	Indaba	
with a football theme in 
support of the national 
initiative.
In	enhancing	the	business	
tourism	value	of	Indaba	to	
delegates, TKZN launched 
the	World	Health	Tourism	
Congress which will be held 
in	Durban	in	October	2011.	
TKZN also launched the 
KwaZulu-Natal	Wine	and	
Dine	concept,	and
	promoted	AfriPortico	which	
is	a	SMME	brand,	selling	
emerging KwaZulu-Natal 
tourism businesses under 
one brand.
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with KZN trade 
tourism partners

Industry	liaison	
and information 
sharing on 
provincial tourism 
issues

Number of Trade 
Quarterly	Growth	
Forums held

Four Trade 
Quarterly	Growth	
Forums

•	Four	Trade	Quarterly	
Growth Forums were held 
during the period under 
review. The Fora were used: 
-	To	introduce	new	SAT	CEO,	
for	her	to	share	SAT’s	vision	
for Tourism
- To share research and 
highlight opportunities in 
niche tourism
-	Introduce	the	new	Durban/
KZN Convention Bureau and 
-	A	strategic	marketing	
session	to	forge	stakeholder	
co-operation in tourism 
promotion in alignment with 
TKZN strategy and plans.

Africa	Sales
Programme

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
tourism partners 
from Africa

Prioritise	
countries 
according to 
South	African	
Tourism and 
KwaZulu-Natal 
segmentation

Trade relations 
and leads 
developed

Activities 
pursued

•	Activities	to	strengthen	
trade relations were pursued 
in	line	with	SAT	mapping,	
in the following countries in 
Africa:		Zimbabwe	-	Sanganai	
Travel	and	Tourism	Expo	
held	in	Harare,	between	14	
and	16	October.	Tourism	
KwaZulu-Natal	exhibited	
jointly	with	Durban	Tourism	
and completed a destination 
presentation	and	DVD	
flighting to the Zimbabwe 
trade and international buyers 
present;
Nigeria	and	Angola	-	South	
African Tourism organised 
workshops	and	consumer	
activation	which	took	place	
in	Lagos	between	28	and	30	
October;	and	a	workshop	in	
Angola	held	between	25	and	
27	November.
Relations	and	leads	were	
established for further 
exploration	of	trade	activity:	
educationals and fam trips for 
package	conceptualisation.

-

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Asia and 
Australia 
Programme

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
tourism partners 
from Asia and 
Australia

Strengthen	the	
Emirates	Durban	
Route

Trade relations 
and leads 
developed

Activities 
pursued

•	TKZN	attended	the	2010	
Emirates	Holidays	Brochure	
Launch	in	Dubai,	United	Arab	
Emirates,	which	took	place	
between	29	April	and	2	May.	
As part of the activities TKZN 
hosted a lunch function for 
the	trade	and	exhibitors	
present in an effort to forge 
trade relations and build 
destination awareness.
•	TKZN	bought	A4	
advertising	space	in	a	South	
Africa supplement within 
the	Vacations	and	Travel	
magazine,	the	longest	
established title in the 
Australian	market,	having	
launched	in	1983	and	which	
is	published	quarterly	with	
a	distribution	of	33	000	
and	an	estimated	quarterly	
readership	of	125	000.
•	The	KwaZulu-Natal	
Emirates	global	promotion	
took	place	between	March	
2011	and	May	2011.	This	
initiative sought to leverage 
and cement the relationship 
that	TKZN	and	Emirates	have	
in	promoting	the	Durban-
Dubai	route.	The	promotion	
was well received by both 
trade	and	Emirates	globally	
and future plans will be 
determined by the outcome 
of the promotion.

Europe To create KZN 
destination brand 
in alignment with 
the	South	Africa	
brand

Campaigns	(ATL	
and	BTL)	via	
GSA	and	JMA	
activities

Implementation	
of the KwaZulu-
Natal brand in 
alignment with 
the	South	African	
brand

June	2010 •	The	brand	re-alignment	
process by TKZN started 
with the development of a 
Brand	Key	in	June	2010,	
then the development of 
the brand and messaging. 
Approval was given by 
Cabinet	in	February	2011.	
•	The	new	brand	was	
scheduled to be revealed 
at	Indaba	2011,	followed	
by the brand advertising 
campaign to be adapted 
for	the	European	trade	and	
market.
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To grow arrivals 
from	Europe

Profile	
destination via 
trade	exhibitions	
and	workshops

Level of 
awareness 
generated and 
itinerary listing by 
tour operators

Participation	in	
approved shows

•	Indaba	was	successfully	
hosted	in	May	2010	with	
representatives of the 
European	trade	and	media	
attending.
•	Participated	at	the	
TOPRESA	trade	show	held	
in	France	in	September	2010	
where TKZN established 
new relations with trade and 
media.	A	key	contact	was	
with the French Football 
League as they were planning 
to	host	their	future	Super	
Cup	in	South	Africa,	following	
the successful hosting of the 
2010	World	Cup.
•	Participated	at	Journeys	
2010,	an	up-market	long-
haul tourism conference and 
exhibition	event	in	Munich	in	
November	2010.	
•	Participated	at	the	
Vakantiebeurs	consumer	
travel show in the 
Netherlands in January 
2011.	Furthermore,	TKZN	
shared	the	stand	with	Vibe	
Tours, a tour operator 
specialising in township and 
cultural	tours	for	the	Dutch	
market,	developed	tailor-
made	packages	which	were	
promoted during the show.
•	Participated	at	the	CMT	
consumer	holiday	exhibition	
in	January	2011	held	at	
Messe	Stuttgart,	Baden-
Wurttemberg,	Germany.
•	Participated	at	FITUR	
International	Tourism	Trade	
Fair	in	Madrid,	Spain,	in	
January	2011	and	in	a	series	
of	meetings	with	key	trade,	
including airlines and hotel 
groups. 
•	Participated	at	ITB	2011	
held in Berlin, Germany, in 
March	2011	where	review	
meetings were held with 
the	GSA	and	JMA	partners	
responsible	for	packaging	
KZN.

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To grow arrivals 
from	Europe

•	TKZN	partnered	with	SAT	
in	Germany	on	a	joint	Mega	
Kick	radio	promotion	with	
SWR3,	the	top	radio	station	
in	Germany,	reaching	3,8	
million listeners a day.

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
partners

Implementation	
of Joint 
Marketing	
Agreements 
co-operative 
initiatives

Market	mapping	
and improved 
trade relations 
with	Europe	
trade

Number of trade 
activities

•	Participated	at	the	Knecht	
Reisen	(TKZN	JMA	partner)	
Africa and Latin American 
Workshop	in	November	2010	
in	Switzerland.
•	Conducted	sales	calls	
with the following trade and 
tour operators in German 
markets:
-	Taruk	Int.,	Potsdam;
-	Diamir	Reisen,	Dresden;
-	Jacana	Tours,	Munich;
-	Abendsonne	Afrika,	Ulm;
-	FTI	Touristik,	Munich;	and
-	Explorer	Ferenreisen.
•	Sydafrikaressor,	TKZN	JMA	
partner	based	in	Sweden,	
conducted a destination 
workshop	for	their	agents	
in	Gothenburg	in	December	
2010.

To increase 
brand awareness

Increase	of	
knowledge	
of destination 
by trade and 
consumers

Marketing	
material 
and training 
opportunities

Quarterly	fam	
trips and training 
opportunities

•	TKZN	hosted	a	German	TV	
crew	(Bayerischer	Rundfunk)	
which broadcasts a 
consumer travel show, aired 
in	Europe.
•	Hosted	European	trade	and	
media pre- and post-Tourism 
Indaba.
•	TKZN	hosted	the	
Knecht	Reisen	2010	KZN	
Edutainment	to	educate	
80	agents	about	KwaZulu-
Natal	between	28	October	
and	1	November	2010.	
TKZN contributed with 
both	experiential	learning	
and	provision	of	marketing	
material for consumer 
adaptation.
•	Host	Best	of	Travel	Group	
(TKZN	JMA	partner)	agents	
for a fam trip in November 
2010.
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To grow KZN’s 
Business 
Tourism through 
partnership with 
Durban	Africa	
and	ICC

Profile	KwaZulu-
Natal as a 
Business Tourism 
destination

Number of bids 
won and events 
hosted.
Support	for	
events and bids

Success	on	
events hosted

•	Attended	IMEX	in	May	
2010	to	profile	KZN	as	a	
destination for Business 
Tourism.
•	Supported	the	Conference	
Company	(PCO	in	KZN)	in	
delegate-boosting	in	Moscow	
in	June	2010	for	the	Non-
destructive conference.
•	In	support	of	the	Durban-
KwaZulu-Natal CB and a 
bench-mark	process	in	
the establishment of the 
KwaZulu-Natal Convention 
Bureau, TKZN hosted the 
Director	of	Vienna	CVB	and	
Executive	of	ICCA	as	guest	
speaker	during	the	2010	
SAACI	conference.
•	TKZN	attended	the	
International	Congress	and	
Conventions Association 
(ICCA)	conference,	which	
took	place	in	October	2010,	
in	India	to	support	KZN	
practitioners in positioning 
the province as a Business 
Tourism destination and 
to provide a platform for 
business	tourism	skills	
development, academic 
dialogue,	market	studies	
and	trend	examination.	This	
also	provided	a	networking	
platform, allowing for 
business	leads	exchange	
among practitioners.
•	Attended	EIBTM	in	
partnership	with	Durban	
KwaZulu-Natal Convention 
Bureau	between	30	
November	and	2	December	
2010.
•	TKZN,	in	partnership	with	
Emirates	Airlines,	hosted	
an educational trip for top 
German	Meetings,	Incentives,	
Exhibitions	and	Events	
executives	in	KwaZulu-Natal	
between	29	November	and	5	
December	2010.

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Explore	
opportunities for 
the	2010	World	
Cup

Pre-,	during	
and	post-	2010	
activities

‘Optimised 
opportunities to 
promote and to 
position KZN’

•	Opportunistic	activity	
was	undertaken	to	ensure	
maximum	exposure	and	
advantage for KZN in the 
promotion	of	the	2010	World	
Cup.
•	A	trade	and	media	
workshop	held	for	2010	
World	Cup	team	draw	in	
Cape Town was used as a 
platform to promote KZN as 
a team and fan host province.
•	Pre-World	Cup	promotion	
of	KZN	took	place	in	
European	World	Cup	
qualified	countries,	including	
Portugal,	Spain,	Holland,	
Germany	and	Serbia.
•	Together	with	the	Office	of	
the	Premier’s	2010	Office	and	
the	DACRS,	undertook	the	
following	activities	for	2010:	
- Conceptualised and 
developed the provincial 
2010	FIFA	World	Cup	launch	
campaign;
-	Placed	adverts	in	key	
media;
-	Executed	activations	at	key			
nodes;
-	Participated	in	the	Melrose	
Arch	Africa	Expo;	and
-	Participated	in	Shaka	
Marine	Exhibition,	
showcasing local and African 
culture to visitors.
•	Service	rating	feedback	
and safety tips pamphlet 
distribution	during	2010	FIFA	
World	Cup.
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

UK and US To create KZN 
destination brand 
in alignment with 
the	South	Africa	
brand

Campaigns	(ATL	
and	BTL)	via	
GSA	and	JMA	
activities

Implementation	
of the KwaZulu-
Natal brand in 
alignment with 
the	South	African	
brand

June	2010 •	In	June	2010,	the	insight	
activator	and	brand	key	
work	was	successfully	
executed.	This	process	
was completed in order 
to sharpen the positioning 
and differentiator of brand 
KwaZulu-Natal. Following 
Cabinet approval which 
was obtained in February 
2011,	the	UK	General	Sales	
Agency	(AMG)	was	briefed	
on the new brand for its 
roll-out plan, effective June 
2011.	The	brand	roll-out	plan	
encompasses both BTL and 
ATL activities.

Profile	KZN		
destination in UK 
and	US

Profile	
destination via 
trade	exhibitions	
and	workshops

Level of 
awareness 
generated and 
itinerary listing by 
tour operators

Participation	in	
approved shows

•	The	TKZN	team	attended	
the	Goway	Africa	workshops	
in	Canada;	the	SAA	On	Show	
Road-show	in	USA;	New	
York	Times	Consumer	Show;	
ECCO	tours	workshop;	SAT	
UK	trade	workshops;	and	
World	Travel	Market	in	the	UK	
in	2010.
•	TKZN	also	used	association	
forums to promote the 
destination	(ie)	SATOA	in	the	
UK	and	APTA	in	the	USA.	
•	As	a	result	of	workshops	
and training activities with 
AMG,	all	JMA	partners	
increased KZN brochure 
listing.

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
partners

Implementation	
of Joint 
Marketing	
Agreements 
co-operative 
initiatives

Key account 
management. 
Improved	trade	
relations with UK 
and	US	trade

Number of trade 
activities

•	As	per	the	Sales	Growth	
Strategy,	TKZN	focused	on	
key	account	management	
through	JMA	monitoring	and	
sales calls to maintain trade 
relations	in	both	markets.		

Performance Information
Marketing continued
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Business Unit Strategic  
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

To strengthen 
trade relations 
with trade 
partners

•	Five	JMAs	with	strategic	
partners in the UK were 
renewed. These included a 
strategic partnership with 
Responsible	Travel,	which	is	
a company which focuses 
on promoting previously 
disadvantaged or least visited 
areas.
•	JMA	partners	experienced	
a	minimum	growth	of	8%	
from	2009	volumes	–	despite	
tough economic and trading 
conditions. 
•	Participated	in	ECCO	
Tours	Academy	workshops	
hosted in Cape Town and 
afterwards hosted some of 
the participants on a post-
workshop	tour	to	KwaZulu-
Natal to sample KwaZulu-
Natal	experiences.
•	2	by	2	holidays	organised	
a KwaZulu-Natal event in the 
UK to familiarise their target 
market	with	KwaZulu-Natal	
offerings,	whereby	AMG	
represented the province at 
the KwaZulu-Natal event. 
This was positively received 
by consumers.

To grow KZN’s 
business 
tourism through 
partnership with 
Durban	Africa	
and	ICC

Profile	KwaZulu-
Natal as 
business tourism 
destination

Number of bids 
won and events 
hosted.
Support	for	
events and bids

Success	on	
events hosted

•	TKZN	supported	South	
African Tourism in the 
hosting	of	Meetings	Africa,	
and facilitated educationals 
hosted in KwaZulu-Natal 
to showcase the province’s 
Business Tourism facilities
•	TKZN	was	instrumental	
in	the	securing	of	10	bids	
during the period, where - 
together	with	Durban	Africa	
and	the	Department	of	
Economic	Development	and	
Tourism - it offered support 
to	the	newly	formed	CVB	and	
ICC.
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Objectives
•	 To create and optimally utilise 

communication opportunities to build and 

maintain the image of the Zulu Kingdom 

brand	among	consumers	and	stakeholders;

•	 To increase brand awareness and 

positive brand associations through event 

partnership	and	support;

•	 To manage and control messages to both 

external	and	internal	stakeholders;	and

•	 To ensure ongoing internal communication. 

Key Performance Areas
•	 Build	the	image	of	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal;

•	 Improve	media	exposure	of	the	province	of	

KwaZulu-Natal;

•	 Co-ordinate events hosted and 

implemented	by	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal;

•	 Co-ordinate Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

attendance	at	functions/events	to	which	the	

organisation may be invited in order to build 

stakeholder	relations;

•	 Ensure	brand	visibility	at	all	hosted	and	

supported	functions/events;

•	 Promote	and	communicate	organisational	

objectives,	achievements	and	the	brand;

•	 Champion	the	cause	of	service	excellence	

and	improved	customer	care;	and

•	 Raise	awareness	around	issues	related						

to tourism.

Manager’s Overview
During	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 the	 Public	

Relations	and	Communications	Division	worked	at	

delivering on its core mandate. 

This entailed building and maintaining a positive 

image of the Zulu Kingdom brand, identifying and 

optimally utilising media leverage opportunities for 

brand promotion, building and maintaining healthy 

internal	 and	 external	 stakeholder	 relations	 and	

providing effective tourist after-care services, while 

promoting	 service	 excellence	 within	 the	 industry	

and advancing greater tourism awareness.

In	our	quest	to	maintain	a	positive	image	and	boosting	

the destination’s image, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

utilised and participated in a number of platforms to 

communicate with our strategic partners and other 

stakeholders,	both	internal	and	external.	

We	 also	 executed	 a	 number	 of	 activities	 as	 part	

of our effort to build a positive image of the Zulu 

Kingdom through the media. These endeavours 

proved particularly successful with publicity valued 

in	excess	of	R53	million	achieved	during	the	review	

period.

A further platform which we continued to use  

successfully	 during	 2010/11	 was	 the	 extremely	

popular and widely read bi-monthly consumer 
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The year under review was characterised by our organisation’s active support for a number of events 
around the province, as a means of promoting the geographic spread of tourism experiences in 
KwaZulu-Natal. 

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
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publication, What, Where and When (WWW). The 

publication was used to inform consumers about 

experiences	and	activities	within	KwaZulu-Natal,	so	

raising awareness about local tourism attractions 

and, importantly, events within the province.

In	a	concerted	effort	to	ensure	an	ongoing	destination	

information	 presence	 in	 key	 media,	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal hosted a number of international 

and national journalists for the purposes of 

destination	profiling,	together	with	various	VIPs	with	

the intention of securing destination endorsement. 

Invited	 journalists	 included	 representatives	 from	

print,	radio	and	television.	Meanwhile,	part	of	our	VIP	

programme	included	Ladysmith	Black	Mambazo,	a	

group which continued endorsing KwaZulu-Natal’s 

attributes	during	the	2010/11	financial	year.

Our	media	 hosting	 programme	 created	 numerous	

opportunities for the journalists concerned to deliver 

to their respective audiences their own stories. 

Pleasingly,	all	those	media	role-players	exposed	to	

our province during the review period reported most 

positively on the attributes of destination KwaZulu-

Natal.	It	is	our	belief	that	allowing	the	media	free	rein	to	

explore,	sample	and	experience	our	products	lends	

greater credibility than our organisation’s generation 

of	 a	 series	 of	 media	 releases.	 Media	 support	 for	

tourism-related sporting events, such as the three-

day	Duzi	Canoe	Marathon	and	the	Amashovashova	

Cycle	 Race,	 both	 held	 between	 Pietermaritzburg	

and	 Durban,	 also	 proved	 impressive.	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal	 also	 facilitated	 linkages	 between	

the media and a variety of product owners, through 

which process these individuals were interviewed, 

showcasing their products to the general public and 

sharing their success stories through the mediums 

of print, radio and television. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal believes sustainable service 

delivery	excellence	to	be	of	paramount	importance	

within our provincial tourism sector and is committed 

to the aggressive and ongoing promotion of this vital 

value.

Accordingly,	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 saw	 our	

organisation	 undertake	 a	 number	 of	 interventions	

designed to ensure that visitors to the Zulu Kingdom 

enjoyed	 high	 quality	 service,	 leaving	 this	 province	

with	a	positive	impression	of	their	overall	stay.	In	this	

regard,	 the	 Public	 Relations	 and	Communications	

Division	successfully	launched	a	Service	Excellence	

Awards event at Zimbali during the review period. 

The purpose behind the awards initiative was to 

actively encourage tourism industry role-players 

across	the	board	to	look	to	improving	their	service	

levels through the public recognition of best practice 

ideals.	 The	 Service	 Excellence	 Awards	 event	 was	

co-ordinated	in	partnership	with	the	Department	of	

Economic	Development	and	Tourism,	 the	Grading	

Council	 of	 South	 Africa,	 Chaine	 De	 Rotisseur,	

SATSA,	 FEDHASA,	 SAACI	 and	 other	 interested	

stakeholders.

Our	organisation	regards	Tourism	Month,	celebrated	

throughout	 the	world	 annually	 in	September,	 as	 a	

tremendous opportunity to further heighten public 

awareness of the importance of the tourism sector. 

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 set	 out	 to	 use	 the	 2010	

Tourism	Month	to	actively	encourage	citizens	of	the	

province to discover the true beauty of KwaZulu-

Natal.	The	2010	event	was	launched	–	in	conjunction	

with	 the	 Department	 of	 Economic	 Development	

and	 Tourism	 and	 the	 local	 Municipality	 –	 in	 the	

Underberg region in the shadow of KwaZulu-Natal’s 

iconic	towering	Drakensberg	Mountains.

The year under review was further characterised 

by our organisation’s active support of a number 

of events around the province, as a means of 

promoting the geographic spread of tourism 

experiences	 in	 KwaZulu-Natal.	 This	 ensured	 that	

Municipalities	 in	 areas	 away	 from	 the	 province’s 

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
continued
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metropoles	and	major	centres	also	benefited	 from	

our	tourism	profile.

Performance Highlights: 
Media Leverage-

During	the	2010/11	financial	year	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal	 successfully	 leveraged	 media	 exposure	

valued	 in	 excess	 of	 R53,6	million	which	 positively	

showcased KwaZulu-Natal to a range of audiences 

locally and internationally.

Media Awareness-

An	extensive	media	hosting	initiative	launched	in	the	

2010/11	financial	year	paid	tremendous	dividends,	

with	 all	 media	 representatives	 expressing	 most	

positive views about destination KwaZulu-Natal.

A number of international and national media 

representatives, drawn from print, radio and 

television, were hosted by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

in	order	to	secure	destination	profiling	with	integrity.		

The journalists were permitted to deliver to their 

audiences their own stories or reviews.

Providing	the	media	free	access	to	explore,	sample	

and	 experience	 the	 province	 clearly	 provided	

greater credibility than media releases prepared by 

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal.	Media	support	for	tourism-

related	sporting	events,	such	as	the	three-day	Dusi	

Canoe	Marathon	and	Amashovashova	Cycle	Race,	

both	staged	between	Pietermaritzburg	and	Durban,	

proved successful.

Tourism Indaba 2010-

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal again participated in the 

annual	Tourism	Indaba,	staged	at	the	Inkosi	Albert	

Luthuli	 ICC	 Complex	 in	 Durban.	 Of	 particular	

significance	 was	 the	 announcement	 that	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal,	in	partnership	with	Durban	Tourism	

and	the	 ICC	Durban,	had	won	the	bid	to	host	 the	

Tourism	 Indaba	 for	 the	next	 five	 years,	 from	2011	

to	2015.	

This is clearly indicative of the high esteem in which 

our province’s hosting of this prestigious event on 

the international tourism sector calendar is held.   

Tourism Month-

The	internationally-celebrated	Tourism	Month	brings	

the importance of tourism to the fore and offers 

an ideal opportunity to actively promote improved 

awareness of tourism, its place in the economy and 

its importance as a creator of new employment 

opportunities.	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal,	working	with	

the	 Department	 of	 Economic	 Development	 and	

Tourism	and	a	local	Municipality	launched	the	2010	

Tourism	Month	in	the	Underberg	region,	setting	out	

to encourage the people of the province to uncover 

more of KwaZulu-Natal.

Annual Report-

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s effective co-ordination of 

the	 2009/10	 Annual	 Report	 resulted	 in	 this	 flag-

ship	 document	 being	 undertaken,	 finalised	 and	

produced in a timely manner ahead of submission 

for tabling before the Legislature.

Service Excellence Awards-

A	particular	highlight	of	 the	2010/11	financial	 year	

and	 one	 which	 will	 assist	 in	 taking	 widespread	

industry	 attention	 to	 service	 excellence	 to	 a	 new	

level	 was	 the	 launch	 of	 the	 Service	 Excellence	

Awards, with a function at Zimbali co-inciding with 

the	hosting	of	 the	2010	FIFA	World	Cup.	Through	

the awards initiative, it is hoped to encourage 

industry role-players to continually strive to improve 

service delivery in KwaZulu-Natal. 

This	 event	 was	 undertaken	 in	 partnership	 with	

the	 Department	 of	 Economic	 Development	 and	

Tourism,	 the	 Grading	 Council	 of	 South	 Africa,	

Chaine	 De	 Rotisseur,	 SATSA,	 FEDHASA,	 SAACI	
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and	other	stakeholders.

Hosting Ladysmith Black Mambazo-

Destination	 KwaZulu-Natal	 received	 a	 significant	

endorsement	 boost	 in	 2010/11	 when	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal hosted internationally-acclaimed 

musicians,	members	of	Ladysmith	Black	Mambazo,	

as our provincial ambassadors. The group was also 

hosted at our organisation’s hospitality facility during 

the	 Vodacom	 Durban	 July	 at	 Greyville	 in	 Durban.	

A	 significant	 collaboration	 involved	 the	 dancers	

from	 the	 London	Royal	Opera	House,	who	 linked	

with	Ladysmith	Black	Mambazo	during	 the	 review	

period. A video of the partnership was produced 

for airing in London pre- and post-performance and 

during intervals, affording KwaZulu-Natal invaluable 

exposure.

Division Performance:

The	Public	Relations	and	Communications	Division	

achieved all targets detailed in the action plan.

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

PR and 
Communication

Image Building
Increase	product	
and destination 
awareness for 
KZN

Enhance	a	
positive image 
in	key	domestic	
and international 
target	markets

Hosting 
programme
Events	Support
Brand/	
destination 
awareness        

Coverage
Number of 
events hosted

•	15	events	were	supported,	
some of which included 
media hostings resulting in 
extensive	coverage	by	hosted	
journalists. 
•	The	image	enhancement	
exposure	received	was	not	
limited to print, but also 
included radio and television, 
with a total value of
R53	647	473.
•		Events	supported	
included	Midmar	Mile,	Dusi	
Canoe	Marathon,	Fourth	
Nottingham Highland Games, 
Splashy	Fen	Music	Festival,	
Comrades	Marathon,	Sardine	
Festival,	Vodacom	Durban	
July,	Ballito	Prawn	Festival,	
Amashovashova	Cycle	Race,	
ICI	BMX	Mountain	Bike	Event,		
World	Golf	Championships,	
MTN	Jazz	Festival,	Royal	
Show,	Tourism	Month	and	
Tourism	Indaba.

Media Leverage
To optimally 
utilise media 
opportunities 
to build and 
maintain a 
positive image 
brand

The	extent	of	
media leverage 
for the Zulu 
Kingdom and its 
sub-destinations

Lobbying for 
unpaid coverage 
on TKZN and 
key	events,			
especially 
through hosting

Percentage	of	
unpaid coverage  
received vs paid

•	In	terms	of	hosting,	a	
budgeted allocation of 
R514	000	was	expended,	
generating	unpaid	exposure	
valued	at	R53	647	473.	
•	Media	personalities	from	
Selimathunzi,	Metro	FM	
and	City	Press	were	invited	
to	participate	at	the	Dusi	
Canoe	Marathon	and	their	
experiences	were	broadcast	
on	Selimathunzi	on	SABC1,	
which boasts a viewership of 
more than 4 million viewers. 
•	National	and	Provincial	
media from various 
publications and radio 
stations such as Gagasi 
FM,	Metro	FM,	Isolezwe,	
Travel	Wires,	uKhozi	FM	and	
The	Witness	were	hosted,	
resulting in KZN tourism 
receiving	extensive	exposure.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Corporate
Communication

To promote and 
communicate 
the TKZN  brand, 
objectives, 
activities and 
achievements to 
all	stakeholders

Creating 
awareness of 
the brand and 
related activities

The	extent	
to which 
stakeholders	
understand the 
TKZN plans

Positive	
feedback	from	
stakeholders	on		
TKZN’s activities

•	A	total	of	81%	of	trade	
stakeholders,	with	whom	
TKZN has communicated, 
believed that the organisation 
performed	equally	well	or	
better than similar tourism 
agencies.

Tourism 
Awareness 
Tourism Safety 
and Awareness 

Implementation	
of the Tourism 
Safety	and	
Awareness	Plan

To ensure 
community 
and tourist 
awareness of the 
socio-economic 
benefits	of	
tourism and their 
role in promoting 
tourism safety

The number 
of tourism 
awareness 
programmes 
held throughout 
the province

Increasing	
awareness of 
tourism safety 
issues by 
stakeholders

•		Conducted	three	
workshops	in	partnership	
with	Tourism	Development	
at Uthungulu, Nongoma and 
Ulundi.
•		Conducted	three	tollgate	
campaigns	in	April	(Easter	
holiday),	June/July	(school	
holidays	and	World	Cup),	
September	(school	holidays)	
and	December	(Festive	
season).
•		Safety	tips	were	
reproduced and distributed at 
tollgates, satellite information 
offices,	King	Shaka	
International	Airport	and	hotel	
establishments.
•		Reprinting	was	done	in	
Spanish,	Portuguese,	French	
and German.

Customer Care 
Management

To build and 
maintain a 
positive image 
of the KZN 
destination

Service	levels	 Improvement	of	
the customer 
excellence	
programme.
Customer 
management.
Successful	roll-
out of the service 
excellence	
campaign

Number of 
complaints 
handled.
Increase	
in entries 
for	Service	
Excellence	
Awards

•	Nine	complaints	were	
received and there was a 
24-hour	turn-around	time	
in response to resolving 
reported complaints.
•	There	was	an	11%	increase	
in	the	service	excellence	
awards entries.
•	The	awards	were	launched	
on	4	June	2010,	however	the	
ceremony was cancelled due 
to revised National Tourism 
Excellence	Awards	approach,	
to which KZN needed to align 
itself.

Performance Information
Public Relations and Communications
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Hosting  and 
co-ordinating 
Corporate 
Events

Hosting of 
corporate events 
to promote the 
Zulu Kingdom 
brand and 
corporate identity

Implementation	
of corporate 
events, alignment 
with the brand

Extent	of	the	
Zulu Kingdom 
brand	exposure	
at corporate 
events

Increase	in	
satisfaction 
scores

•	In	comparison	with	
2009/10,	a	minimum	of	
67%	and	a	maximum	of	
94%	was	recorded	in	terms	
of ‘satisfaction scores’ as 
expressed	by	‘would	you	
attend this event again’, 
an	improvement	from	85%	
average	recorded	in	2009/10,	
and ‘would you recommend 
KwaZulu-Natal’	(96%).		
•	Positive	feedback	was	
received following a number 
of internal hostings and 
activations, including:
-	The	2010	FIFA	World	Cup
-	Tourism	Month	
-	Tourism	Indaba
-	Heritage	Day
-	Secretary’s	Day
-	Woman’s	Day
-	Spar	Ladies	Race.

Events 
Marketing

Profile	
destination 
through strategic 
selection of 
events

Use events 
as	a	hook	to	
destinations 
around the 
province

Increased	arrivals	
and length of 
stay through 
events

Percentage	
increase in 
destination 
image

•	The	threshold	of	90%	
positive destination image, 
as measured in ‘would you 
recommend KwaZulu-Natal’ 
or ‘would you recommend 
the event’ was achieved and 
exceeded.
•	Partnered	with	Tourism	
Information	Services	and	
conducted	an	Economic	
Impact	Assessment	survey	at	
most events.
•	Events	supported	
included	Midmar	Mile,	Dusi	
Canoe	Marathon,	Fourth	
Nottingham Highland Games, 
Splashy	Fen	Music	Festival,	
Comrades	Marathon,	Sardine	
Festival,	Vodacom	Durban	
July,	Ballito	Prawn	Festival,	
Amashovashova Cycle 
Race,	ICI	BMX	Mountain	
Bike	Event,		World	Golf	
Championships,	MTN	Jazz	
Festival,	Royal	Show,	Tourism	
Month	and	Tourism	Indaba.
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Objectives
•	  To provide tourist information about the 

province;

•	 To continuously measure the overall 

performance of the KwaZulu-Natal tourism 

industry;	and

•	 To	maintain	an	information	and	knowledge	

management system and databases, 

including tourist service provider registration.

Key Performance Areas
•	 Research	and	knowledge	management;

•	 Information	office	services;

•	 Distribution;

•	 Database	development	and	maintenance;

•	 e-Marketing;	and

•	 Quality	assurance/benchmarking	in	terms	of	

Destination	Management	Best	Practice.

General Manager’s Overview
During	the	2010/11	financial	year	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal	 undertook	 and	 completed	 a	 number	 of	

important pieces of research which will assist in 

effectively guiding the future of tourism in KwaZulu-

Natal. 

Research	projects	comprised:

•	 Air	Access	into	Africa	–	two	related	research	

papers which investigated the nature and 

extent	of	air	access	in	terms	of	the	African	

continent	and	the	country	of	South	Africa	

and,	specifically,	the	province	of	KwaZulu-

Natal.	The	new	King	Shaka	International	

Airport	has	had	a	significant	positive	effect	

on air access and, particularly, on direct 

international air access into this province. 

The	research	also	outlined	the	significance	

of KwaZulu-Natal in terms of product 

offerings	to	its	land-locked	neighbouring	

regions;	and	

•	 The	Economic	Impact	Assessment	of	the	

2010	FIFA	World	Cup	Event	on	KwaZulu-

Natal	–	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal,	in	

conjunction with the University of KwaZulu-

Natal,	undertook	a	significant	economic	

impact assessment survey of this major 

sporting event as regards the province. 

Not	only	did	the	World	Cup	generate	

substantial monetary rewards and numerous 

infrastructural upgrades, but it also effected 

critical	increases	in	intangible	benefits	to	

the	province.	Such	benefits	included	an	

increased willingness to recommend the   

province	and	the	city	of	Durban	as	holiday	

destinations and an increased willingness to 

visit the province and enhanced ratings in 

terms of overall service and safety levels.

During	 the	 review	 period,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	

established a new information centre at the King 

Shaka	International	Airport	located	outside	Durban.

The information centre is a bigger and better facility 

than the one previously operated by the organisation 
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During the review period, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal established a new information centre at the King 
Shaka International Airport located outside Durban. The information centre is bigger than the centre 
previously operated by the organisation at the old Durban International Airport

Performance Information
Tourism Information Services
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at the old Durban	International	Airport	located	south	

of the city. The centre comprises a partnership 

initiative among four tourism organisations or 

entities	 in	 KwaZulu-Natal,	 namely	 Ezemvelo	 KZN	

Wildlife,	Durban	Tourism,	the	KwaZulu-Natal	Sharks	

Board and Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.

Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 also	 relocated	 its	 V	 &	 A	

Waterfront	information	office	in	Cape	Town	from	the	

Clock	Tower	to	the	Kraal	Building,	Dockside	Road,	

benefiting	from	the	larger	and	more	easily	accessed	

premises. The move was geared to assist in further 

raising	 KwaZulu-Natal’s	 profile	 amongst	 potential	

visitors	 seeking	 information	 about	 this	 province	

while in Cape Town. 

Tourism	Information	Services	played	an	important	role	

in	undertaking	the	Economic	Impact	Assessment	of	

the	FIFA	World	Cup	on	KwaZulu-Natal’s	economy.	

The	 report	 it	 produced,	 subsequent	 to	 the	 survey	

it ran in conjunction with the University of KwaZulu-

Natal,	was	presented	to	the	National	Research	and	

Knowledge	Management	Committee	at	 a	meeting	

in	Pretoria	and	this	was	to	be	combined	with	other	

provincial reports about the event, in line with the 

objective	 of	 producing	 a	 South	 African	 economic	

assessment	of	the	entire	FIFA	World	Cup	event.

Tourism	 Information	 Services	 also	 worked	 closely	

with	 the	 provincial	 Department	 of	 Economic	

Development	 and	 Tourism	 to	 re-align	 various	

responsibilities between the department and 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal in a concerted effort 

to nullify unnecessary duplication of roles 

and	 responsibilities.	 In	 this	 regard,	 Tourism	

Information	 Services	 ensured	 the	 completion	

of	 training	 involving	 Department	 of	 Economic	

Development	 and	 Tourism	 members	 of	 staff	 in	

terms of the provincial tourism service provider and 

tourist guide registration. 

The change to the registration responsibility role 

is	 envisaged	 to	 take	 place	 early	 in	 the	 new	

financial	year.	

The organisation’s web portal continued to perform 

well from both a design and a user perspective. 

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	website	grader	ranked	the	

portal	at	a	98%	level	in	terms	of	design	and	layout,	

while	the	user	rate	again	grew	significantly	during	the	

period	under	review.	In	addition,	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal’s	 Google	 ranking,	 in	 terms	 of	 search	 result	

returns	 for	 key	 terms	 related	 to	 the	 organisation,	

proved	to	be	excellent.

Of	importance	was	the	fact	that	Tourism	Information	

Services	once	again	achieved	the	targets	to	which	it	

committed for the year. 

Performance Highlights: 
Research-

•	 Presented	papers	at	a	number	of	

 provincial and national events and 

	 conferences;	and

•	 Completed	two	important	pieces	of	

    research capable of guiding the future of 

   tourism in KwaZulu-Natal.

Tourism Information Services-

•	 Established	a	new	information	centre	at

				 King	Shaka	International	Airport	which	is

				 performing	well;	

•		 Set	in	motion	the	process	necessary	for	the	

    installation of large-format monitors at the 

    information centre in order to effectively display 

    tourism attraction visuals and audio at

				 the	airport;	

•		 Relocated	the	organisation’s	V	&	A	Waterfront,	

Cape	Town,	office	facility;	

•		 Undertook	research	on	air	access	into	the

    province, as well as on the potential KwaZulu-

				 Natal’s	coastal	products	have	for	South

				 Africa’s	land-locked	neighbouring	regions;	and

•		 Undertook	a	substantial	economic	assessment	

Performance Information
Tourism Information Services
continued
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				 survey	of	the	2010	FIFA	World	Cup.

E-Marketing-

•		 The	web	portal	performed	well	and	was	

				 ranked	at	98%	in	terms	of	design	and	layout.

    The user rate, too, has grown dramatically.

Division Performance

The	Tourism	Information	Services	Division	

achieved all targets detailed in the action plan.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Research and 
Knowledge 
Management

The collection, 
analysis and 
reporting of 
key	information	
to guide and 
monitor the 
strategies and 
programmes of 
TKZN. 
Measuring	
the overall 
performance of 
the KZN tourism 
sector and 
specific	TKZN	
activities

Reports	
produced and 
presentation 
thereof in line 
with	2010/2011	
Research	Plan

Research	reports	
published.
Presentation	of	
results.

Knowledge 
Management	
System	and	
Resource	Centre	
in place and level 
of utilisation of 
these resources

Fulfilment	of	
2010/2011	
Research	Plan

•	All	projects	earmarked	in	
the	2010/2011	Research	
Plan	were	mobilised,	
including participation in the 
Tourism	Master	Planning	
process,	and	undertaking	
impact assessments of:
-	Splashy	Fen;
-	Comrades	Marathon;
-	Vodacom	Durban	July	
Horse	Race;
-	Sardine	Festival;
-	The	Reed	Dance;
- The Nottingham Highland  
Games;
- Amashovashova Cycle 
Race;
-	Dusi	Canoe	Marathon;
-	Midmar	Mile;
-	2010	World	Cup	Impact	
Assessment;
-	2010	Water	Institute	of	
South	Africa	Conference;
-	2010	African	Renaissance	
Conference;
-	Second	World	Congress	on	
Refractive	Error	and	Service	
Development;
2010	Microsoft	Teched	
Conference;
-	Tourism	Trend	Analysis;
-		KwaZulu-Natal	Image	
Survey	and	Performance	
Monitor;
-	Visitor	Book	Project;	and
-		Segmentation	and	
Targeting.
•	Resource	Centre	was	used
extensively	and	was	freely	
accessible to both internal 
and	external	stakeholders.
•	Resource	Centre	was	also		
used to provide information 
for input into the Tourism 
Master	Plan	commissioned	
by	the	Department	of	
Economic	Development	
and Tourism.

Performance Information
Tourism Information Services
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Information 
Office Services

Provision	of	a	
professional 
tourism 
information 
service through 
gateway,	key	
market	offices	
and temporary 
desks	at	shows,	
exhibitions	and	
key	events

Increase	in	the	
level of utilisation 
of TKZN’s 
information	office	
services.
Improvement	
in the level 
of training of 
information 
officers

Utilisation of 
service	–	walk-
ins	to	offices,	
telephone, 
postage, 
email	and	fax	
enquiries.	

Number of 
training	courses/
educationals 
attended

10%	increase	in	
level	of	enquiries	
dealt with

•	Telephone	and	fax	
enquiries:	93	126	against	
74	507	in	2009/2010,	an	
increase	of	20%.
•	Walk-in	enquiries:	
449	938	against	327	087	in	
2009/2010,	an	increase	of	
27%.
•	Email	enquiries:	14	316	
against	9	574	in	2009/2010,	
an	increase	of	33%.
•	Information	desks	were	
provided for all the core 
shows and events in which 
TKZN participated and for the 
visits of cruise liners to the 
Port	of	Durban.

Distribution Effective	
distribution of  
KZN’s	marketing	
material

Distribution	
levels in line with 
distribution plan

Level and nature 
of distribution of 
KZN’s	marketing	
collateral

10%	increase	in	
distribution levels

•	Distribution	was	carried	
out to meet TKZN demand, 
which was lower than 
previous periods. The 
traditional TKZN travel guide 
made	room	for	2010	World	
Cup-specific	material,	which	
was predominantly produced 
by	Durban	as	the	official	host	
city.

Database 
Development 
and 
Maintenance

Maintenance	
and further 
development of 
TKZN’s strategic 
data sets and 
systems

Level of 
update of 
TKZN’s tourism 
information 
system and email 
fora

Number of 
records and 
proportion 
of data sets 
updated

Complete update 
of these data 
sets

•	95%	of	Tourism	KwaZulu-
Natal	product	and	VIP	
databases were updated. 
The capturing had proved 
slow due to band-width 
issues which will be 
addressed in the new 
financial	year.

E-Marketing

 

Maintenance	
and further 
development of 
TKZN’s	network	
of websites, 
web camera 
and e-mail on 
demand services

User rates of 
these systems.
Maintenance	
and further 
development  
of	Destination	
Management	
System	(DMS)

User rates of 
these systems.
Level of down- 
time of these 
systems

‘Destination 
Management 
System 
and other 
e-marketing tool 
maintenance’

•	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	
web portal continued to 
perform well from both a 
design and user perspective. 
The current Google Analytics 
rating of this web portal, 
which	scored	98%	in	terms	
of	its	marketing	effectiveness,	
indicated that it attracts an
average	of	80%	new	visitors,	
most of whom are from 
TKZN’s	key	source	markets	
viz,	South	Africa,	USA,	UK	
and Germany, followed by 
Canada and France.
•	The	uptime	rate	of	the	
website has been within the 
90%	service	level	agreement.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objective

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Quality 
Assurance/ 
Benchmarking 
in terms of 
Destination 
Management 
Best Practice

Uplifting KZN 
tourism service 
standards 
through 
promotion of 
registration, 
grading and 
accessibility 
programmes 
amongst KZN 
tourism service 
providers.
Benchmarking	
TKZN in terms 
of destination 
management 
best practice

Level of grading, 
accessibility 
certification	and	
registration in 
KwaZulu-Natal.
Level of 
alignment of 
KZN destination 
management 
practice with 
what is regarded 
as best practice

Level of grading 
in KZN
service ratings 
derived from 
national and 
TKZN tourism 
surveys.
Level of 
awareness of the 
National Grading 
Scheme
S’best	Audit	
Report	
implementation.
Participation	in	
United Nations 
World	Tourism	
Organisation	
(UNWTO)	
Destination	
Council and 
other leading 
destination 
management 
association 
activities

10%	increase	
in levels of 
awareness of 
grading and 
registration 
schemes.
10%	increase	
in actual 
participation in 
these schemes.
Active 
Participation	
in	UNWTO	
destination 
management 
activities

•	TKZN	has	accommodated	
the	TGCSA’s	Eastern	Cape	
and KZN master assessor to 
help drive education on and 
compliance with grading.
•	Tourism	Information	
Services	assisted	in	creating	
greater awareness and 
promotion of grading using 
mass emails to products in 
the databases via a range of 
email fora including Tournet, 
Guidenet,	and	Staynet.
•	At	the	April	2010	
announcement of new 
grading criteria to be 
launched	by	TGCSA,	
establishments delayed 
grading and renewals 
until the completion of the 
process	by	the	TGCSA.	
Since	the	relaunch,	TKZN	
has supported the promotion 
of grading by sending mass 
emails to all KZN products in 
the	PMS	database.	
•	The	UNWTO	membership	
was renewed and TKZN 
participated	at	UNWTO’s	pre-
ITB	workshop	on	destination	
development.
•	TKZN	supported	the	
universal	accessibility	desk	
at	Indaba	2010	and	provided	
input to the new grading 
criteria which included the 
issue of accessibility.

Performance Information
Tourism Information Services
continued
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Objectives
•	 To develop and facilitate demand-driven 

tourism	infrastructure;

•	 To	fast-track	tourism	growth	in	the	

province by facilitating tourism investment 

in	conjunction	with	Trade	&	Investment	

KwaZulu-Natal;	and

•	 To provide strategic business advice 

and support for the development of 

tourism	Broad-Based	Black	Economic	

Empowerment	within	the	province.

Key Performance Areas
•	 Tourism	infrastructure;

•	 Safety	and	awareness;

•	 Broad-Based	Black	Economic	

Empowerment	and	Small,	Medium	and	

Micro	Enterprise	advisory	services;

•	 Tourism	Broad-Based	Black	Economic	

Empowerment	and	Small,	Medium	and	

Micro	Enterprise	skills	development;	and

•	 Destination	development.

General Manager’s Overview
The	 Tourism	 Development	 Division	 is	 committed	

to assisting in the transformation of the tourism 

industry in KwaZulu-Natal.

During	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year,	 the	 division	

undertook	interventions	geared	to	promote	Broad-

Based	 Black	 Economic	 Empowerment	 (B-BBEE)	

in	 this	 sector.	 Interventions	 included	 the	 provision	

of strategic business support, information and 

advice, the promotion of community-based tourism, 

investment promotion and the presentation of 

awards to top-flight emerging entrepreneurs.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has long-recognised the 

importance of the participation of small, medium 

and micro business enterprises in the province’s 

tourism	 sector.	 However,	 we	 also	 acknowledge	

that	 emerging	 tourism-related	 businesses	 require	

access to sound strategic business support in order 

to ensure their long-term sustainability and delivery 

of	quality	products	and	experiences	for	the	benefit	

of	 visitors	 to	KwaZulu-Natal.	Our	organisation	has	

taken	a	responsible	stance	in	this	regard,	providing	

clear guidelines, together with access to sector 

statistics and information highlighting potential 

pitfalls,	 whilst	 exposing	 the	 numerous	 business	

opportunities	in	the	market.

Small,	 Medium	 and	 Micro	 Enterprise	 (SMME)	

development in KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism sector 

has burgeoned in recent years and especially in the 

months	before	the	2010	FIFA	World	Cup	and	we	set	

out	to	share	knowledge	and	impart	processes	that	

such business enterprises should 

follow in becoming established 

operators	 in	 the	 field.	 A	

total of 444established 

operators in the 
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Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise (SMME) development in KwaZulu-Natal’s
tourism sector has burgeoned in recent years and especially in the months before
the 2010 FIFA World Cup

Performance Information
Tourism Development

59



emerging tourism business owners were assisted 

by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal during the	 2010/11	

financial	year.	

In	 this	 regard	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 partnered	

with	 the	eThekwini	Metro	during	the	review	period	

to	guide	some	15	SMME	tour	operators	in	offering	

innovative tours in the city.

These business operators were also afforded 

exhibition	space	adjacent	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	

beachfront-based information centre ahead of 

and	 during	 the	 World	 Cup.	 These	 entrepreneurs	

benefited	 from	 numerous	 football	 fan	 visitors	

booking	 tours	 as	 a	 direct	 consequence	 of	 such	

business	exposure.

The	 organisation	 also	 assisted	 34	 emerging	

entrepreneurs participating in our three-year 

incubator	 programme	 to	 benefit	 from	 the	 2010	

Tourism	 Indaba	 in	 Durban.	 Identified	 enterprise	

owners are encouraged to participate in this major 

tourism	exhibition,	the	biggest	in	Africa	over	a	three-

year period, initially starting out as ‘rovers’, selling 

their products and services without having formal 

exhibition	 stands,	 graduating	 in	 the	 second	 year	

to	become	 ‘sharers’,	 benefiting	 from	small	 stands	

housed	within	the	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	exhibition	

pavilion.	 In	 the	 third	 year,	 successful	 participants	

graduate	to	become	‘independents’,	exhibiting	their	

enterprises in small stands, supported by Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal in terms of promotional set-up 

costs.	 Pleasingly,	 the	 2010	 Tourism	 Indaba	 saw	

10	 of	 the	 34	 emerging	 business	 owners	 become	

‘independents.’

During	 the	 review	 period,	 16	 graduates	 of	 our	

incubator programme emerged as fully-fledged 

tour	operators.	Seven	of	the	16	also	benefited	from	

international	 exposure	 during	 the	 financial	 year.	

Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	provides	for	such	exposure,	

on a rotational basis, introducing tour operators 

to	 the	 province’s	 secondary	 markets	 inclusive	

of	 Eastern	 Europe,	 Turkey,	 Mexico	 and	 several	

African countries. Critically, a number of these tour 

operators successfully conducted tours during the 

World	Cup	as	a	direct	 result	of	 their	 linkages	with	

this	secondary	market.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal believes strongly in the need 

to promote community involvement in the province’s 

diverse tourism sector and regards community-

based tourism as an area with great potential.

This was evidenced by the generation of a 

business	plan	for	a	R15	million	development	of	an	

amphitheatre	 at	 the	 Royal	 Household	 in	 northern	

KwaZulu-Natal.	 In	 addition,	 our	 organisation	

was	 closely	 involved	 in	 assisting	 the	 Isandlwana	

community with the preparation of a feasibility study 

and business plan for a museum and interpretive 

centre	adjacent	to	a	number	of	important	battlefield	

grave sites.

The	Tourism	Development	Division	also	plays	a	role		

in tourism investment promotion.

During	the	2010/11	financial	year,	our	organisation	

produced	and	distributed	to	a	range	of	stakeholders	

and	potential	investors	a	comprehensive	marketing	

document	featuring	a	total	of	30	tourism	investment	

projects, comprising hotels, lodges, reserves and 

parks	throughout	KwaZulu-Natal.

 

The organisation also participated in the important 

2010	 Hotel	 Investment	 Conference	 and,	 in	

conjunction	with	Trade	&	Investment	KwaZulu-Natal	

and	 the	 Elan	 Group,	 exhibited	 potential	 provincial	

tourism	projects.	Importantly,	too,	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal,	with	Trade	&	Investment	KwaZulu-Natal	and	

the	 Tourism	 Business	 Council	 of	 South	 Africa,	

worked	together	towards	hosting,	in	KwaZulu-Natal,	

the	2011	Hotel	Investment	Conference,	which	was 

to	be	held	at	Zimbali	in	May	2011.	

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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The	 annual	 Emerging	 Entrepreneur	 of	 the	 Year	

Award	 (ETEYA)	competition	 is	designed	 to	 identify	

and reward the business endeavours of emergent 

tourism business enterprises on a national basis. 

The initiative is a partnership between the National 

Department	 of	 Tourism,	 South	 African	 Tourism	

and the various provincial tourism authorities. The 

objective of the competition is to promote a culture 

of	 business	 excellence	 in	 South	 Africa’s	 tourism	

sector.

With	 the	 assistance	 and	 guidance	 of	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal,	 some	 18	 KwaZulu-Natal-based	

entrepreneurs	 entered	 the	 2010	 competition,	with	

three	exceptional	local	businesses	being	shortlisted	

as	 Provincial	 Finalists.	 They	 included	 the	 Ebandla	

Hotel	 at	 Ballito,	 the	 Nongoma	 Inn	 and	 Durban’s	

Mgazi	Travel	and	Tours.

Following an intensive adjudication process, 

Ebandla	 Hotel	 was	 named	 as	 KwaZulu-Natal’s	

provincial winner, joining the other eight provincial 

winners	in	the	finals	of	the	competition.

All	nine	provincial	winners	went	 to	 the	well-known	

and	 influential	 International	 Tourism	 Börse	 (ITB)	 in	

Berlin,	Germany,	where	they	exhibited	their	business	

operations.

Ebandla	 Hotel	 was	 named	 as	 the	 national	 third	

runner-up	in	the	2010	ETEYA.

Performance Highlights: 
Implementation of Safety and Awareness Plan-

Tourism	Awareness	Workshops	–	

•	 The	Zululand	and	uThungulu	District	

Municipalities	were	identified	as	priority	areas;

•	 Task	teams	were	formed	and	logistical	

arrangements	made;

•	 The	first	safety	and	awareness	workshop	was	

held	in	Richards	Bay	in	September	2010.	This	

was	a	joint	initiative	with	the	uThungulu	District	

Municipality	and	the	Department	of	Economic	

Development	and	Tourism;

•	 A	second	workshop	was	held	with	the	Zululand	

District	Municipality	partnering	with	the	Ulundi	

Local	Municipality	in	February	2011;	and

•	 A	third	workshop	was	held	with	the	Zululand	

District	Municipality	partnering	with	the	Kwa-

Nongoma	Local	Municipality.	Encouragingly,	

more	than	100	stakeholders	attended	this	

event,	with	a	total	of	almost	300	stakeholders	

attending	the	three	workshops,	inclusive	of	

the	SAPS,	councillors,	district	tourism	officers,	

tourism trade representatives and government 

department representatives.

Safety	and	Awareness	Road-show	–	

•	 Apart	from	the	workshops,	a	road-show	was	

also	undertaken,	visiting	KwaMashu,	outside	

Durban.	This	was	a	joint	initiative	between	

eThekwini	Metro,	the	Office	of	the	Premier,	

Vukukhanye	Community	Development	and	the	

Department	of	Economic	Development	and	

Tourism. The road-show attracted more than   

2	000	people.

Safety	Tips	Brochure	–	

•	 20	000	safety	tips	brochures	were	produced	

and	distributed	in	the	2010/11	financial	year.	

Many	of	these	were	specifically	distributed	

during	the	2010	FIFA	World	Cup.

Safety-Related	Meetings		–	

•	 Tourism KwaZulu-Natal was represented at 

monthly	Provincial	Priority	Committee	Meetings	

on	Tourism;

•	 Tourism KwaZulu-Natal was represented at 

quarterly	Okhahlamba	Drakensberg	World	

Heritage	Site	task	team	meetings;

•	 Prior	to	the	World	Cup,	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	

was	represented	at	various	planning	sessions;	

and

61



•	 Tourism KwaZulu-Natal contributed towards 

the development of a standard operating 

procedure with regard to tourist safety during 

the	2010	World	Cup.																																																									

Tourism BEE and SMME Advisory Services:

•	 TKZN	facilitated	a	Tourism	Sector	Codes	

Workshop	in	partnership	with	the	National	

Department	of	Tourism’s	Transformation	

Directorate.	A	session,	involving	senior	

management,	the	Board,	District	Municipalities	

and	the	Department	of	Economic	Development	

and Tourism was arranged with a view to 

reporting	on	the	progress	of	the	Tourism	Sector	

Codes;

•	 Four	stakeholder	sessions	were	held	in	the	

Zululand	and	uThungulu	District	Municipality,	

covering	the	Ulundi,	Nongoma	and	eThekwini	

Municipalities.	Participants	were	appraised	of	

the	status	of	the	Tourism	Sector	Codes;

•	 Secondary	market	platforms	were	identified	in	

Eastern	Europe,	Central	and	South	America	

and African countries to ensure the business 

linkage	process	for	a	number	of	enterprises.	

Seven	SMME	businesses	participated,	

including	two	in	the	2010	FITA	in	Mexico	and	

five	in	the	33rd	International	Tourism	Fair	in	

Belgrade,	Serbia;

•	 Assisted	five	SMME	businesses	selected	to	be	

a	part	of	the	2010	ETEYA	competition.	Part	of	

their training included participation in various 

workshops,	including	the	Cape	Town	Expo;

•	 Facilitated	the	formation	of	Africa	Unite	(Pty)	

Ltd, funded its operational plan, conducted 

uniform branding of nine Afriportico 

establishments and two tour operators, co-

ordinated its membership drive in various 

district municipalities and secured a stand 

to	market	the	Afriportico	brand	at	the	2010	

Tourism	Indaba.	The	brand	was	launched	

during	the	Tourism	Indaba;

•	 Provided	tourism	business-related	information	

to	444	public	and	private	stakeholders	in	

the	form	of	SMME/BEE	business	advisory	

services	workshops	held	at	Tourism	KwaZulu-

Natal’s	offices	on	a	bi-monthly	basis	and	in	the	

Zululand	District	Municipality	in	February	2011;

•	 Reported	on	all	aspects	of	B-BBEE	within	the	

area	of	operation	during	quarterly	National	

Department	of	Tourism	and	Department	of	

Economic	Development	and	Tourism	Provincial	

B-BBEE	Focal	Points	meetings;

•	 Encouraged	SMME/BEE	enterprises	to	

register with Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ahead 

of star grading assistance. Accreditation was 

scheduled	for	May	2011;	and

•	 Facilitated star grading for four accommodation 

establishments	in	eThekwini	Metro,	uThukela	

and	Amajuba	District	Municipalities.	Liaised	

with	other	District	Municipalities	with	a	view	

to	ensuring	that	SMMEs	are	appraised	of	the	

new grading criteria. Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

and	eThekwini	Municipality’s	Strategic	Projects	

Unit called upon registered emerging and 

established tour operators to provide proposals 

for	the	staging	of	packaged	tours	for	visitors	

for	the	duration	of	the	World	Cup.	Some	25	

applications were received from tour operators, 

based	mainly	in	Durban	and	surrounds.	Of	

this	number,	19	were	short-listed	and	later	

selected	to	provide	packaged	tours	for	the	

Visitor	Centre.	A	total	of	11	of	the	19	selected	

tour operators were historically disadvantaged 

individuals operating emerging tour operator 

enterprises.

Investment Promotion:

•	 Packaged	30	tourism	investment	projects	

through the production of an investment 

brochure, promoting the Zulu Kingdom as a 

premier	destination	for	investment.	Included	

in	this	brochure	is	the	IsiBhubhu	Project,	the	

Isandlwana	Heritage	Site,	Woodstock	Dam,	

Jozini	Dam	and	the	Nonoti	Coastal	Beach	

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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projects. These projects were promoted to 

international	platforms	in	Serbia;

•	 Participated	in	the	2010	HICA	and	exhibited	

tourism investment opportunities in partnership 

with	Trade	&	Investment	KwaZulu-Natal	and	the	

Elan	Group.	Facilitated	the	HICA	conference	

which	was	to	take	place	in	May	2011,	

involving	Trade	&	Investment	KwaZulu-Natal	

and	the	Tourism	Business	Council	of	South	

Africa.	Liaised	with	officials	from	TBCSA	to	

conclude the logistics of the event in line with 

the	Memorandum	of	Understanding	signed	

between	the	entities;

•	 The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal investment 

brochure	included	packaged	identified	sites	

available for hotel development in the coastal 

areas	of	KwaZulu-Natal;

•	 Facilitated audits on all tourism projects in 

conjunction	with	partners,	such	as	Trade	&	

Investment	KwaZulu-Natal,	the	Department	

of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism	and	

private	investors.	A	request	for	proposals	for	

feasibility studies for the redevelopment of the 

Salt	Rock	Hotel	as	a	beach	resort	development	

in	conjunction	with	the	Ndwedwe	Cultural	Hub;

•	 Facilitated	requests	for	proposals	for	a	pre-

feasibility study for the development of a resort 

in	Richards	Bay;

•	 Facilitated the process of obtaining applications 

for environmental authorisation, subject to 

basic assessment for the Umnini Conference 

Centre,	lodge	and	cultural	village;

•	 Completed	the	beach	tourism	project	(Nonoti)	

feasibility	study	and	business	plan;

•	 Completed	the	business	plan	for	the	St	Lucia	

community	development	project.	Meetings	

with various funding institutions were held in 

an effort to secure funding. Through Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal’s	intervention,	the	Department	

of	Trade	and	Industry	has	shown	interest	in	

financing	the	project;	and

•	 A re-conceptualisation document for Lilani 

Hotsprings was developed and was submitted 

to	the	National	Department	of	Tourism	and	

uMzinyathi	District	Municipality	for	funding.

Skills Development:

•	 120	historically	disadvantaged	individuals	

operating	emerging	guest	houses	and	B&B	

operations	from	11	District	Municipalities	

underwent	hospitality	skills	training;

•	 40	SMME	operators	received	trade/consumer	

exhibition	and	show	training,	with	a	specific	

focus	on	the	Tourism	Indaba,	in	partnership	

with	the	Tourism	Enterprise	Partnership.	

Training	was	undertaken	in	various	District	

Municipalities	and	covered	business	skills,	

marketing,	tourism	awareness	and	service	

excellence;

•	 11	SMME	travel	agencies	attended	the	Galileo	

Training,	facilitated	by	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal;

•	 SMME/BEE	enterprises	were	utilised	for	the	

transportation of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal guests 

during various media familiarisation and trade 

trips	and	sporting	events;

•	 Some	400	SMME/BEE	operations	were	

exposed	to	tourism	business	advisory	services	

through	platforms,	such	as	the	Mayoral	

Business	Development	Committee	in	the	

eThekwini	Municipality,	bi-monthly	business	

advisory service sessions at Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal,	TEP	offices	and	the	Zululand	District	

Municipality;

•	 Assisted	15	SMMEs,	who	through	the	

incubator programme facilitated in partnership 

with	the	Department	of	Economic	Development	

and	Tourism,	TEP,	FEDHASA	and	SATSA,	were	

exposed	to	Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal’s	secondary	

market,	with	two	participating	in	the	Tourism	

Indaba;

•	 Facilitated	the	participation	of	Ebandla	Hotel	

and	Conference	Centre	at	the	2010	HICA	

conference	with	a	view	to	exposing	the	owners	

to	other	hospitality	investors	from	the	SADC	
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region	and	further	abroad;

•	 Facilitated and monitored grading and 

accreditation	of	SMME/BEE	operators.	

District	Municipalities	submitted	the	names	

of	enterprises	requiring	grading	and	the	

registration	and	verification	of	such	enterprises	

were	completed.		Amajuba,	Ugu,	Sisonke,	

uThungulu	and	uThukela	were	requested	to	

ensure	that	BEE	operations	registered	with	

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ahead of Tourism 

KwaZulu-Natal/Tourism	Grading	Council	of	

South	Africa	commencement	of	star	grading.	

A total of four accommodation establishments 

were	graded.	The	Zulu	Mpophomni	Tourism	

Experience	launched	its	first	star-graded	

establishment,	Siphumelele	B&B.	Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal	attended	the	launch	as	a	key	

stakeholder	for	district	municipalities	with	

regard	to	SMME	development.

Destination Development:

•			Tourism	Master	Plan	and	Tourism	Development			

					Plans	and	Strategies:	

•	 Inception	Report;

•	 Steering	Committee	formed;

•	 Attended the inception meeting and 

commented on the methodology, as 

outlined	in	the	Terms	of	Reference;

•	 Attended	Planning	and	Development	

Committee	meetings	and	workshops	with	

stakeholders;

•	 Served	on	the	Steering	Committee	in	an	

advisory	capacity;

•	 Tabling	of	a	draft	Situational	Analysis	

Report;

•	 Attended	the	Global	Carbon	Project	

meeting,	where	the	Master	Plan	appears	as	

a	standing	item	on	the	agenda;

•	 Assisted with the formulation of the Tourism 

Investment	Brochure;	and

•	 Assisted	with	the	Tourism	Plan	and	Strategy	

for	the	Hlabisa	Municipality,	with	the	

Department	of	Economic	Development	and	

Tourism as implementing agent.

•				Assisted	with	the	formulation	of	business	plans	

						and	the	packaging	of	the	following	projects:	

•	 Isandlwana	Museum;

•	 Sosobala	Lodge;

•	 IsiBhubhu	Phase	2	and	Phase	3	projects;

•	 Cosololo	Lodge	project,	near	Nongoma;

•	 Esigodlweni	Sasemnini	Project;	and

•	 Port	Durnford	project.

•				Assessed	the	following	community	projects	from	

     a tourism potential perspective:

•	 Inkezo	Cultural	Village	at	KwaShange	and	

KwaGezubuso	Tribal	Authority;

•	 Ndabmhlope	Cultural	Village,	which	

will include a conference centre and 

accommodation;

•	 Eshayumoya	B&B	at	Enkonjeni,	near		

Ulundi;	and	

•	 Qanda	Nature	and	Tourism	Centre	at	

KwaQanda.

•				Tourism	Routes:

•				Route	66	Zululand	Heritage	Route:

•	 Assisted in the formulation of a Business 

and	Implementation	Plan	for	the	Route	66	

Zululand	Heritage	Route;

•	 Worked	with	stakeholders	to	determine	the	

extent	and	nature	of	the	route;

•	 Identified	tourism	development	and	

marketing	requirements	for	the	route;

•	 Addressed infrastructure and signage 

requirements	for	the	route;	and

•	 Addressed operational, developmental and 

funding	requirements	associated	with	the	

route.

•				Sisonke	Stimela	Railway	Tourism	Route:

•	 Assisted	with	the	Sisonke	Stimela	Railway	

Tourism	Route	through	the	unblocking	

Performance Information
Tourism Development
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of the branch line and the launch of the 

project. Assisted with the formulation 

and implementation of a business plan 

for	Sisonke	Stimela.	From	a	strategic	

perspective,	the	Sisonke	Stimela	business	

plan	links	with	the	Railway	Tourism	Study	

conducted	during	the	previous	financial	

year.	The	study	identified	the	development	

of	the	Pietermaritzburg	Southern	Drakensberg	

route	as	a	priority.	The	Sisonke	Stimela	

Business	Plan	also	complements	the	

establishment	of	the	Cape	Ingwe	Natal	

Line, which Tourism KwaZulu-Natal has 

implemented.

•    Freedom	Route:

•	 Reviewed	and	reprinted	the	Freedom			

Route	brochure.

•    King	Shaka	Tourism	Route:

•	 Tourism	KwaZulu-Natal	and	Enterprise	

Ilembe	revived	the	project	and	additional	

funding was obtained through the KZN 

Corridor Fund to implement the route. 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal serves on the 

Steering	Committee	and	implemented	

signage	requirements	for	the	route.	

Infrastructural	requirements	were	upgraded	

by	the	KwaDukuza	Municipality,	again	

through the KZN Corridor Fund.

•    Route	22	Elephant	Coast	Route:

•	 uMhlosinga	appointed	Urban	Econ	as	

a service provider in order to conduct 

a	feasibility	study	for	Route	22.	Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal assisted with the Terms 

of	Reference,	serving	on	the	Steering	

Committee and assisting with the 

implementation	of	the	study;	and

•	 Tourism KwaZulu-Natal conducted a 

presentation	for	the	benefit	of	tourism	

stakeholders	in	Hluhluwe	on	how	best	

to include Accessible Tourism into the 

development	of	Route	22	between	

Matubatuba	and	Ponto	Do	Ouro.	An	

assessment of a number of product 

offerings, from an Accessible Tourism 

perspective in the Hluhluwe surrounds was 

also conducted.

•    Coastal	MOU	Route:

•	 The production and printing of a new 

Coastal	Route	brochure	was	finalised	and	

marketing	information	was	forwarded	to	

Cape	Routes	Unlimited.

•    Tourism	Script:

•	 Compiled a detailed tourism script for 

tourism	routes	within	KwaZulu-Natal;	and

•	 Compiled abbreviated tourism scripts for 

tourism routes within KwaZulu-Natal.

•    Global	Competitiveness	Study:

•	 Assisted	in	the	identification	and	formulation	

of tourism projects for the Global Carbon 

Project	Study;

•	 Gathered information regarding the 

status of these projects through relevant 

stakeholders;

•	 Packaged	prioritised	projects	in	an	

investment	brochure;

•	 Served	on	the	Steering	and	Technical	

Committee for the Global Competitiveness 

Study;	and	

•	 Assisted with Land Affairs projects.

•				New	Tourism	Projects:

•    Assisted with the formulation of business plans 

      and	the	packaging	of	the	following	projects:

•	 Isandlwana	Museum;

•	 Sosobala	Lodge;

•	 IsiBhubhu	Phase	2	and	Phase	3	projects;

•	 Cosololo	Lodge	project,	near	Nongoma;

•	 Esigodlweni	Sasemnini	Project;	and
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•	 Port	Durnford	project.

•				Assessed	the	following	community	projects	from	

     a tourism potential perspective:

•	 Inkezo	Cultural	Village	at	KwaShange	and	

KwaGezubuso	Tribal	Authority;

•	 Ndabmhlope	Cultural	Village,	which	

will include a conference centre and 

accommodation;

•	 Eshayumoya	B&B	at	Enkonjeni,	near		

Ulundi;	and

•	 Qanda	Nature	and	Tourism	Centre	at	

KwaQanda.

•				Existing	Tourism	Projects:

•	 Implemented	the	IsiBhubhu	project	for	

hand-over.

•				Tourism	Infrastructure:

•	 Identified	tourism	signage	requirements	for	

KwaZulu-Natal from submissions received 

from	the	District	and	Local	Municipalities	

through	the	Provincial	Tourism	Forum;

•	 Formulated	a	Cabinet	Memorandum	for	tourism	

signage	and	road	infrastructure	for	2010;

•	 Completed a proposal and delivered 

a presentation to KZN Corridor Fund 

representatives,	seeking	assistance	

for funding for KwaZulu-Natal signage 

requirements;

•	 Implemented	the	signage	requirements	

for	the	Route	66	Zululand	Heritage	Route	

through	the	Umlalazi	Municipality;	and

•	 Implemented	the	Gateway	signage	

requirements	for	the	Central	and	Northern	

Drakensberg.

•				IsiBhubhu:

•	 The project comprised the development of 

infrastructure	required	to	accommodate	the	

Royal	Reed	Dance	at	Enyokeni	Palace,	near	

Nongoma. The following deliverables were 

to	be	constructed:	roads,	parking,	fencing,	

monument,	gatehouse	(main	entrance),	

as well as electrical, water and plumbing 

installation, landscaping and covered 

pavilion;	and

•	 The	construction	of	the	IsiBhubhu	project	

was progressing well, although inclement 

weather	led	to	an	extension	of	time	being	

approved for completion of phase one 

to	the	end	of	March	2011.	The	MoA	for	

phase two was signed and the phase 

two business plan was submitted to 

the	National	Department	of	Tourism.	

The commencement of phase two was 

expected	by	May	2011,	with	completion	

scheduled	for	September	2011,	ahead	of	

the	next	Reed	Dance.

Division Performance

The	 Tourism	 Development	 Division	 achieved	 all	

targets detailed in the action plan.

Performance Information
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Destination 
Development

Destination	
Development

Development	of	
tourism routes

Level of 
success in the 
development of 
tourism routes

Tourism routes 
developed and 
packaged

•	TKZN	assisted	with	the	
development	and	packaging	
of the following routes: 
Sisonke	Stimela	Railway	
Tourism	Route;	King	Shaka	
Heritage	Route;	Freedom	
Route	Brochure;	and	Route	
22	on	behalf	of	Umhlosinga.
•	Support	is	reflected	below.
-	Sisonke	Stimela	Railway	
Tourism	Route	through	the	
unblocking	of	the	branch	line	
and the launch of the project 
in	April	2010.
- Addressed the infrastructure 
and	signage	requirements	for	
the route.
-	Enterprise	Ilembe	and	
TKZN revived the King 
Shaka	Heritage	Route	and	
sourced additional funding for 
implementation through the 
KZN Corridor Fund. 
-	Reviewed	and	reprinted	the	
freedom	Route	Brochure.
- TKZN assisted with the 
development of Terms 
of	Reference	for	the	
appointment of a service 
provider to conduct a 
feasibility	study	for	Route	
22	on	behalf	of	Umhlosinga.	
TKZN committed to assist 
with the implementation of 
a study and to serve on the 
steering committee to help 
drive the success of the 
route.
•	TKZN	compiled	detailed	
and abbreviated tourism 
scripts for the tourism routes 
within KwaZulu-Natal.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Destination	
development

Tourism	Master	
Plan	formulation	

Assist in the 
formulation of a 
Tourism	Master	
Plan

Tourism	Master	
Plan	formulated	
in conjunction 
with tourism 
stakeholders

•	TKZN	contributed	to	
the development of the 
Provincial	Tourism	Master	
Plan	commissioned	by	
DEDT,	through	participation	
in	different	working	groups	
spanning	Planning	and	
Development,	Marketing,	
Human	Resource	
Development	and	Service	
Excellence.	TKZN	also	
participated	in	stakeholder	
consultation sessions to 
familiarise themselves with 
sentiment of the trade.
•	Contribution	into	the	
Master	Plan	included	TKZN	
Board input, where the 
Board made comments and 
recommendations to the 
process and content.
•	The	Master	Plan	is	
expected	to	be	finalised	by	
the	end	of	September	2011.

To facilitate 
tourism 
investment 
projects

Level of success 
in securing 
investment and 
development as 
recommended 
in the Global 
Competitiveness 
Study

Packaging	
of tourism 
investment 
projects and 
marketing	in	
conjunction 
with	Trade	&	
Investment	
KwaZulu-Natal

•	Assisted	with	the	
formulation of the Business 
Plan	and	the	packaging	of	
the following projects:
-	Isandlwana	Museum;	
-	Sosobala	Lodge;
-	IsiBhubhu	Phase	2	and	3		
		projects;
- Cosololo Lodge project   
		near	Nongoma;
-	Esigodlweni	Sasemnini	
		Project;	and
-	Port	Durnford	project.
•	A	compilation	of	tourism	
projects	packaged	for	
investment promotion was 
undertaken	for	use	at	shows,	
exhibitions	and	for	individual	
presentations.

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Destination	
Development

•	St	Lucia	Project
The	Business	Plan	for	
the	St	Lucia	community	
development project has 
been completed. 
•	Meetings	with	various	
funding institutions such as 
the	Department	of	Trade	and	
Industry	and	the	Independent	
Development	Trust	have	been	
undertaken	in	order	to	seek	
funding.

Develop	and	
implement 
community- 
owned tourism 
projects

Level of 
success in the 
implementation, 
closing and 
hand-over 
of poverty 
alleviation 
projects

Completion 
and hand-over 
of community- 
owned tourism 
projects

•	Phase	1	of	the	IsiBhubhu	
project, which entails the 
development of infrastructure 
needed to accommodate 
the	Royal	Reed	Dance	
at	the	Enyokeni	Palace,	
near Nongoma, has been 
completed, providing the 
following deliverables: road 
upgrade,	parking,	fencing,	
gatehouse, electrical, water 
and plumbing installation, 
landscaping and a covered 
pavilion.
•	An	extension	of	time,	due	
to inclement weather, was 
approved	to	end	of	March	
2011.	A	business	plan	for	
Phase	2	was	submitted	to	
the	National	Department	of	
Tourism	(NDT)	for	approval	
and	funding.	NDT	is	
planning to have a high-
level	stakeholder	inspection	
and a launch ahead of the 
hosting	of	the	2011	Umkhosi	
Womhlanga	Event	in	
September.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Destination	
Development

Nonoti Beach Resort 
•	The	beach	tourism	project	
(Nonoti)	bankable	Feasibility	
Study	has	been	completed,	
together with a Business 
Plan.	
•	The	marketing	
assessments, together with 
the	financial	feasibility	of	the	
project, are covered in the 
Feasibility	Study	document.	
In	the	document,	the	financial	
feasibility comprises a base 
model and two alternative 
models for the purpose of 
financial	projections.	Other	
issues covered in the study 
include the operator search 
report, whereby suitable hotel 
operators	with	experience	in	
running beach resorts were 
identified	and	shortlisted,	and	
a legal due diligence report 
which	identifies,	amongst	
other things, the legal 
authority of the trust.
Lilani Hotsprings
•	The	project	was	re-
conceptualised and a 
Business	Plan	for	R20	
million was submitted to 
the	National	Department	
of Tourism for funding and 
was	approved.	It	was	also	
submitted	to	the	uMzinyathi	
District	Municipality.

Safety	and	
Awareness

Implementation	
of the tourism 
Safety	and	
Awareness	Plan

Number of 
awareness  
workshops	held	
and reduction in 
criminal cases 
against tourists

Facilitate the 
participation 
of tourism 
stakeholders	
in tourism 
safety cluster 
meetings using 
workshops.
Increased	
awareness of 
tourism safety 
issues by tourism 
stakeholders

•	In	the	roll-out	of	the	Safety	
and	Awareness	Plan,	priority	
was given to Zululand and 
uThungulu	Districts,	where	
safety and awareness 
workshops	were	hosted	in	a	
joint	effort	with	DEDT	and	the	
District	Municipalities.
Local	hosts	were	Richards	
Bay	in	September	2010,	
Ulundi	on	16	February	and	
Nongoma	on	17	February	
2011.

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Safety	and	
Awareness

Safety	and	Awareness	Road-
show
•	In	addition	to	the	three	
workshops,	a	safety	and	
awareness	briefing	was	
held for tourism buddies 
in	preparation	for	Indaba	
2010,	and	a	road-show	was	
also	undertaken	on	22	May	
2010	in	KwaMashu.	This	
was	a	Joint	Venture	between	
eThekwini	Municipality,	
the	Office	of	the	Premier,	
Vukukhanye	Community	
Development	and	the	
Department	of	Economic	
Development	and	Tourism.	
The road-show was attended 
by	more	than	2	000	people.	
Safety	Tips	Brochures
•	20	000	Safety	Tips	
pamphlets were produced 
and distributed during the 
year	under	review.	Many	
of the pamphlets were 
distributed	during	the	2010	
FIFA	World	Cup,	which	was	a	
huge success with no major 
incidents against tourists 
reported.
	•	In	order	to	improve	the	
safety of tourists during the 
2010	World	Cup,	Tourism	
KwaZulu-Natal contributed 
towards the development 
of a standard operating 
procedure	by	the	SAPS.	
This document was used to 
promote a safe environment 
for tourists who attended the 
event.

Tourism 
Infrastructure

Development	
of Tourism 
infrastructure

Identify	tourism	
infrastructure 
needs within the 
destinations

Level of 
success in the 
implementation 
of tourism 
infrastructure 
needs as 
identified	within	
the destinations

•	Implemented	the	signage	
requirements	for	Route	
66, the Zululand Heritage 
Route,	through	the	Umlalazi	
Municipality.
•	Implemented	the	gateway	
signage	requirements	for	
the Central and Northern 
Drakensberg.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Transformation Skills	
development for 
tourism sector 
with focus on 
BEE	enterprises

Facilitation 
of training 
interventions 
required	to	
address	skills	
gaps within the 
tourism sector

Number 
of training 
interventions 
undertaken	to	
address	skills	
gaps within the 
tourism	BEE	
SMMEs

•	Three	major	training	
interventions were 
undertaken	aimed	at	tourism	
BEE	SMMEs.	They	included:	
ETEYA	2010/11;	Mentorship	
Programme;	and	Secondary	
Markets	Programme.
•	Training	details	and	
exposure	included	the	
following:
-	ETEYA	2010/11:	The	
annual	Emerging	Tourism	
Entrepreneur	of	the	Year	
Awards	(ETEYA)	programme,	
an	initiative	by	South	African	
Tourism, the nine provincial 
tourism	authorities,	SAB	
Miller	and	the	Tourism	
Enterprise	Partnership,	
was	successfully	executed	
with nine provincial winners 
attending business and 
financial	workshops.	
- Three KwaZulu-Natal 
Small,	Medium	and	Micro	
Enterprises	proceeded	to	the	
semi-finals.	They	were:
-	Mgazi	Tours;
-	Nongoma	Inn;	and
-	Ebandla	Hotel	and	
  Conference Centre. 

-	KwaZulu-Natal’s	2010/11	
finalist	was	Ebandla	Hotel	
and Conference Centre. 
The business continued 
with	the	final	stages	of	the	
competition by participating 
at	ITB	Berlin,	where	a	national	
winner was selected.
-	Assisted	15	Small,	Medium	
and	Micro	Enterprises	
through the Tourism 
Mentorship	Programme	
which was conducted 
with	the	Department	of	
Economic	Development	and	
Tourism and the Tourism 
Enterprise	Partnership.	Two	
of the mentees were part 
of	a	secondary	markets	
programme and these 
mentees were selected to 
be	part	of	the	2011	Tourism	
Indaba.

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Transformation Tourism	Skills	
development for 
youth

Level of 
success in the 
involvement and 
training of youth 
in the tourism 
industry.
Level of 
exposure	of	
youth in tourism- 
related careers

Number 
of training 
interventions 
facilitated in 
order to address 
the	tourism	skills	
gap of KZN 
youth.
Facilitate the 
participation of 
‘youth in tourism’ 
in the Careers 
Expo.	Number	
of tourism 
awareness 
platforms aimed 
at	exposing	
youth to 
opportunities

•	TKZN	used	graduate	
internship programmes 
to contribute towards the 
training and development of 
youth in the industry.
•	It	also	hosted	students	
to help with in-service 
training in order to aid them 
towards gaining their tourism 
qualification.
•	The	provincial	workshops	
on tourism safety and 
awareness were used to 
expose	youth	to	tourism	
opportunities.
•	Although	the	Career	Expo	
2010	was	postponed,	TKZN	
continued to assist youth 
with	exposure	in	tourism.	
It	actively	promoted	NDT/
DEDT’s	Tourism	Ambassador	
programme, where tourism 
businesses were engaged 
and encouraged to host 
tourism graduates for 
practical	work	experience	
while they were enrolled 
in	weekly	tourism	classes	
facilitated	by	a	NDT-
appointed service provider.  
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Transformation 2010	FIFA	World	
Cup	tourism	BEE	
Plan

Ensure	
meaningful 
participation of 
BEE	tourism	
business in the 
2010	FIFA	World	
Cup

Number of 
platforms 
created	for	BEE	
tourism business 
to ensure 
participation in 
the	2010	FIFA	
World	Cup

•	Five	platforms	or	
interventions were 
launched	to	support	SMME	
participation	in	the	2010	FIFA	
World	Cup,	including:
-	Fan	festival	centre;
- Tours facilitation for 
emerging	tour	operators;
-	SMME	agencies	lobbied	to	
support	TKZN’s	efforts;	and
- Grading assistance for 
SMMEs;
-	Exhibited	packaged	tours.
•	TKZN	and	the	eThekwini	
Municipality’s	Strategic	
Projects	Unit	called	upon	
registered emerging and 
established tour operators 
to provide a comprehensive 
proposal for the staging 
of	packaged	tours	for	the	
benefit	of	visitors	for	the	
duration	of	the	World	Cup.	A	
total	of	25	applications	were	
received from tour operators 
based,	mainly,	in	Durban	and	
surrounding	areas.	Of	this	
number,	19	tour	operators	
were short-listed and later 
selected	to	provide	packaged	
tours	for	the	Visitor	Centre.	
Of	this	number,	11	tour	
operators	selected	were	HDI	
emerging tour operators.
•	The	launch	of	the	2010	
FIFA	World	Cup	Fan	Festival	
Centre	took	place	on	10	June	
2010.	
•	The	Centre	also	provided	
a facility for tour operators 
selected	to	exhibit	packaged	
tours	and	to	network	with	
other enterprises participating 
in the fan festival. TKZN 
committed itself to manning 
the	Tour	Operator	Visitor	
Centre for the duration of the 
World	Cup.
•	During	the	year	under	
review, the Transformation 
Unit proactively lobbied all 
relevant	Small,	Medium	
and	Micro	Enterprise	
support agencies to support 
emerging tourism products. 

Performance Information
Tourism Development
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

•	TKZN,	in	partnership	with	
the Tourism Grading Council 
of	South	Africa	(TGCSA),	
Amajuba,	uThukela	and	
Ugu	District	Municipalities,	
together	with	eThekwini	
Municipality	assisted	
Small,	Medium	and	Micro	
Enterprise	accommodation	
establishments	which	require	
star grading by conducting 
pre-grading site inspections 
to establish their level of 
readiness for grading. 
•	Establishment	owners	were	
advised to adhere to the 
TGCSA	grading	criteria	so	
as	to	qualify	for	star	grading,	
as this would increase 
levels	of	exposure	for	their	
establishments.
•	To	date,	five	guest	houses	
have been graded in the 
above-mentioned district 
municipalities and they 
qualified	for	4-star	grading.

Implementation	
of the Tourism 
Sector	Codes

Roll-out	of	
the Tourism 
Sector	Codes	
Programme

Register	
and record 
contributions of 
CSI	activities	by	
TKZN

Level of sucess 
in the number 
of tourism 
businesses 
verified	and	are	
BEE-compliant.

Records	of	CSI	
contributions

•	Facilitation	of	a	Tourism	
Sector	Codes	Workshop,	in	
partnership	with	the	NDT’s	
Transformation	Directorate,	
has	been	undertaken.	
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

•	TKZN	and	the	DEDT	
continued participating 
in	Black	Economic	
Empowerment	National	
and	Provincial	Focal	Point	
meetings,	held	quarterly	
during	the	2010/2011	
financial	year.
•	Four	stakeholder	sessions	
were used to appraise 
participants of the status of 
the Tourism Charter, held in 
Zululand and the uThungulu 
District	Municipality,	covering	
Ulundi and Nongoma, as 
well	as	in	the	eThekwini	
Municipality.		

Information	
and advisory 
services to 
Black	Economic	
Empowerment	
entrepreneurs

Ongoing	
provision of 
tourism business 
advisory 
services to 
Black	Economic	
Empowerment	
and	Small,	
Medium	and	
Micro	Enterprises

Number of 
Black	Economic	
Empowerment	
and	Small,	
Medium	and	
Micro	Enterprise	
tourism 
businesses 
provided with 
advisory services

•	Tourism	business	advisory	
services and information 
dissemination was 
provided to 444 aspiring 
Small,	Medium	and	Micro	
Enterprises	through	weekly	
workshops	and	one-on-one	
interactions.
•	Tourism	Safety	and	
Awareness	workshops	
were also utilised for further 
advisory and information 
service	undertakings	in	
uThungulu and Zululand 
District	Municipalities.

Facilitation 
of business 
linkages	for	
Black	Economic	
Empowerment	
and	Small,	
Medium	and	
Micro	Enterprises	
with established 
tourism entities

Facilitate a 
partnership with 
SEDA

Number of 
business	linkages	
successfully 
facilitated

•	Facilitated	business	
linkages	for	15	historically	
disadvantaged tour operators 
in the following destinations 
and platforms:
-	Secondary	markets,	being:	
Eastern	Europe,	Central	and	
South	America	and	African	
countries.
•	Platforms,	being:
-	2010	International	Tourism	
Fare	of	the	Americas	(FITA)	in	
Mexico	in	September	2010	
and
-	The	33rd	International	
Tourism Fair in Belgrade, 
Serbia	between	24	and	27	
February	2011.

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

•	25	tour	operators	were	
exposed	to	the	2010	FIFA	
World	Cup,	in	conjunction	
with	eThekwini	Municipality.
•	40	SMMEs	formed	part	of	
the Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 
Tourism	Indaba	training	
programme and will be part 
of	the	2011	Tourism	Indaba	
in	May	2011.

Transformation Facilitate 
the inclusion 
of tourism 
on services 
supported by 
various business 
centres focusing 
on	Small,	
Medium	and	
Micro	enterprises

Successful	
hand-over of 
advisory services 
to	SEDA.

Inclusion	of	
tourism in 
business centres

•	The	Transformation	Unit	
engaged	the	Enterprise	
Development	Unit	within	
the	DEDT	in	2010,	at	
which the viability of joining 
efforts in the creation of the 
proposed Tourism KwaZulu-
Natal business centres 
with	the	DEDT	one-stop-
shops was discussed. The 
meeting concluded with 
a recommendation that 
TKZN’s business centre 
concept should be included 
in the department’s one-
stop-shops. This would 
eliminate duplication, as the 
department’s one-stop-shops 
were	already	in	existence	in	
all	District	Municipalities	and	
were allocated personnel in 
the	form	of	District	Managers	
who	work	in	partnership	with	
SEDA	in	providing	information	
and business start-up 
advisory services. 
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

•	TKZN	and	the	DEDT	agreed	
that	all	District	Managers	
would be trained by TKZN 
in order to capacitate 
them with relevant tourism 
information	and	knowledge.	
Information	brochures,	such	
as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s 
‘How	to	Start	a	Business’,	
tourism	statistics	and	TEP’s	
Toolkit	will	be	provided	as	
support documents during 
such training and will be 
further distributed to all of 
the department’s one-stop-
shops.
•	The	Transformation	Unit	
presented	its	Small,	Medium	
and	Micro	Enterprise	
advisory	services	and	Quality	
Assurance programme at 
the	Vryheid	Local	Tourism	
Association.

Performance Information
Tourism Development
continued
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Objectives
•	 To provide an enabling environment to 

ensure	that	employees’	skills,	knowledge	

and attributes are applied to ensure 

maximum	benefit;

•	 To provide a reliable support service to 

assist the business units in carrying out their 

strategic objectives in line with statutory 

and/or	regulatory	requirements;	and

•	 To ensure that the organisation’s activities 

are aligned with its strategy. 

Key Performance Areas
•	 Maintaining	programmes	aimed	at	improving	

employee	wellness;

•	 Success	in	facilitating	training	in	response	

to	skills	gaps	identified	during	the	skills	

assessment	exercise,	as	well	as	the	

performance	review	process;

•	 Reviewing	and	revising	human	resource-

related	policies;

•	 Proper	planning	and	recruitment	to	fill	

outstanding	vacancies;

•	 Minimising	incidents	of	labour	relation	

disputes and promoting fair labour 

practices;	and

•	 Ensuring	compliance	with	organisational	

policies.

General Manager’s Overview
We	 regard	 our	 staff	 as	 being	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-

Natal’s most important asset and recognise that the 

positive contribution of each and every member of 

staff assists the organisation to meet its strategic 

business objectives and to deliver on its mandate.

Every	member	of	staff	plays	a	significant	role	in	our	

organisation’s continued growth and development 

and it is therefore critical that we employ 

individuals capable of effectively adding value 

to Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s core competencies 

and	 responsibilities.	 Equally,	 our	 organisation	

acknowledges	the	need	to	optimise	staff	productivity	

and	 well-being	 through	 the	 provision	 of	 identified	

training	 and	 skills	 development	 interventions.	 We	

believe	 such	 interventions	 not	 only	 benefit	 the	

organisation, but provide members of staff with 

invaluable opportunities for career growth.

During	 the	 2010/11	 financial	 year,	 we	 set	 about	

reviewing a number of Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

policies,	inclusive	of	our	HIV/AIDS	Policy,	our	Asset	

Management	 Policy,	 our	 Recruitment	

and	Selection	Policy	 and	 the	 Travel	

and	 Related	 Matters	 Policy.	 In	

addition, the review period saw 

the development and approval of a 

new	 policy,	 namely	 the	 Organisational	

Planning	Framework	Policy,	designed	 to	

regulate the manner in which staff report, 

provide	 for	 checks	 and	 balances	 and	

allow for the progressive up-scaling 

of necessary levels of authority 

from	 Executive	 Management	
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Every member of staff plays a significant role in our organisation’s continued growth and 
development and it is therefore critical that we employ individuals capable of effectively adding 
value to Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s core competencies and responsibilities.

Performance Information
Corporate Services
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to	 the	Board	and,	ultimately,	 to	 the	Department	of	

Economic	Development	and	Tourism.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal operates a most successful 

annual	Internship	Programme.	A	total	of	six	students	

participated	in	the	programme	during	the	2010/11	

financial	year,	gaining	valuable	experience	working	

within	 the	 Tourism	 Development	 and	 Marketing	

Divisions.	Indeed,	several	participants	were	afforded	

permanent employment with Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal, while members of the remaining group have 

all	 secured	 external	 positions	 in	 a	 range	 of	 other		

businesses.

Pleasingly,	the	moratorium	on	vacant	posts,	which	

has	 been	 in	 place	 since	 2009,	 was	 lifted	 by	 the	

provincial government allowing our organisation to 

fill	such	vacancies,	so	ensuring	that	we	again	were	

able to operate at optimum levels.

Training and development remained a priority during 

the	2010/11	financial	year.

During	this	period	all	our	members	of	staff	attended	

compulsory diversity management training, better 

equipping	 them	 to	 deal	 appropriately	 with	 people	

from	 diverse	 backgrounds	 –	 a	 vital	 attribute	 for	

working	 within	 the	 people-orientated	 tourism	

sector.	In	addition,	our	procurement	staff	members,	

together with others who could be involved in any 

form	 of	 procurement,	 were	 exposed	 to	 Supply	

Chain	Management	training,	ensuring	our	continued	

delivery	of	best	practice	ideals	in	this	complex	arena.

We	 also	 continued	 our	 staff	 study	 assistance	

programme,	 providing	 financial	 support	 for	 staff	

embarking	on	further	tertiary	studies	on	a	part-time	

basis	in	fields	relevant	to	their	work	activities.	

A	 series	 of	 seminars	 and	 workshops	 were	 also	

arranged for members of staff during the review 

period which proved both popular and highly 

successful.	 These	 sessions	 dealt	 specifically	 with	

subject matter relevant to their various job-types.

Critically	in	2010/11,	we	introduced	a	comprehensive	

Leadership	 Development	 Programme	 aimed	 at	

senior management.

This	was	an	extension	of	the	Executive	Leadership	

Development	 Programme	 which	 we	 introduced	

during	 the	 2008/09	 financial	 year	 and	 which	

focused on a range of management issues, the 

management of staff and a number of general 

issues, concentrating on the effective running of a 

business organisation.  

The	 new	 Senior	 Management	 Leadership	

Development	 Programme	 proved	 to	 be	 a	 most	

useful tool to participating managers.    

 

Performance Highlights: 
Internet-Based Banking	–	

The	 2010/11	 financial	 year	 resulted	 in	 Tourism	

KwaZulu-Natal’s migration to and implementation of 

internet-based	banking.	

The decision was based on the need to align 

the organisation with today’s generally accepted 

business practices, whilst it also provides for ease 

of payments and added security.

Senior-Management Leadership Development 

Programme	–	

The organisation’s decision to introduce a Leadership 

Development	 Programme	 for	 senior	 management	

during	 the	 review	 period	 and	 on	 the	 back	 of	 the	

2008/09	implementation	of	a	similar	programme	for	

the	organisation’s	Executive	Management	 ensures	

synergy in the overall management and operation of 

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal.

Wellness Day	–	

The health and well-being of Tourism KwaZulu-

Performance Information
Corporate Services
continued
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Natal’s staff complement is viewed as critical to 

the organisation’s success and, indeed, its overall 

growth and development.

Accordingly, the organisation arranged a special 

Wellness	 Day	 in	 November	 2010	 for	 the	 benefit	

of all its members of staff. The event provided the 

opportunity	 for	 staff	 to	 check	 their	 state	 of	 health	

and	 benefit	 from	 discussion	 about	 the	 critical	

need for wellness, coupled with the need to lead a 

healthy lifestyle in order to cope with today’s frenetic 

business environment.

Unqualified Audit Report	–	

Pleasingly,	 Tourism	 KwaZulu-Natal	 received	 an	

unqualified	Audit	Report	for	the	financial	year	ended	

31	March	2010.

Division Performance

The	Corporate	Services	Division	achieved	all	targets	

detailed in the action plan.
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Information and 
Communications 
Technology

Effective	
and	efficient	
communication 
systems

Installation	of	
Virtual	Private	
Networking	
(VPN)

Easy	access	by	
satellite	offices	to	
the main server 
and telephone 
system

June	2010 •	The	project	is	being	
undertaken	as	a	broader	part	
of addressing matters arising 
from	the	audit	of	IT	general	
controls.	The	IT	Strategy	
Workshop	is	being	planned	to	
address all issues in a holistic 
manner.

Internet	upgrade Improved	
Internet	speed

June	2010 •	The	project	is	being	
undertaken	as	a	broader	part	
of addressing matters arising 
from	the	audit	of	IT	general	
controls.	The	IT	Strategy	
Workshop	is	being	planned	to	
address all issues in a holistic 
manner.

Content	filtering Improved	
Internet	speed

December	2010 •	The	project	is	being	
undertaken	as	a	broader	part	
of addressing matters arising 
from	the	audit	of	IT	general	
controls.	The	IT	Strategy	
Workshop	is	being	planned	to	
address all issues in a holistic 
manner.

Email/server/
software upgrade

Increased	
capacity

March	2011 •	The	project	is	being	
undertaken	as	a	broader	part	
of addressing matters arising 
from	the	audit	of	IT	general	
controls.	The	IT	Strategy	
Workshop	is	being	planned	to	
address all issues in a holistic 
manner.

Human 
Resources and 
Administration

Effective	talent	
management 
and succession 
planning

Identify	talent	
pipelines, 
strengths and 
gaps

Existence	
of a pool of 
candidates for 
succession 
planning

June	2010 •	A	concept	document	was	
presented	to	the	internal	Skills	
Development	Committee	
for consideration and further 
input.	The	next	phase	included	
consultation with affected staff, 
achieved	in	March	2011.

Implementation	
of reward and 
recognition 
system

Submission	
of reward and 
recognition 
strategy and 
implementation 
plan for approval 
by the Board

Approved 
strategy and 
implementation 
plan

September	
2010

•	This	project	will	be	
undertaken	once	the	HR	and	
Administration	Manager	has	
been appointed.

Performance Information
Corporate Services
continued
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Business Unit Strategic 
Objectives

Measurable 
Objective

Performance 
Indicator 

Target Performance Result

Supply Chain 
Management 
and Logistics

Effective	contract	
management

Sourcing	of	new	
service provider 
for	all	expiring	
contracts

New contracts 
finalised

June	2010 •	The	expiring	tenders	are	
advertised and awarded on a 
continuous basis.

Improved	
inventory 
management

Effective	
Inventory	Control	
System

Existence	of	the	
Inventory	Control	
System

June	2010 •	The	project	has	been	placed	
on hold pending the relocation 
of	the	office	during	the	
2011/12	financial	year.

Effective	and	
efficient	tender	
process

Appointment and 
training of Bid 
Committees

Existence	of	
effectively 
functioning Bid 
Committees

June	2010 •	Bid	Committees	were	
appointed	in	September	2010,	
with	notification	in	writing	and	
trained accordingly.

Verification	of	
BEE	status	of	
service providers

Communication 
process with 
service providers 

At	least	80%	of	
service providers 
verified	

September	
2010

•	Bidders	for	new	tenders	
are	now	required	to	submit	
their	Black	Economic	
Empowerment	verification	
certificates	as	part	of	their	bid	
documents.

Financial 
Management

Cost-effective 
foreign	exchange	
transactions 
management

eForex	
implementation

Effective	eForex	
system

September	
2010

The	finance	staff	have	been	
trained and the system has 
been implemented.

Cost-effective 
and safe 
payment, 
subsistence and 
travel allowance

Introduction	of	
travel cards for 
international 
frequent	
travellers

Effective	
utilisation of 
cards

September	
2010

•	This	project	has	been	placed	
on hold because a number of 
countries, especially in Africa, 
do not accept credit cards as 
a form of payment.

Cost-effective 
travel and 
accommodation 
arrangements for 
travellers

Introduction	of	
corporate credit 
card

Efficient	
utilisation of 
corporate credit 
card

December	
2010

•	This	project	has	been	placed	
on hold, pending further 
assessment.

Improved	
payment system

Introduction	
of electronic 
banking	system

Utilisation of 
electronic 
banking

February
2011

•	Finance	staff	members	have	
been trained in the utilisation of 
the internet-based electronic 
banking	system.	The	system	is	
now fully operational.
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Position Advertised Department Date 
Vacated

Date 
Filled

Project	and	
Management	
Accountant

February	2010 Corporate 
Services

January	2010 July	2010

Admin Assistant 
Marketing

June	2010 Marketing June	2010 September	
2010

Communications 
Co-ordinator

January	2010 CEO’s	Office October	2009 June	2010
(Internal
Appointment)

Region	
Co-ordinator: 
AAA

March	2010 Marketing January	2010 September	
2010
(Internal
Appointment)

Human 
Resource	and	
Administration 
Manager

February	2011 Corporate 
Services

April	2010 Vacant

Information	
Officer	x2

August	2010 Tourism 
Information	
Services

September	
2010

Vacant

Procurement	
Assistant

March	2011 Corporate 
Services

March	2011 Vacant

Department Vacancies Employment

CEO’s	Office 1 1

Corporate	Services 3 1

Tourism	Development 0 0

Tourism	Information	Services 2 0

Marketing 2 2

Human Resources Report

List of New Recruits, Terminations and Newly-Created Positions

Employment and Vacancies
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Nature of disciplinary action Number

Verbal	warning 0

Written	Warning 0

Final	Written	Warning 0

Dismissal 0

African Males Qualifications Number

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 1

Total 1

African Females Qualifications Number

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist
mid-management      

1

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 1

Total 2

African Females Qualifications Number

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 2

Total 2

African Males Qualifications Number

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	mid-
management      

1

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 1

Total 2

There	was	one	grievance	lodged	for	the	period	of	1	April	2010	to	31	March	2011.

Labour Relations
Misconduct and Disciplinary Actions

Terminations

Appointments
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African Males Qualifications Number

Top	Management 2

Senior	Management	 1

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

4

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 14

Unskilled	and	defined	decision-making 1

Total 22

African Females Qualifications Number

Top	Management 1

Senior	Management	 2

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

3

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 18

Unskilled	and	defined	decision-making 1

Semi-skilled	and	discretionary	decision-making 3

Total 28

White Females Qualifications Number

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

1

Total 1

White Males Qualifications Number

Senior	Management 1

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

1

Total 2

Human Resources Report
continued

Staff Complement as at 31 March 2011
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Indian Females Qualifications Number

Skilled	technical	and	academically	qualified 2

Total 2

Indian Males Qualifications Number

Total 0

Coloured Females Qualifications Number

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

1

Total 1

Coloured Males Qualifications Number

Professionally	qualified	and	experienced	specialist	and	
mid-management

1

Total 1

Total Number Of Staff 57
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Human Resources Report
continued

Top management 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior	management 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced	specialists	and	mid-
management

4 3 0 0 0 0 1 1

Skilled	technical	and	
academically	qualified	workers,	
junior management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

14 15 1 0 0 2 0 1

Semi-skilled	and	discretionary	
decision-making

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled	and	defined	
decision-making

1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Permanent 22 22 1 0 0 3 2 2

Total 22 22 1 0 0 3 2 2

Male

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Occupational 
Levels

Top management 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior	management 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced	specialists	and	mid-
management

3 6 1 0 0 0 1 1

Skilled	technical	and	
academically	qualified	workers,	
junior management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

18 16 0 0 2 2 0 2

Semi-skilled	and	discretionary	
decision-making

3 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled	and	defined	
decision-making

1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Permanent 28 29 1 0 2 2 1 3

Total 28 29 1 0 2 2 1 3

Female

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Occupational 
Levels

Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status as at 31 March 2011
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Occupational Levels Total Current Total Target Grades

Top management 3 3 2-4

Senior	management 4 4 5-6

Professionally	qualified	and	
experienced	specialists	and	mid-
management

10 12 7-8

Skilled	technical	and	
academically	qualified	workers,	
junior management, supervisors, 
foremen and superintendents

35 38 9-12

Semi-skilled	and	discretionary	
decision-making

3 3 13-14

Unskilled	and	defined	
decision-making

2 2 15-16

Total Permanent 57 62

Total 57 62
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011

Audited Annual Financial Statements
Statement	of	Responsibility

Corporate	Governance	Report

Report	of	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee

Report	of	the	Auditor-General

Accounting	Authority’s	Report

Accounting	Policies

Statement	of	Financial	Performance

Statement	of	Financial	Position

Cash	Flow	Statement

Statement	of	Changes	in	Net	Assets

Comparison	of	Actual	Expenditure	to	Budget	

Notes	to	the	Annual	Financial	Statements
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Statement of Responsibility
for the year ended 31 March 2011

The	Public	Finance	Management	Act,	1999	(Act	No.	
1	 of	 1999),	 as	 amended,	 requires	 the	Accounting	
Authority	to	ensure	that	the	Public	Entity	keeps	full	
and	 proper	 records	 of	 the	 financial	 affairs	 of	 the	
Public	Entity.

It	also	requires	that	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	
fairly	present	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Public	Entity,	
its	 business,	 its	 financial	 results,	 its	 performance	
against	 predetermined	 objectives	 and	 its	 financial	
position	as	at	the	end	of	each	financial	year	in	terms	
of	 Generally	 Recognised	 Accounting	 Practices	
(GRAP).

KwaZulu-Natal	 Tourism	 Authority	 (Authority)	
acknowledges	that	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	
are the responsibility of the members of the 
Authority.  The Auditor-General is responsible for 
independently auditing and reporting on the Annual 
Financial	Statements.

The	 Annual	 Financial	 Statements	 have	 been	
prepared	 in	accordance	with	statements	of	GRAP.		
These	 Annual	 Financial	 Statements	 are	 based	 on	
appropriate accounting policies, supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The	 members	 have	 reviewed	 the	 Public	
Entity’s	 budgets	 and	 cashflow	 forecasts	
for	 the	 year	 ended	 31	 March	 2011.		
On	 the	 basis	 of	 this	 review,	 and	 in	 view	 of	 the	
current	 financial	 position	 as	 well	 as	 the	 existing	
borrowing facilities, the members have every 

reason to believe, and the auditors concur, that 
the	 Public	 Entity	 will	 be	 a	 going	 concern	 in	 the	
year ahead and have continued to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the Annual 
Financial	Statements.

To enable the members to meet the above 
responsibilities, the Board sets standards and 
implements systems of internal controls and 
risk	 management	 that	 are	 designed	 to	 provide	
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatements and losses.  The public 
entity	maintains	internal	financial	controls	to	provide	
assurance regarding:
•	 The	safeguarding	of	assets	against	unauthorised	

use	or	disposition;	and
•	 The	maintenance	of	proper	accounting	records	

and	 the	 reliability	 of	 financial	 information	 used	
within the business or for publication.

In	the	opinion	of	members,	based	on	information	available	
to	date,	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	fairly	present	the	
financial	position	of	the	KwaZulu-Natal	Tourism	Authority	
at	31	March	2011	and	the	results	of	its	operations	and	
cashflow information for the year and that the Code of 
Corporate Governance has been adhered to.

The	 Annual	 Financial	 Statements	 for	 the	 year	 ended	
31	March	 2011,	 set	 out	 on	 pages	 107	 to	 131,	were	
approved by the Accounting Authority in terms of section 
51(1)	 (f)	of	 the	Public	Finance	Management	Act,	1999	
(Act	No.	1	of	1999),	as	amended	and	are	signed	on	its	
behalf by:

N Khoza
Chief	Executive	Officer

Date:	31	July	2011			

T Dlamini
Chairperson: KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority

Date:	31	July	2011
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Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 March 2011

The Board of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority 
(Authority)	is	responsible	for	the	establishment	of	a	
risk	management	approach,	development	of	 fraud	
prevention policies, effectiveness of internal audit 
and audit committee as well as other governance 
structures.  These include management processes 
to minimise conflict of interest, implementation of 
a code of conduct as well as safety, health and 
environmental issues facing the Authority.

On	 the	 other	 hand,	 Management	 is	 responsible	
and accountable to the Board for designing, 
implementing and monitoring the processes 
outlined above and integrating them into the day-
to-day activities of the Authority.

To this end, appropriate governance structures 
were set up to deal with these issues as set out in 
detail below.

Human Resources and 
Compensation Committee
This Committee comprises a minimum of three 
members including the Chairperson nominated 
from the members of the Board.

The	 Human	 Resources	 and	 Compensation	
Committee’s primary functions include reviewing 
and recommending to the Board the following:
•	 Issues	relating	to	human	resources	management	

and planning including recruitment and 
selection, training, performance management, 
succession planning and to report to the Board 
on	the	implementation	of	these	strategies;

•	 Review	 and	 approve	 proposals	 for	 the	
general adjustment of standard conditions 
of service including matters relating to leave, 
housing, motor vehicles, bonuses, incentives, 
pension fund, provident fund, medical aid and 
other conditions of service applicable to the 
organisation;

•	 Review	 salary	 scales	 and	 determine	 overall	
compensation including annual increment 
and	 bonuses	 taking	 into	 account	 applicable	
performance	targets;

•	 Review	 and	 approve	 changes	 in	 the	
organisational	structure;

•	 Ensure	 that	 the	 organisation	 has	 in	 place	

programmes and policies to attract and retain 
executives	 of	 high	 calibre	 to	 successfully	 lead	
the organisation in their respective areas of 
responsibility;

•	 Performance	 management	 of	 the	 Human	
Resources	and	Compensation	Committee;

•	 Annual	 performance	 plan	 activities	 within	 the	
scope	of	the	Committee;	and

•	 Review	and	evaluate	adequacy	of	 these	 terms	
of reference at least on an annual basis.

Audit and Risk Committee
This Committee comprises a minimum of four 
members including the Chairperson nominated 
from the members of the Board.

The primary functions of this Committee include 
reviewing and recommending to the Board the 
following:

Financial Statements

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	shall:
•	 Examine	 and	 review	 the	 Annual	 Financial	

Statements	and	the	interim	financial	reports	with	
management	 and	 the	 external	 auditors	 before	
filing	with	regulators,	and	consider	whether	they	
are complete and consistent with the information 
known	 to	 the	Committee	members	and	 reflect	
appropriate	accounting	principles;

•	 Review	with	management	and	external	auditors	
the	results	of	the	audit,	including	any	difficulties	
encountered;	and

•	 Review	 with	 management	 and	 the	 external	
auditors	all	matters	required	to	be	communicated	
to	 stakeholders	 under	 generally	 accepted	
auditing standards.

Internal Controls 

•	 The	 Audit	 and	 Risk	 Committee	 shall	 consider	
the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal 
control system, including information technology 
security	and	control;

•	 Understanding	the	scope	of	internal	and	external	
auditor’s	review	of	internal	control	over	financial	
reporting,	 and	 obtain	 reports	 on	 significant	
findings	 and	 recommendations,	 together	 with	
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management’s	responses;
•	 Reviewing	 the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 internal	

control	systems;
•	 Reviewing	 the	 control	 procedures	 followed	 by	

management;
•	 Reviewing	the	controls	designed	to	ensure	that	

assets	are	safeguarded;
•	 Reviewing	the	fraud	prevention	plan	implemented	

to	prevent	and	detect	fraud;
•	 Reviewing	risk	management	and	related	policies;	

and
•	 Reviewing	 compliance	 with	 prescribed	

accounting	framework.

Internal Audit

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	shall	monitor,	guide	
and supervise the functioning of the internal audit, 
ensuring	that	the	roles	and	functions	of	the	external	
audit	and	internal	audit	are	sufficiently	clarified	and	
co-ordinated to provide an objective overview of 
the operational effectiveness of the organisation’s 
systems of internal control and reporting. These 
include:

•	 Annually	 reviewing	 and	 approving	 the	 Internal	
Audit Charter to ensure adherence to best 
practices;

•	 Approving	 the	 three-year	 (3)	 Internal	 Audit	
Strategic	 and	 Annual	 Operational	 Plans	 and	
review	performance	against	the	plans;

•	 Reviewing	 the	 adequacy	 of	 corrective	 action	
taken	 in	 response	 to	 significant	 internal	 audit	
findings;

•	 Reviewing	 internal	 audit	 plans	 to	 ensure	 that	
high	 risk	 areas	 are	 identified	 and	 mitigation	
strategies	developed;		

•	 Meeting	separately	with	the	Chief	Audit	Executive	
to discuss matters that the Committee believes 
should	be	discussed	privately;

•	 Reviewing	 significant	 matters	 reported	 by	 the	
internal	audit	function;

•	 Reviewing	the	objectives	and	operations	of	the	
internal	audit	function;

•	 Assessing	 adequacy	 of	 performance	 of	 the	
internal	audit	function;

•	 Reviewing	 the	 co-operation	 and	 co-ordination	
between	 the	 internal	 and	 external	 audit	

functions;
•	 Reviewing	 any	 significant	 disagreements	 or	

differences of opinion between management 
and	the	internal	audit	function;

•	 Evaluating	the	independence	and	effectiveness	
of	the	internal	auditors;	and

•	 Reviewing	the	effectiveness	of	the	internal	audit	
function,	including	compliance	with	the	Institute	
of	 Internal	Auditor’s	 International	Standards	 for	
the	Professional	Practice	of	Internal	Auditing.

External Audit

•	 Reviewing	the	external	auditors	proposed	audit	
scope and approach, including co-ordination of 
the	audit	effort	with	internal	audit;

•	 Reviewing	and	confirming	the	independence	of	
the	 external	 auditors	 by	 obtaining	 statements	
from the auditors on relationships between the 
auditors and the organisation, including non-
audit services and discussing the relationships 
with	the	auditors;

•	 Reviewing	the	external	auditor’s	observations	as	
presented in the management reports and the 
adequacy	of	management	responses;	and

•	 On	 a	 regular	 basis,	 meet	 separately	 with	 the	
external	 auditors	 to	 discuss	 any	 matters	 that	
the Committee or auditors believe should be 
discussed privately.

Compliance

•	 Reviewing	 the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	 system	
for monitoring compliance with laws and 
regulations and the results of management’s 
investigation and follow-up of any instances of 
non-compliance;

•	 Reviewing	 processes	 for	 communicating	 the	
Code of Conduct to the Authority’s personnel, 
and	for	monitoring	compliance	therewith;	and

•	 Obtaining	 regular	 updates	 from	 management	
and the organisation’s legal counsel regarding 
compliance matters.

Reporting Responsibility

•	 Regular	reporting	to	the	Board	about	the	Audit	
and	 Risk	 Committee	 activities,	 issues,	 and	
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related	recommendations;	and
••	 Provide	 an	 open	 avenue	 of	 communication	

between	 internal	 audit,	 the	 external	 auditors,	
and	the	executive	management.

Other Responsibilities

•	 Performing	other	activities	related	to	this	charter	
as	requested	by	the	Accounting	Authority;

•	 Instituting	and	overseeing	special	investigations	
as	needed;

•	 Reviewing	and	assessing	 the	 adequacy	of	 the	
Audit	Committee	Charter	annually;	

•	 Confirming	 annually	 that	 all	 responsibilities	
outlined	 in	 this	 charter	 have	 been	 carried	 out;	
and

•	 Evaluating	 the	 Committee’s	 and	 individual	
members’ performance on a regular basis.

Marketing and Tourism 
Development Committee

This Committee comprises a minimum of three 
members including the Chairperson nominated 
from the members of the Board.

The primary functions of this Committee include 
reviewing and recommending to the Board the 
following:

Marketing

•	 Overall	 marketing	 strategy,	 (including	 Public	
Relations,	Communications,	Tourism	Information	
and	Research);

•	 Annual	overall	marketing	budgets;	
•	 Progress	 in	 terms	 of	 implementation	 of	 the	

annual	performance	plan;	and
•	 Relevant	policies	pertaining	to:

•	 Brand	management;
•	 Advertising	&	promotional	campaigns;
•	 Events	marketing	&	sponsorship;
•	 Domestic	&	international	marketing;
•	 Strategic	marketing	tools;	and
•	 Public	relations.

Tourism Development

•	 Recommending	 budget	 allocations	 to	 tourism	
development	 activities	 undertaken	 by	 the	
Authority;

•	 Guiding	 and	 reviewing	 business	 plans	
submitted	by	Management	pertaining	to	tourism	
development	activities;

•	 Recommending	 budget	 and	 business	 plan	
reviews for development activities every three 
months;

•	 Recommending	development	policies	pertaining	
to all functional activities of the Tourism 
Development	Business	Unit;	and

•	 Making	recommendations	to	the	Board	on	any	
matter pertaining to tourism development, within 
KwaZulu-Natal.

Chairperson’s Committee

The membership of the Chairperson’s Committee 
shall comprise the following and the Board 
Chairperson shall be the Chairperson of the 
Committee:
•	 Board	Chairperson;
•	 Board	Deputy	Chairperson;
•	 Chairpersons	of	Committees;	and
•	 Chief	Executive	Officer.

This	 Committee	 seeks	 to	 achieve	 the	 following	
objectives:
•	 To	 act	 on	 behalf	 of	 the	 Board	 as	 and	 when	

specific	delegations	are	conferred	upon	it	by	the	
Board;

•	 To	act	on	behalf	of	the	Board	when,	in	exceptional	
circumstances, it is not possible or practical to 
convene	a	meeting	of	the	Board;	and

•	 To	 advise	 and	 assist	 the	 Chairperson	 of	 the	
Board on the preparation of the agenda for 
the Board meeting by identifying issues and 
proposals	 requiring	 Board	 resolution	 and	
approval.
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The Tourism KwaZulu-Natal’s Audit and Risk 

Committee report for the year ended 31 

March 2011 is presented below:

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility

The	function	of	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	

is primarily to assist the Board in discharging 

its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, 

effective	management	of	liabilities	and	working	

capital,	the	operation	of	adequate	systems	and	

process of internal control and the preparation of 

financial	reports	and	Annual	Financial	Statements.

The Committee reports that it has complied with 

its	responsibilities	arising	from	Section	50(1)	of	the	

PFMA	and	Treasury	Regulations.	The	Audit	and	

Risk	Committee	also	reports	that	it	has	adopted	

appropriate formal terms of reference as per its 

Audit Committee Charter and has regulated its 

affairs in compliance with this charter in discharging 

its responsibilities as contained therein.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	for	the	year	under	

review consisted of the members listed hereunder 

and	met	four	(4)	times	as	per	approved	terms	of	

reference.

Risk Management

As part of governance improvement, the Audit and 

Risk	Committee	reviewed	the	risk	management	

strategy	developed	by	Provincial	Internal	Audit.		

The Committee made recommendations on the 

implementation of the strategy.  The Committee 

believes	that	once	the	risk	management	process	

has	been	rolled-out,	it	will	significantly	improve	the	

strategic management and corporate governance 

of	the	entity.	We	believe	that	strategy,	risk	

performance and sustainable service delivery are 

inseparable.		Proper	risk	management	will	ensure	

that best practices are implemented and the core 

function of the entity is the focal point and this will 

contribute enormously to service delivery.  The 

Audit	and	Risk	Committee	will	constantly	monitor	

the	roll-out	of	risk	management	to	ensure	that	this	

process reaches maturity within a reasonable time.

Internal Audit

Internal	Audit	operated	with	an	annual	and	three-

year	rolling	plan	approved	by	the	Audit	and	Risk	

Committee.  The audit coverage included mainly 

cyclical audits and focused on areas considered to 

be	key.		The	results	of	these	audits	were	presented	

to	management	for	their	response,	findings	

resolution	and	to	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	for	

final	review.	

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls

The system of controls is designed to provide cost- 

effective assurance that assets are safeguarded 

and	that	liabilities	and	working	capital	are	efficiently	

managed.		In	line	with	the	PFMA	and	the	King	III	

Report	on	Corporate	Governance	requirements,	

internal audit provides the Audit Committee and 

management with the assurance that internal 

controls are appropriate and effective.  This is 

achieved	by	means	of	the	risk	management	

process,	as	well	as	the	identification	of	corrective	

actions and suggested enhancements to the 

controls and processes.  

We	have	concluded,	based	on	the	work	that	was	

undertaken	as	part	of	the	annual	internal	audit	plan	

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Name of member Number of
meetings attended

Ms	NZ	Qunta	
Chairperson  

4

Ms	Y	Bacus 3

Mr	Z	Gwala 4

Ms	N	Kheswa* 2

Mr	M	Zakwe	(Independent	member	-	appointed	
July	2011)

* Ms	N	Kheswa	was	on	maternity	leave	for	part	of		

	 the	financial	year.
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and	Auditor-General’s	final	audit,	that	the	system	of	

internal control was effective.

Governance Processes and Accountability

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	reports	that	it	has	

adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as 

its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance 

with this Audit Committee Charter and has 

discharged all its responsibilities as contained 

therein.

The	Audit	and	Risk	Committee	reviewed	quarterly	

reports	and	is	satisfied	that	controls	are	in	place	to	

monitor spending patterns.

The	quarterly	reports	were	submitted	to	the	Board	

and	the	Department	of	Economic	Development	

and Tourism, in terms of the Transfer Funding 

Agreement.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

•	 Reviewed	and	discussed	the	audited	Annual	

Financial	Statements	to	be	included	in	the	

annual report with the Auditor-General and 

the	Board;	and

•	 Reviewed	significant	adjustments	resulting	

from the audit.

Subsequent Events

There were no material events that occurred 

subsequent	to	the	reporting	period.

Appreciation

Our	sincere	appreciation	and	thanks	are	extended	

to all those who attended our meetings for their 

contribution	and	to	the	Chief	Executive	Officer	

and management as a whole for their support and 

useful interaction during the year under review.

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts 

the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the Annual 

Financial	Statements	and	is	of	the	opinion	that	the	

audited	Annual	Financial	Statements	be	accepted	

and read together with the report of the Auditor-

General.

Ms NZ Qunta
Signed	on	behalf	of	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee
31	July	2011
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Report of the Auditor General
for the year ended 31 March 2011

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1.	 I	 have	 audited	 the	 accompanying	 financial	
statements of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, 
which	comprise	 the	statement	of	financial	position	
as	at	31	March	2011,	statement	of	comprehensive	
income,	 statement	 of	 changes	 in	 equity	 and	
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
a	 summary	 of	 significant	 accounting	 policies	 and	
other	explanatory	 information	as	set	out	on	pages	
107	to	131.	

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the 
financial statements

2.	 The	 accounting	 authority	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	
preparation	and	 fair	presentation	of	 these	financial	
statements	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 Standards	
of	 Generally	 Recognised	 Accounting	 Practice	
(Standards	of	GRAP)	 and	 the	 requirements	of	 the	
Public	 Finance	 Management	 Act	 of	 South	 Africa	
(Act	 No.1	 of	 1999)	 (PFMA),	 and	 for	 such	 internal	
control as management determines necessary to 
enable	 the	preparation	of	financial	statements	 that	
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.	 As	 required	 by	 section	 188	 of	 the	Constitution	
of	the	Republic	of	South	Africa,	1996	(Act	No.	108	
of	1996),	section	4	of	the	Public	Audit	Act	of	South	
Africa,	 2004	 (Act	 No.	 25	 of	 2004)	 (PAA)	 and	 the	
PFMA,	my	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	
these	financial	statements	based	on	my	audit.

4.	 I	 conducted	 my	 audit	 in	 accordance	 with	
International	 Standards	 on	 Auditing	 and	 General	
Notice	1111	of	2010	issued	in	Government	Gazette	
33872	of	15	December	2010.

Those	standards	require	 that	 I	comply	with	ethical	
requirements	 and	 plan	 and	 perform	 the	 audit	
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the	 financial	 statements	 are	 free	 from	 material	

misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the	 financial	 statements.	 	 The	 procedures	 selected	
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment	of	 the	 risks	of	material	misstatement	of	
the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.		

In	 making	 those	 risk	 assessments,	 the	 auditor	
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation	 and	 fair	 presentation	 of	 the	 	 financial	
statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for	 the	 purpose	 of	 expressing	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial	statements.	

6.	I	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	I	have	obtained	is	
sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	my	
audit opinion.

Opinion

7.	 In	 my	 opinion	 the	 financial	 statements	 present	
fairly,	 in	all	material	 respects,	 the	 financial	position	
of	 the	 KwaZulu-Natal	 Tourism	 Authority	 as	 at	 31	
March	 2011,	 and	 its	 financial	 performance	 and	
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with	Standards	 of	GRAP	 and	 the	 requirements	 of	
the	PFMA.

Emphasis of matter

8.	I	draw	attention	to	the	matters	below.	My	opinion	
is	not	modified	in	respect	of	these	matters:

Restatement of corresponding figures

9.	As	disclosed	in	note	24	to	the	financial	statements,	
the	corresponding	figures	for	31	March	2010	have	
been restated as a result of errors discovered during 
31	March	 2011	 in	 the	 financial	 statements	 of	 the	
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority at, and for the 
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year	ended,	31	March	2010.

Material losses

10.	 As	 disclosed	 in	 note	 10	 to	 the	 financial	
statements,	material	 losses	to	the	amount	of	R2,1	
million were incurred as a result of a write-off of an 
irrecoverable debtor.

Project funds

11.	 As	 disclosed	 in	 note	 23	 to	 the	 financial	
statements, the project funds liability to the amount 
of	R3,8	million	was	not	supported	by	cash	resources	
as	at	31	March	2011.	

Additional matter

12.	I	draw	attention	to	the	matter	below.	My	opinion	
is	not	modified	in	respect	of	this	matter:

Unaudited supplementary schedule

13.	The	supplementary	information	annexure	A	set	
out	on	page	116	does	not	form	part	of	the	financial	
statements, it is presented as additional information. 
I	have	not	audited	this	schedule	and,	accordingly,	I	
do	not	express	an	opinion	thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER 
LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

14.	 In	 accordance	 with	 the	 PAA	 and	 in	 terms	 of	
General	Notice	1111	of	2010,	issued	in	Government	
Gazette	 33872	 of	 15	 December	 2010,	 I	 include	
below	my	findings	on	the	annual	performance	report	
as	 set	 out	 on	 pages	 23	 to	 85	 and	material	 non-
compliance with laws and regulations applicable to 
the entity.

Predetermined objectives
Presentation of information

15.	 The	 following	 criteria	was	 used	 to	 assess	 the	
presentation of performance information:
•	 Performance	 against	 predetermined	 objectives	

is reported using the National Treasury 
guidelines.

16.	The	following	audit	finding	relates	to	the	above	
criteria:
•	 Adequate	 explanations	 for	 major	 variances	

between the planned and the actual reported 
targets for all the objectives could not be 
provided,	 as	 required	 in	 terms	 of	 the	 relevant	
reporting guidance.

Usefulness of information

17.	 The	 following	 criteria	was	 used	 to	 assess	 the	
usefulness of information:
•	 Consistency:	The	reported	objectives,	indicators	

and targets are consistent with the approved 
annual performance plan.

•	 Relevance:	 There	 is	 a	 clear	 and	 logical	 link	
between the objectives, outcomes, outputs, 
indicators and performance targets.

•	 Measurability:	 The	 indicators	 are	 well	 defined	
and/or	verifiable,	and	targets	are	specific,	and/
or measurable.

18.	The	following	audit	findings	relate	to	the	above	
criteria:
•	 Changes	to	the	objectives,	measures,	indicators	

and targets of the approved annual performance 
plan for the year under review, were not 
disclosed	and	explained	as	required	in	terms	of	
the relevant National Treasury preparation guide.

•	 Reported	 performance	 against	 predetermined	
objectives, indicators and targets is not 
consistent with the approved annual 
performance plan.

•	 The	actual	achievements	with	regard	to	38%	of	
planned objectives, for the selected programmes, 
specified	 in	 the	 annual	 performance	 plan	 for	
the year under review were not included in the 
report on predetermined objectives submitted 
for audit purposes.

•	 Different	objectives,	indicators	and	targets	were	
reported on as opposed to the approved annual 
performance plan.  These different objectives, 
indicators and targets were not included in the 
approved or adjusted budgets.

•	 For	the	selected	programmes,	69%		of	the	planned	
and reported targets were not: 

-	 specific	 in	 clearly	 identifying	 the	 nature	 and	 the	
required	level	of	performance.

-	 measurable	in	identifying	the	required	performance.
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Compliance with laws and regulations 
Public Finance Management Act
Procurement and contract management

19.	Goods	and	services	with	a	transaction	value	
of	between	R10	000	and	R500	000	were	procured	
without inviting at least three written price 
quotations	 from	 prospective	 suppliers,	 as	 per	
the	 requirement	of	 Practice	Note	 8	 of	 2007-08	
issued	in	terms	of	section	76(4)(c)	of	the	PFMA,	
resulting	 in	 irregular	 expenditure	 amounting	 to	
R226	 816	 (2010:	 R377	 773)	 being	 incurred	 as	
disclosed	in	note	26	to	the	financial	statements.

Annual budget

20.	 The	 accounting	 authority	 did	 not	 maintain	
appropriate	measures	to	ensure	that	the	expenditure	
of the entity is in accordance with the approved 
budget	as	required	by	section	53(5)	of	the	PFMA	as	
the	expenditure	budget	was	exceeded.	

Annual financial statements and performance 
report

21.	 The	 financial	 statements	 submitted	 for	 audit	
purposes	 did	 not	 comply	 with	 section	 55(2)(a)	 of	
the	PFMA	as	material	misstatements	were	identified	
during the audit, which had to be corrected 
by management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

22.	 In	 accordance	 with	 the	 PAA	 and	 in	 terms	 of	
General	Notice	1111	of	2010,	issued	in	Government	
Gazette	33872	of	15	December	2010,	I	considered	
internal control relevant to my audit, but not for 
the	 purpose	 of	 expressing	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	
effectiveness of internal control. 

The matters reported below are limited to the 
significant	deficiencies	 that	 resulted	 in	 the	findings	
on	the	annual	performance	report	and	the	findings	
on compliance with laws and regulations included 
in this report.

Leadership

23.	 The	 accounting	 authority	 did	 not	 exercise	
adequate	 oversight	 responsibility	 with	 respect	 to	
financial	and	performance	reporting	and	compliance	
with	the	PFMA	regarding	procurement	and	budget	
management.

Financial and performance management

24.Management	did	not	implement	effective	controls	
to	ensure	that	financial	statements	were	prepared	in	
accordance	with	the	Standards	of	GRAP	and	were	
supported by accurate and reliable evidence.

Pietermaritzburg
31	July	2011
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Report by the Accounting Authority to the 

Executive Authority and the Provincial 

Legislature of the Republic of South Africa.

General review of the state of affairs

For	the	financial	year	2010/11,	the	KwaZulu-Natal	

Tourism	Authority	(the	Authority)	received	a	grant	

of	R71	444	000	(2009/10:		R70	012	000)	from	the	

Provincial	Department	of	Economic	Development	

and Tourism. 

A	further	amount	of	R4	868	000	(2009/10:		

R2	672	000)	was	received	in	the	form	of	other	

income.

An	amount	of	R24	325	000	spent	on	projects	was	

recognised	as	both	income	and	expenditure	in	

terms	of	the	new	Generally	Recognised	Accounting	

Practice	(GRAP)	No.	23.		

Thus, the total income for the Authority was 

R100	637	000	(2009/10:		R75	623	000).

The	net	deficit	for	the	financial	year	was	

R10	878	000	(2009/10:		R271	000	surplus).		The	

major	component	of	the	deficit	is	in	respect	of	

adjustments	relating	to	the	VAT	receivable	provision	

and write-off. 

The accumulated surplus at the beginning 

of	the	financial	year	was	R5	600	000.		The	

Provincial	Treasury	approved	the	utilisation	of	the	

accumulated	surplus	during	the	2010/11	financial	

year.		Taking	into	consideration	the	above,	the	

accumulated	deficit	at	the	end	of	the	financial	year	

is	R5	272	000.		

One	member	of	the	Board,	Dr	SV	Chonco,	

resigned from the Board during the period under 

review,	the	three	Board	vacancies	were	filled	

through the appointment of new Board members 

for	a	period	of	three	(3)	years	effective	

31	May	2010:

The	new	Board	Members	are	as	follows:

•	 Mr	T	Mzileni;	

•	 Mr	S	Adam;	and

•	 Dr	AT	Nzama.

The Committees of the Board continued to play 

their oversight role and are constituted as follows:

•	 Audit	and	Risk	Committee;

•	 Human	Resources	and	Compensation	

Committee;

•	 Marketing	and	Tourism	Development	

Committee;	and

•	 Chairperson’s Committee.

The terms of reference for Board Committees were 

amended	during	the	year	under	review	to	make	

provision	for	co-option	of	at	least	two	(2)	external	

experts	to	serve	on	each	Committee.	

The terms of reference of the Board Committees 

are	detailed	 in	 the	Corporate	Governance	Report.

The Chairperson’s Committee is a new committee 

which was established during the period 

under review.  

Its	objective	is	to	assist	the	Chairperson	in	

discharging her responsibilities and the terms of 

reference are set out in the Corporate Governance 

section	of	the	Annual	Report.

Following the structural realignment process within 

the	Marketing	and	Communications	Department,	

the	Communications	and	Public	Relations	unit	now	

reports	directly	to	the	Chief	Executive	Officer.	

During	the	year	under	review,	a	brand	realignment	

process	was	undertaken	by	the	Authority.		This	

resulted in the adoption of new branding which 

was	approved	by	the	Board	and	the	Provincial	

Accounting Authority’s Report 
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Cabinet	for	implementation	in	the	2011/12	

financial	year.

The Authority’s annual performance plan for 

the	period	under	review	was,	to	a	large	extent,	

implemented satisfactorily.  Further details 

are contained under the section dealing with 

performance information.

Services Rendered by the Authority

The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading 

as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is a statutory body 

responsible	for	the	development,	marketing	and	

promotion of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. 

It	was	established	in	1997	in	accordance	with	the	

KwaZulu-Natal	Tourism	Act	No.	11	of	1996,	as	

amended. The Authority reports to the KwaZulu-

Natal	Provincial	Legislature	through	the	Department	

of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism.		

In	terms	of	the	regulations	for	the	registration	

of tour guides as well as the regulations for 

the registration of tourism accommodation 

establishments and related service providers, the 

Authority performed certain functions during 

the year. 

These include the registration of tour guides, 

tourism accommodation establishments and the 

general	Registrar	functions.	

The registration levies payable in this regard were 

approved	by	the	then	MEC	responsible	for	tourism	

in the province.  The levies payable were not 

adjusted	during	the	financial	year	under	review.	

Following	the	approval	of	the	White	Paper	on	

the	Development	and	Promotion	of	Tourism	in	

KwaZulu-Natal, the registration function was 

transferred	to	the	Department	of	Economic	

Development	and	Tourism	during	the	period	under	

review.	Overall,	during	the	financial	year	under	

review, the Authority engaged in various activities 

aimed	at	marketing	and	promotion	of	the	province	

as a leading tourist destination. 

The Authority also engaged in a number of tourism 

development initiatives and projects within the 

province.  A detailed report is included in the 

section dealing with performance information.

Capacity Constraints

As already indicated above, there were structural 

changes	within	the	Marketing	and	Communications	

Department.	Furthermore,	the	General	Manager:		

Tourism	Information	Services	was	seconded	to	act	

as	the	Interim	Chief	Executive	Officer	of	the	Durban	

KwaZulu-Natal	Convention	Bureau	effective	from	1	

July	2011.		

The Convention Bureau is a partnership between 

the	Department	of	Economic	Development	and	

Tourism,	eThekwini	Municipality,	Inkosi	Albert	

Luthuli	ICC	Durban	and	the	Durban	Chamber	of	

Commerce	and	Industry.	

The aim of the Convention Bureau is to focus 

and	grow	business	tourism	into	the	Province	of	

KwaZulu-Natal. 

In	spite	of	the	changes,	the	planned	activities	and	

related	outputs	for	the	2010/11financial	year	were	

satisfactorily	executed	and	achieved.	

Utilisation of Poverty Alleviation Funds

The entity received funds by way of conditional 

grants for special projects, including poverty relief 

projects. 

These funds are mainly from the National 

Department	of	Tourism	and	are	utilised	as	part	of	

the Authority’s tourism development initiatives. This 

is in line with the Authority having been appointed 

Accounting Authority’s Report 
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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by	the	National	Department	of	Tourism	as	its	

implementing agent in this regard.  

The funds which were not utilised, mainly due to 

timing differences, were carried forward to a future 

period.	Furthermore,	where	required,	a	separate	

bank	account	is	usually	opened	for	each	project.

For the year under review, there was a special 

focus in dealing with various initiatives arising and 

aimed at the implementation and conceptualisation 

of these projects. 

There	was	significant	progress	achieved,	

particularly with regard to the sourcing of funding 

for new projects aligned to the government’s 

objectives for job creation. The Authority also 

made endeavours to strengthen its relationship 

and involvement of the district, local government 

as well as other community structures in the 

identification	of	appropriate	projects	for	poverty	

alleviation funding. 

Business Address

Registered office:

Suite	303	Tourist	Junction

160	Monty	Naicker	(Pine	Street)	Road

DURBAN

4001	

P	O	Box	2516

DURBAN

4000

Bankers:

First	National	Bank

External Auditors:

Auditor-General

Internal Auditors:

Internal	Audit	Unit	–	KwaZulu-Natal	Provincial	

Treasury

Discontinued Activities

In	line	with	the	White	Paper	on	the	Development	

and	Promotion	of	Tourism	in	KwaZulu-Natal	the	

administration of the registration function was 

transferred	from	the	Authority	to	the	Department	

of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism	during	the	

year under review.

The transfer of this function did not have any major 

impact on the Authority’s human capital as affected 

employees will be redeployed to other strategic 

functions	requiring	capacity	enhancement	within	

the Authority.

New or Proposed Activities

There	were	no	new	activities	embarked	upon	

during the period under review.  

Furthermore, there are no proposed activities for 

the	upcoming	financial	year.

Events After the Reporting Date

There were no material events that occurred after 

31	March	2011.		

Performance Information

In	terms	of	the	KwaZulu-Natal	Tourism	Act,	

the Authority must develop an annual tourism 

promotion,	marketing	and	development	action	

plan. This action plan must provide clear 

indications of goals and objectives for the planning 

period.		Such	a	plan	was	developed	for	the	

2010/11	financial	year.	

The progress reports were tabled at each Board 
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Date:	31	July	2011
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Chief	Executive	Officer
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and Committee meeting of the Authority.  

Furthermore, the Authority reported to the 

Department	of	Economic	Development	and	

Tourism	on	a	quarterly	basis	on	progress	towards	

the achievement of the stated outputs and 

objectives	in	line	with	the	funding	Memorandum	of	

Agreement entered into between the two parties.  

A detailed report on the activities of the Authority,

as	well	as	the	implementation	of	the	2010/11	

Annual	Performance	Plan	(Annual	Action	Plan),	is	

included in the performance information section of 

the	Annual	Report.		

Irregular expenditure

An	amount	of	R226	800	(prior	year	R378	000)	

was	incurred	during	the	financial	year	in	respect	of	

specialised printing services.

A full disclosure has been made in the Annual 

Financial	Statements	in	this	regard.

Approval

The	Annual	Financial	Statements	for	the	year	

ended	31	March	2011,	set	out	on	pages	107	to	

131,	were	approved	by	the	Accounting	Authority	

in	terms	of	section	51(1)	(f)	of	the	Public	Finance	

Management	Act,	1999	(Act	No.	1	of	1999),	as	

amended and are signed on its behalf by:
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Accounting Policies 
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1. Basis of Preparation

The	Annual	Financial	Statements	have	been	

prepared	in	accordance	with	Generally	Recognised	

Accounting	Practice	(GRAP),	issued	by	the	

Accounting	Standards	Board	in	accordance	with	

Section	55	of	the	Public	Finance	Management	

Act	(Act	No.	29	of	1999)	and	the	Public	Finance	

Management	Act	(Act	No.	1	of	1999)	as	amended	

(PFMA).

Accounting policies for material transactions, 

events	or	conditions	not	covered	by	the	GRAP	

reporting	framework	have	been	developed	in	

accordance	with	paragraphs	7,	11	and	12	of	

GRAP	3	and	the	hierarchy	approved	in	Directive	5	

issued	by	the	Accounting	Standards	Board.

The	Annual	Financial	Statements	have	been	

prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and 

are in accordance with historical cost convention, 

unless	specifically	stated	otherwise.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the 

preparation	of	these	financial	statements	are	set	

out below.

Assets,	liabilities,	revenues	and	expenses	have	not	

been	offset,	except	where	offsetting	is	required	or	

permitted	by	a	Standard	of	GRAP.

The accounting policies are applied consistently 

with those used to present the previous year’s 

financial	statements,	unless	explicitly	stated.	

The details of any changes in accounting policies 

are	explained	in	the	relevant	policy.

2. Going Concern

The	Public	Entity	will	be	a	going	concern	in	the	

year(s)	ahead	and	as	such,	the	Authority	continues	

to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 

Annual	Financial	Statements.

3. Currency

These	financial	statements	are	presented	in	

South	African	Rand	since	this	is	the	currency	in	

which the majority of the entity’s transactions are 

denominated.

4. Revenue Recognition

Revenue	is	recognised	when	it	is	probable	that	

future	economic	benefits	will	flow	to	the	enterprise	

and	these	benefits	can	be	measured	reliably.	

Revenue	arising	from	registration	levies	is	

recognised in full upon becoming a member or 

renewal	of	membership,	net	of	Value-Added	Taxes.		

The licencing, as well as acceptance of such 

registration by the Authority, records membership 

upon receipt of payment and submission of 

registration	application	forms.	Membership	is	

renewed annually for tourism establishments and 

bi-annually for tour guides.

Interest	income	is	accrued	on	a	time	proportion	

basis,	taking	into	account	the	principal	outstanding	

and the effective interest rate over the period to 

maturity. 

5. Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful 

Expenditure

Irregular	expenditure	means	expenditure	incurred	

in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a 

requirement	of	any	applicable	legislation,	including:

•	 The	PFMA;	or

•	 Any provincial legislation providing for 

procurement procedures in that provincial 

government.

Fruitless	and	wasteful	expenditure	means	

expenditure	that	was	made	in	vain	and	would	have	

been	avoided	had	reasonable	care	been	exercised.	

All	irregular,	fruitless	and	wasteful	expenditure	is	

charged against income in the period in which it 
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is incurred.

6. Foreign Currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s 

reporting	currency	(Rand)	are	initially	recorded	at	

the	rates	of	exchange	ruling	on	the	dates	of	the	

transactions. Gains and losses arising from the 

settlement of such transactions are recognised in 

the	Statement	of	Financial	Performance.

Monetary	assets	and	liabilities	denominated	in	

foreign currencies are translated at the rates of 

exchange	ruling	on	the	Statement	of	Financial	

Position.	Unrealised	differences	on	monetary	

assets and liabilities are recognised in the 

Statement	of	Financial	Performance	in	the	period	in	

which they occurred.

7. Retirement Benefit Costs

The	entity	operates	a	defined	contribution	plan,	

the assets of which are generally held in separate 

trustee-administered funds. The plans are generally 

funded by payments from the entity.

Payments	to	defined	contribution	retirement	benefit	

plans	are	charged	to	the	Statement	of	Financial	

Performance	in	the	year	to	which	they	relate.

8. Taxation

The entity operated on funds derived from 

Government	Grants.		In	terms	of	a	directive	issued	

by	the	South	African	Revenue	Service,	the	receipts	

and accruals of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism 

Authority	are	exempt	from	Income	Tax.

9. Unusual Items

All	items	of	income	and	expense	arising	in	the	

ordinary	course	of	business	are	taken	into	account	

in	arriving	at	income	before	taxation.		Where	items	

of	income	and	expense	are	of	such	size,	nature	

or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to 

explain	the	performance	of	the	entity,	they	are	

separately	disclosed	and	appropriate	explanations	

are provided.

10. Property, Plant and Equipment

Items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	stated	

at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation	is	charged	so	as	to	write	off	the	

cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated 

useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the 

following basis:

•	 Computer	hardware	 	 33,3%

•	 Office	Equipment

•	 	Photographic			 	 16,6%

•	 	Dictaphones	 	 	 33,3%

•	 	Perforating	equipment	 	 16,6%

•	 	Television	 	 	 16,6%

•	 	Surveyors	equipment	 	 20,0%

•	 Office	furniture		 	 16,6%

•	 Office	fittings	and	alterations	 16,6%

•	 Videos	 	 	 50,0%

The useful lives of assets are assessed on an 

annual	basis	and	where	there	are	significant	

differences from the original estimates, the useful 

lives are revised and depreciation adjusted 

accordingly. All adjustments arising from changes 

in estimates are applied retrospectively. 

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or 

retirement of an asset is determined as the 

difference between the sale proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in 

income	or	expenditure.

11. Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Items	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	are	stated	

at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation	is	charged	so	as	to	write-off	the	

cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated 
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useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the 

following basis:

•			Computer	software	 50,0%

Trademarks and Patents

Expenditure	on	trademarks	and	patents	is	

recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	period	in	which	it	

is incurred.

Internally-generated intangible assets 

(Research and Development Costs)nd 

Expenditure	on	research	activities	is	recognised	as	

an	expense	in	the	period	in	which	it	is	incurred.

Where	no	internally-generated	intangible	asset	

can	be	recognised,	development	expenditure	is	

recognised	as	an	expense	in	the	period	in	which	it	

is incurred. 

12. Impairment

At each reporting date, the entity reviews the 

carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 

assets to determine whether there is any indication 

that	those	assets	may	be	impaired.	If	any	such	

indication	exists,	the	recoverable	amount	of	the	

asset	is	estimated	in	order	to	determine	the	extent	

of	the	impairment	loss	(if	any).	

If	the	recoverable	amount	of	an	asset	is	estimated	

to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 

amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable 

amount.

Impairment	losses	are	immediately	recognised	as	

an	expense,	unless	the	relevant	asset	is	carried	

at a revalued amount under another standard, in 

which case the impairment loss is treated as a 

revaluation decrease under the standard.

Where	an	impairment	loss	subsequently	reverses,	

the carrying amount of the asset is increased to 

the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, 

but so that the increased carrying amount does 

not	exceed	the	carrying	amount	that	would	have	

been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 

as income immediately, unless the relevant asset 

is carried at a revalued amount under another 

standard, in which case the reversal of the 

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase 

under that other standard.

13. Borrowings

In	terms	of	section	66(3)(c)	of	the	Public	Finance	

Management	Act,	1999,	a	public	entity	may	only	

through	the	Minister	of	Finance	borrow	money	or,	

in the case of the issue of a guarantee, indemnity 

or	security,	only	through	the	Minister	of	Labour,	

acting	with	the	concurrence	of	the	Minister	of	

Finance.

In	terms	of	section	32.1.1	of	the	Treasury	

Regulations,	a	public	entity	may	borrow	money,	for	

bridging	purposes	with	the	approval	of	the	Minister	

of Finance, subject to certain conditions.

14. Leasing

Finance	leases	as	per	the	Treasury	Regulations	

refer	to	a	contract	that	transfers	the	risks,	rewards,	

rights and obligations incident to ownership to the 

lessee	and	is	recorded	as	a	purchase	of	equipment	

by means of long-term borrowing.

All	other	leases	are	classified	as	operating	leases.

The entity as a lessor

Rental	income	from	operating	leases	is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the term

of the relevant lease. 

The entity as a lessee

Rentals	payable	under	operating	leases	are	
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charged to income on a straight-line basis over the 

term of the relevant lease.

 

15. Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	

recognised	in	the	entity’s	Statement	of	Financial	

Position	when	the	entity	becomes	a	party	to	the	

contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Measurement on initial recognition

The	principal	financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	

of the entity are short-term in nature and their 

costs/nominal	amounts	approximate	their	

fair values.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial	assets	and	financial	liabilities	are	carried	

at amortised cost.

However, due to the short-term nature of the 

entity’s	principal	financial	assets	and	financial	

liabilities, the effects of discounting is not material 

and the carrying amounts, as stated below 

approximate	their	fair	values.

Financial Assets

The	entity’s	principal	financial	assets	are	trade	

receivables	and	cash	and	cash	equivalents.	

•	 Trade receivables - Trade receivables are 

stated at their nominal value as reduced 

by appropriate allowances for estimated 

irrecoverable	amounts;	and

•	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents		-	Cash	and	

cash	equivalents	are	stated	at	nominal	

amount. 

Financial Liabilities

The	entity’s	principal	financial	liabilities	are	accounts	

payable.

•	 Trade payables - Trade and other payables 

are stated at their nominal amount.

16. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions	are	recognised	when	the	entity	has	a	

present obligation as a result of a past event and 

it is probable that this will result in an outflow of 

economic	benefits	that	can	be	estimated	reliably.	

The	provisions	are	accounted	for	as	per	GRAP	19.

Contingent liabilities are recognised when the entity 

has a present obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that this will result in an outflow 

of	economic	benefits	that	can	be	estimated	reliably.	

The contingent liabilities are accounted for as per 

GRAP	19.

17. Comparative Figures

Where	necessary,	comparative	figures	have	been	

adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in 

the current year.

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	include	cash	on	hand,	

short-term	investments	with	financial	institutions	

and	the	amount	deposited	with	financial	institutions	

as part of the entity’s current account.  

Funds under administration in respect of special 

projects	are	deposited	with	financial	institutions	

and are accounted for as such.

Cash	and	cash	equivalent	are	stated	at	nominal	

value.

19. Non-exchange Revenue

The	guidance	contained	in	the	‘GRAP	Reporting	

Framework’	issued	by	National	Treasury	has	been	

applied	in	the	treatment	of	non-exchange	revenue.	

In	applying	this	framework,	the	option	chosen	is	to	

formulate	an	accounting	policy	in	line	with	GRAP	

23,	of	which	this	paragraph	forms	the	preamble	to	

the policy.

Transfers

An	inflow	of	resources	from	a	non-exchange	
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transaction recognised as an asset is recognised 

as	revenue,	except	to	the	extent	that	a	liability	is	

also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

Transfers received in respect of projects to which 

conditions are attached, are treated as liabilities 

and	subsequently	recognised	as	revenue	in	the	

periods	that	expenditure	has	been	incurred,	in	

accordance with the project business plans. 

Transfers received for future projects are, in 

substance, receipts in advance and are recorded 

as liabilities and recognised as revenue during 

periods	when	project	activities	are	undertaken.	

Services in kind

Services	in	kind	are	neither	recognised	as	revenue	

nor assets

Project Funds

The entity receives funds by way of conditional 

grants for special projects, including poverty 

relief	projects.	Furthermore,	where	required,	a	

separate	bank	account	is	opened	for	each	project.	

The project funds have been accounted for as 

non-exchange	transactions	in	accordance	with	the	

aforementioned policy.

Government Grants

Government grants have been accounted for as 

non-exchange	transactions	in	accordance	with	the	

aforementioned policy.

20. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term	employee	benefits	include	wages,	

salaries, paid annual leave and bonuses and 

are	accounted	for	as	required	by	International	

Accounting	Standard	(IAS)	-	IAS	19	“Employee	

benefits”.

21. Related Parties

Transactions	with	key	management	personnel	are	

disclosed	in	the	Annual	Financial	Statements	in	

the	form	of	a	note,	as	required	by	IAS	24	“Related	

party	disclosures”.	These	transactions	relate	to	short-

term	employee	benefits	and	are	in	accordance	with	

IAS	19	above.	

22. Presentation of Budget Information

The	guidance	contained	in	the	‘GRAP	Reporting	

Framework’	issued	by	National	Treasury	has	

been applied in presenting budget information 

in	the	Annual	Financial	Statements.	In	applying	

this	framework,	the	option	chosen	is	to	present	

reconciliation	between	the	budgeted	surplus/	

deficit	to	the	surplus/deficit	as	per	the	statement	

of	financial	performance	in	the	notes	to	the	Annual	

Financial	Statements,	in	accordance	with	note	23	

of	the	framework.

23. Events after the Reporting Date

Management	considers	all	information	pertaining	

to the entity that comes to light during the period 

between	the	financial	year	end	and	the	date	that	

the	financial	statements	are	authorised	for	issue.		

The	Annual	Financial	Statements	are	amended	to	

reflect	any	‘adjusting	events’	that	are	identifiable	

and	quantifiable	as	well	as	disclosures	for	those	

adjusting	events	that	cannot	be	quantified	and	

those non-adjusting events after the reporting 

date that are material, where non-disclosure could 

influence	the	economic	decisions	of	users	taken	on	

the	basis	of	the	financial	statements.

24. Standards Issued but not yet Effective

The following standards that have been issued are 

not yet effective:

•				GRAP	23	

•				GRAP	24

The	entity	has	applied	the	GRAP	framework,	

issued by National Treasury, in dealing with the 

aforementioned	standards.	Management	has	

assessed that in complying with National Treasury’s 

Framework	for	GRAP,	the	entity	has	complied	with	

the	minimum	requirements.
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Notes
2011

R’000

2010
R’000

Restated

Revenue

Grants and transfers

Other	income

Project	transfers

Total Revenue

Expenditure

Administrative	expenses

Staff	costs

Marketing	expenses

Tourism	development	expenses

Other	operating	expenses

SARS	write-off

Provision	for	VAT	claimable

Depreciation	and	amortisation

Project	expenditure

Total Expenditure

Net	(deficit)/surplus	for	the	year

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year

Rounding-off	difference

Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

71 444

4 868

24 325

100 637

4 905

22 635

45 005

3 026

5 387

2 153

3 290

789

24 325

111 515

(10 878)

5 600

6

(5 272)

70	012

2	672

2	939

75	623

4	155

18	803

39	058

3	350

6	253

-

-

794

2	939

75	352

271

5	329

0

5	600

1

2

23

3

4

5

6

7

10

10

8

23

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Notes
2011

R’000

2010
R’000

Restated

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Intangible	asset

Property,	plant	and	equipment

Current Assets

Receivables

Cash	and	cash	equivalents

Total Assets

Reserves and Liabilities

Reserves

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total Reserves and Liabilities

8A

8

10

11

9

13

12

65

2 371

2 436

4 850

8 309

13 159

15 595

(5 272)

19 554  

1 313

20 867

15 595

158

2	576

2	734

5	891

20	872

26	763

29	497

5	600

22	691

1	206

23	897

29	497
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Notes
2011

R’000
2010
R’000

 71 444 

   (83 569) 

(12 125)

58

(12 067)

 (496) 

(12 563) 

 20 872 

 8 309 

	70	803	

	(59	223)	

	11	580	

	383	

	11	963	

	(514)	

	11	449	

	9	423	

	20	872	

14

11

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations

Interest	received

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisition	of:

Property,	plant	and	equipment

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	at	beginning	of	year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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Notes
2011

R’000
2010
R’000

 5 600 

 -   

 5 600 

 (10 878)

 6 

 (5 272)

	5	734	

	(55)

	(350)

	5	329	

	271	

	5	600	

9

9

9

24

Accumulated Surplus

Balance	at	01	April

Prior	period	error	-	rounding	of	balances

Prior	year	adjustment	-	operating	leases

Restated	balance	as	at	01	April

Net	(deficit)/surplus	for	the	year	-	restated	(Refer	to	note)

Prior	year	adjustment	-	rounding	of	balances

Balance	at	31	March

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Variance

R’000

Final Budget
2010/11

R’000

Outcome as 
% of Final 

Budget

Actual Outcome
2010/11

R’000

Revenue

Grants and transfers

Other	income

Project	transfers

Total revenue

Expenses

Administrative	expenses

Staff	costs

Marketing	expenses

Tourism	development	expenses

Other	operating	expenses

SARS	write-off

Provision	for	VAT	claimable

Depreciation	and	amortisation

Project	expenditure

Total expenses

(Deficit)/surplus 

 

	–			

	4	313	

	–			

 4 579 

 (124)	

	1	194	

	5	259	

	369	

	3	402	

	2	153	

	3	290	

	(352)	

	–			

 15 191 

 –   

	71	444	

 555 

	24	325	

 96 324 

 5	029	

	21	441	

	39	746	

	2	657	

	1	985	

	–			

	–			

	1	141	

	24	325	

 96 324 

 –   

 

0%

777%

0%

5%

-2%

6%

13%

14%

171%

100%

100%

-31%

0%

16%

 –   

 

 71	444	

 4 868 

	24	325	

 100 637 

 4	905	

	22	635	

	45	005	

	3	026	

	5	387	

	2	153	

	3	290	

 789 

	24	325	

 111 515 

 (10 878) 

Comparison of Actual Expenditure to Budget 
For the year ended 31 March 2011
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

71 444

 58 

 4 648 

 162 

 4 868 

 511 

 1 278 

 575 

 2 410 

 2 201

 209 

 105 

 26 

 4 905 

20 510

12

2 113

22 635

57

31 477

9 457

4 071

45 005

70	012

	383	

	2	081	

	208	

	2	672	

	319	

	810	

 474 

	2	390	

	2	047	

	343	

	181	

	(19)	

	4	155	

16	822

157

1	824

18	803

57

30	311

3	980

4 767

39	058

1. Grants and Transfers

Provincial	Department	of	Economic	Development	&	Tourism

2. Other Income

Interest	income

Sundry	income

Registration	levies

Total

3. Administrative Expenses

General	and	administratives	expenses

Auditor’s remuneration

 - Audit fees 

Travel and subsistence

Rentals	in	respect	of	operating	leases

 - Buildings

	-	Plant,	machinery	and	equipment

Directors’	emoluments

Net	foreign	exchange	losses/(gains)

Total

4. Staff Costs

Basic salaries

Temporary

Defined	provident	fund	contribution	plan	expenses

Total

Total	number	of	employees	as	at	31	March	2011

5. Marketing Expenses

Marketing	activities

Image	building

Research	and	information	services

Total

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

1 053

1 609

168

196

3 026

800

198

110

84

84

23

4 172

5 387

1	143

1	600

144

463

3	350

719

454

81

102

102

35

4	862

6	253

6. Tourism Development Expenses

Project	management	unit

Tourism investment promotion

Small	business	support

Tourism awareness campaigns

Total

7. Other Operating Expenses

Staff	training	and	development

Consultants, contractors and special services

Legal fees

Maintenance,	repairs	and	running	costs

	-	Property	and	buildings

Entertainment	expenses

Other

Total

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
continued
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Net 
Carrying 

Value

Net 
Carrying 

Value

Net 
Carrying 

Value

Closing

Closing

Closing

Disposal

Disposal

Disposal

Depreciaton

Amortisation

Depreciaton Adjustment

Opening

Opening

Opening

Closing

Closing

Closing

Disposal	

Disposal	

Disposal	

Additions

Additions

Additions

Opening

Opening

Opening

 829 

 89 

 829 

 624 

 2 371 

 65 

 65 

-   

 

158	

	158

 798 

 87 

 866 

	825	

	158	

 

(158)

	2	576	

 971 

 200 

 1 532 

 539 

 3 242 

 55 

 55 

-   

	2	792	

	2	792

	829	

	187	

	1	341	

	1	747	

	2	792	

(2	792)	

	4	104	

 15 

 25 

 -   

 1 518 

 1 558 

 2 830 

 2 830 

-   

 -   

 -  

  -   

 85 

 -   

	13	

 -   

 -   

 98 

  157 

 38 

 191 

 310 

 696 

 93 

 93 

-   

	882	

	882

			144	

	27	

	234	

	252	

 

882	

	(882)

 657 

		238	

	36	

	278	

	193	

 -   

 -   

 745 

 829 

 187 

 1 341 

 1 747 

 4 104 

 2 792 

 2 792 

-   

 

1	910	

	1	910

		923	

	281	

	1	385	

	1	701	

	1	910	

(1	910)

	4	290	

 1 800 

 289 

 2 361 

 1 163 

 5 613 

 120 

 120 

-   

 

2	950	

	2	950

	1	627	

	274	

	2	207	

	2	572	

 

2	950	

(2	950)	

	6	680	

 15 

 25 

 -   

 1 518 

 1 558 

 2 830 

 2 830 

-   

 -   

 -  

 -   

 85 

 -   

	13	

 -   

 -   

 98 

 188 

 40 

 154 

 109 

 491 

 -   

 -   

-   

 -   

 -  

		179	

	14	

 -   

	321	

 -   

 -   

	514	

 1 627 

 274 

 2 207 

 2 572 

 6 680 

 2 950 

 2 950 

-   

 

2	950	

	2	950

	1	448	

	345	

	2	207	

	2	264	

 

2	950	

(2	950)

	6	264	

8. Property, plant and 

equipment

2011

Office	furniture

Office	equipment

Office	fittings	&	alterations

Computer hardware

Total

8A. Intangible Assets

 

2011

 

Computer software

Total

2010

As previously reported

Computer software - transfer 

from	property,	plant	&	

equipment	(Refer	Note	8)

Total

2010

Office	furniture

Office	equipment

Office	fittings	&	alterations

Computer hardware

Computer software as 

previously reported

Transferred to intangible 

assets	(Refer	note	8A)

Total 

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation

Gross Carrying  Value

Gross Carrying  Value

Gross Carrying  Value
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

9. Reserves

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Net surplus for the year
Adjustment
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year
 
10. Receivables
Receivables
Less:		Provision	for	impairment

SARS	-	VAT
Less:		Provision	for	impairment

Staff	advances
Other
Pre-paid	lease	debtor
Rental	deposits
Total

The provision for impairment has been determined by reference to the 
Authority’s	policy	of	management	of	debts,	past	default	experience	and	the	
current	economic	environment.	The	Authority	is	confident	that	the	balance	in	
respect	of	VAT	will	be	recovered	from	SARS.	(A	contingent	liability	has	been	
raised	to	be	prudent,	refer	to	note	17).	
 
The	Authority	considers	the	carrying	amount	of	receivables	approximates	to	
their	fair	value.	An	amount	of	R2,153m	has	been	written-off	the	SARS	-	VAT	
debtor as the amounts are deemed non-recoverable. 
 
The	provision	for	impairment	of	the	SARS	-	VAT	debtor	is	based	on	a	statement	
obtained	from	SARS.	

11. Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash	at	bank
Cash on hand
Short-term	investments
Projects	funds
Total

Cash	and	cash	equivalents	comprise	cash	and	short-term,	highly	liquid	
investments	that	are	held	with	registered	banking	institutions	with	maturities	of	
three	months	or	less	and	that	are	subject	to	insignificant	interest	rate	risk.	The	
carrying	amount	of	these	assets	approximates	to	their	fair	value.	 	

5 600
(10 878)

6
 (5 272)

3 570
(2 537)
1 033
6 502
(3 290)
4 245

31
218
111
245

4 850

2 935
5

122
5 247
8 309 

5 679
271
(350)

5	600

3	227
(2	138)
1	089
4	526

-
5	615

31
-
-

245
5	891

9	061
5

7 679
4	127

20	872

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
continued
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

146

	(635)	

680

191

1	060

	(872)	

934

1	122

4 992

 189

2 172

-

82

12 119

19 554

5 247

6 872

12 119

1 206

(1 507)

1 614

1 313

8	710

319

1	417

1	478

-

10	767

22	691

4	127

6	640

10	767

12. Provisions

Opening	balance	01	April	2010

Utilisation of provision during the year

Provisions	made	during	the	year

Closing	balance	31	March	2011

The leave pay and bonus provision relates to the Authority’s 

estimated liabilities arising as a result of services rendered by 

employees.  

13. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables

SARS	-	PAYE

Accruals

Other

Accrued lease liability

Projects	funds

Total

The Authority considers that the carrying amount of trade and 

other	payables	approximates	to	their	fair	value.

13.1		Projects	Funds

Made up as follows:

Project	funds	bank	accounts

Cash	in	the	Authority’s	bank	accounts

Total 

A	separate	project	bank	account	is	only	opened	when	the	

agreement	so	requires.	In	other	cases	project	funds	are	

deposited	into	the	main	bank	account,	with	a	project	liability	

being	opened	so	as	to	monitor	project	expendiutre.	Towards	

the	end	of	the	2010/11	financial	year,	the	Authority	experienced	

cash	flow	challenges	due	to	the	delayed	VAT	refunds.	The	

situation	has	normalised	and	project	expenses	will	be	paid	in	the	

normal	course	of	business.	Refer	to	Notes	23	and	17.	 	

 

Total

R’000

Provision	for
annual

bonuses
R’000

Provision	for
leave

pay
R’000

Notes

13.1

23
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

14. Reconciliation of (Deficit)/Surplus to Cash

Generated from Operations 

Net	(deficit)/surplus	for	the	year

Adjusted for:

	-	Depreciation

 - Amortisation

	-	Prior	period	adjustments

	-	SARS	write-off

	-	Depreciation	adjustment

	-	Straight-lining	of	leases

	-	Interest	received

Operating	cash	flows	before	working	capital	changes

Working	capital	changes

	-	Increase	in	receivables

	-	(Decrease)/increase	in	payables

	-	Increase	in	projects	funds

Cash	generated	from/(utilised	in)	operations

(10 878)

 696 

 93 

 -   

 2 153 

 -   

 (30)

 (58)

 (8 024)

(1 041)

 (4 412)

 1 352 

 (12 125)

271

 657 

	882	

	692	

 -   

	(745)

 -   

	(383)

	1	374	

(1	602)

	8	728	

	3	080	

	11	580

15. Employee Benefits

15.1		Short-term	employee	benefits

The	cost	of	short-term	employee	benefits	is	expensed	in	the	income	statement	in	the	reporting	period	when	

the	payment	is	made.	Short-term	employee	benefits	that	give	rise	to	a	present	legal	or	constructive	obligation	

is	deferred	until	they	can	be	reliably	measured	and	then	expensed.	Details	of	these	benefits	and	potential	

liabilities	are	disclosed	in	the	financial	statements	and	are	not	recognised	in	the	income	statement.

15.2		Termination	benefits

Termination	benefits	are	recognised	and	expensed	as	and	when	the	payment	is	made.

15.3		Retirement	benefits

The	KwaZulu-Natal	Tourism	Authority	contributes	to	the	Old	Mutual	Orion	Provident	Fund.	Membership	is	

complusory	for	all	permanent	employees.	The	fund	is	a	Defined	Contribution	Fund.	The	Authority	contributes	

15%	of	the	pensionable	remuneration.	The	employees	do	not	contribute	to	this	fund.	The	Authority’s	

contribution	to	the	fund	was	R2	112	520	(2010:	R1	823	782).	None	of	the	members	of	the	Board	are	

members of the Fund.   

 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011
continued
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15.4		Medical	benefits	 	 	

The	KwaZulu-Natal	Tourism	Authority	provides	medical	benefits	for	its	employees	through	Discovery	Health	

Benefit	Plans.	These	benefits	are	funded	by	employee	contributions	since	the	Authority	works	on	the	total	

cost	of	employment.	No	provision	is	made	for	medical	benefits	in	the	financial	statements	of	the	Authority.	

  

16. Board Members’ Emoluments and Executive

Management Remuneration

Board members’ Emoluments 

Ms	T	Dlamini	(Chairperson	of	the	Board)

Dr	SV	Chonco

Ms	N	Kheswa

Ms	S	Maharaj

Mr	S	Mshengu

Mr	S	Naidoo

Ms	NZ	Qunta

Mr	K	Pretorius

Ms	N	Freysen-Pretorius

Total

Total
R’000

Other	
R’000

Fees for 
Services	
R’000

24	259

3	216

5 968

7	533

9	085

20	448

13	123

13	235

8 498

105 365

4	360

 -

1	948

248

1	447

6	780

3	676

9	215

1	061

28 735

19	899

3	216

4	020

7	285

7	638

13	668

9 447

4	020

7	437

76 630

Executive Management Remuneration

Designation 

Chief	Executive	Officer	(1	April	2010	to	31	March	2011)

Chief	Operating	Officer	(1	April	2010	to	31	March	2011)

Chief	Financial	Officer	(1	April	2010	to	31	March	2011)

Total

Total
Remuneration

Provident	
Fund	&	

Medical	Aid

Performance-	
Related

Pay

Basic 
Salary

1	160	551

967 789

743	516

2 871 856

164	969

132	747

84	772

382 488

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

995	582

835	042

658 744

2 489 368

17. Contingent Liabilities

The	Authority	is	currently	in	discussion	with	SARS	

regarding	input	VAT	claimed	in	prior	years	(refer	

to	note	10).	The	outcome	of	these	discussions	is	

uncertain	and	thus	cannot	be	quantified.	

2011
R’000

2010
R’000

- -
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

1 857 

 2 264 

 -   

 4 121 

 140 

 187 

 327 

 47 

 97 

 144

5 247 293

2	876	

	3	640	

 -   

	6	516	

 69 

 -   

 69 

	35	

	107	

	142

-  

18. Operating lease agreements

Authority as Lessee

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding 

commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall 

due as follows: 

 

Not	later	than	1	year	

Later	than	1	year	and	not	later	than	5	years	

Later than 5 years 

Total 

 

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding lease 

commitments	in	respect	of	office	equipment	which	falls	due	as	

follows: 

 

Up	to	1	year	

1	to	5	years	

Total 

 

All	the	above	lease	agreements	in	respect	of	equipment	are	

not renewable at the end of the lease term and the Authority 

does	not	have	the	option	to	acquire	the	equipment.	These	lease	

agreements do not impose any restrictions. 

 

Authority as Lessor 

At the balance sheet date the Authority had contracted with sub-

tenants for the following minimum future lease payments: 

Up	to	1	year	

1	to	5	years	

Total 

19. Capital Commitments

Commitments	in	respect	of	Projects	to	be	finalised:

IsiBhubhu
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

71 444 000

7 318 600

78 762 600

250 000

250 000

20. Subsequent Events

There	were	no	material	events	that	occurred	subsequent	to	the	

reporting period.

21. Related Party Transactions

Related	party	transactions	were	entered	into	with	the	Department	

of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism	and	Trade	&	Investment	

KwaZulu-Natal. 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism  

Grant

The transactions refer to a partnership with Tourism KwaZulu-

Natal	for	the	Annual	Indaba	Event	

Total	as	at	31	March	2011	

  

  

Trade & Investment KwaZulu-Natal

The transactions resulted from joint agreements of events to 

benefit	both	organisations	

Balance	owing	as	at	31	March	2011	

  

The	debt	is	not	secured.	The	debt	was	settled	by	30	April	2011.	

22. Financial Instruments

In	the	course	of	the	Authority’s	business	operations	it	is	exposed	to	currency,	credit	and	liquidity	risk.

The	Authority	has	developed	a	comprehensive	risk	management	process	to	monitor	and	control	these	risks.	

The	risk	management	process	relating	to	each	of	these	risks	is	discussed	under	the	relevant	heading	below.

Currency Risk

The	Authority	undertakes	certain	transactions	denominated	in	foreign	currencies,	hence	exposures	to	

exchange	rate	fluctuations.	However,	due	to	the	relatively	small	number	of	transactions,	the	Authority	

does	not	take	any	forward	foreign	exchange	contracts.	Financial	assets	and	liabilities	that	are	denominated	

in foreign currencies as at year-end are translated using the spot rate at year-end. The volume of foreign 

transactions	is	small	and	is	not	expected	to	have	a	material	effect	on	the	Annual	Financial	Statements.

Credit Risk

Financial	assets,	which	potentially	subject	the	Authority	to	the	risk	of	non-performance	by	counter-parties

and	thereby	subject	the	Authority	to	concentrations	of	credit	risk,	consist	mainly	of	cash	and	cash	

equivalents	and	trade	receivables.
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1 year 
or Less

R’000
Total

R’000

8 309

4 850

13 159

19 554

19 554

(6 395)

100,0%

8	309

4	850

13	159

19	554

19	554

(6	395)

100,0%

Year ended 31 March 2011

Assets

Cash

Receivables

Total	financial	assets

Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total	financial	liabilities

Variance

Percentages	(%)

Fair values

The	Authority’s	financial	instruments	consist	mainly	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents,	trade	receivables	and	

trade payables.   

The	Authority	limits	its	treasury	counter-party	exposure	by	only	dealing	with	well-established	financial	

institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The Authority does not 

expect	any	treasury	counter-parties	to	fail	to	meet	their	obligations,	given	their	high	credit	rating.

Credit	risk	with	respect	to	trade	receivables	is	limited	due	to	the	large	number	of	debtors	comprising	the	

Authority’s debtors base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical areas. The

Authority	does	not	have	any	significant	exposure	to	any	individual	debtor	or	counter-party.	Accordingly,

the	Authority	does	not	consider	there	to	be	any	significant	concentration	of	credit	risk,	which	had	not	been

adequately	provided	for.	Trade	receivables	are	presented	net	of	the	allowance	for	impairment.

Liquidity risk

The	Authority	manages	liquidity	risk	through	proper	management	of	working	capital,	capital	expenditure	and	

actual	versus	forecasted	cashflows.	Adequate	reserves	and	liquid	resource	facilities	are	also	maintained.

Maturity profile

The	maturity	profiles	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities	at	balance	sheet	date	are	as	follows:	 	
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No	financial	asset	was	carried	at	an	amount	in	excess	of	its	fair	value	and	fair	values	could	be	reliably	

measured	for	all	financial	assets	that	are	available-for-sale	or	held-for-trading.	 	 	

The	following	methods	and	assumptions	are	used	to	determine	the	fair	value	of	each	class	of	financial	

instruments:   

Cash and cash equivalents   

The	carrying	amount	of	cash	and	cash	equivalents	approximates	fair	value	due	to	the	relatively	short-term	

maturity	of	this	financial	asset.	 	 	

Trade receivables

The	carrying	amount	of	trade	receivables,	net	of	provision	for	impairment	approximates	fair	value	due	to	the	

relatively	short-term	maturity	of	this	financial	asset.

Trade payables

The	carrying	amount	of	trade	payables	approximates	fair	value	due	to	the	relatively	short-term	maturity	of	this

financial	liability.
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Accum 
Year	
2011

TransfersActual
Expenditure

Balance 
Sheet	Re-

Allocations

Govern-
ment 
Grant

Funding 
received

Other	
income

Interest	
received

Accum 
Year
2010

	9	892	

	79	132	

	2	166	940	

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

	5	247	292	

	4	615	652	

- 

12	118	908

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 

804	611	

	244	347	

 

63	259	

 - 

-

-

-

1	112	216

 

- 

	398	051	

-

	815	099	

 

87	719	

111	

	111	

	112	

92	556	

	8	970	393	

	2	884	348	

11	076	539

24	325	040

 

(398	052)	

(1	757	348)

(651	141)	

	565	135

	91	

	771	

 

8 947 

	2	232	277				

 -   

 -   

- 

680	

 - 

 - 

 - 

-

 

- 

-

-

 

-

- 

-

-

 -

- 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

	11	208	552	

	4	500	000	

9	597	615

25	306	167

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

- 

 - 

 

- 

-  

- 

-

 -

- 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 - 

 

- 

303	

92

 

27

-

3	735	

-

-

4	157

 

9	892	

	79	132	

	409	592	

	163	958	

 

652	854	

 

804	510	

	245	137	

 

72	290	

 

2	324	833	

	3	005	398	

	3	000	000	

1	478	924

12	246	520

Project Name

Anglo Boers

CEO’s	Projects

Community Tourism

Aviation	&	Charters

Brand	Roll-out	&	

Merchandising	

Programme

eMakhosini

Lilani	Phase	3

Tourism KZN

Signage

Ngome 

IsiBhubhu

KZN	Cultural	Village

Office	of	the	Premier

Total

A	separate	project	bank	account	is	only	opened	when	the	agreement	so	requires.	In	other	cases,	project	funds	are	deposited	into	the	

main	bank	account,	with	a	project	liability	being	opened	so	as	to	monitor	project	expendiutre.	Towards	the	end	of	the	2010/11	financial	

year,	the	Authority	experienced	cash	flow	challenges	due	to	delayed	VAT	refunds.	The	situation	has	normalised	and	project	expenses	

will	be	paid	in	the	normal	course	of	business.	Refer	to	Notes	23	and	17.	 	 	 	 	 	 	

   

23. Accumulated  project 

funds as at 31 March 2011 
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

 

9	630	

	(2	950)

 

6 680 

	7	641	

	(2	792)

	(745)

 4 104 

 -   

2	950

2 950

 -   

2	792

2 792

 

24. Prior Period Error 

24.1	 Being	the	restatement	of	the	property,	plant	and	equipment	

balances to correctly reflect the intangible assets and the review of the 

useful lives resulting in an adjustment to the accumulated depreciation: 

Property, plant and equipment - Cost 

Balance previously reported 

Transfer to intangible assets 

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

  

Property, plant and equipment - Accumulated Depreciation 

  

Balance previously reported 

Transfer to intangible assets 

Adjustment	of	the	useful	lives	of	property,	plant	and	equipment

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

  

Intangible assets - Cost 

Balance previously reported 

Transfer	from	property,	plant	and	equipment	

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

  

Intangible assets - Accumulated amortisation 

Balance previously reported 

Transfer	from	property,	plant	and	equipment	

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

24.2	 Being	the	reallocation	of	the	disallowed	VAT	for	prior	years	being	

correctly reflected and the review of the useful lives resulting in an 

adjustment to the accumulated depreciation: 

  

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 

Balance previously reported 

Disallowed	VAT	allocated	to	expenses	

Adjustment	of	the	useful	lives	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

  

Receivables 

Balance previously reported 

Rounding	error	from	2009	year	now	corrected	

Disallowed	VAT	allocated	to	expenses	

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

  

  

24.3	 Being	the	correction	of	a	prior	period	error	whereby	the	reserves	of	

R5,045m	was	rounded	off	incorrectly	as	R5,100m.	An	amount	of

R55	000	was	also	put	through	to	trade	and	other	receivables	to	balance	up	

this entry: 

  

Reserves 

Balance previously reported 

Rounding	error	from	2009	year	now	corrected	

Disallowed	VAT	allocated	to	expenses	

Adjustment - operating leases 

Adjustment	of	the	useful	lives	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	

  

Restated	balance	at	31	March	2010	

		218	

	(692)

 745 

 271 

	6	638	

	(55)

	(692)

 5 891 

	5	952	

	(55)

	(692)

	(350)

 745 

 5 600 
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2011
R’000

2010
R’000

(10 878)

 1 194 

 5 259 

 3 402 

 2 153 

 3 290 

 (107)

 (4 313)

 -   

378

227

605

271

	(463)

	(1	260)

	5	480	

 -   

 -   

	(3	495)

	(532)

 -   

220

158

378

25. Reconciliation of budget deficit with the deficit in the statement of 

financial performance 

Net	deficit	per	the	statement	of	financial	performance	

  

Adjusted for: 

  

Increase	in	staff	costs	

Increase	in	staff	costs	marketing	expenses	

Increase	in	other	operating	expenses	

SARS	write-off	

Provision	for	VAT	claimable	

Net savings other 

Increase	in	other	income	

Net	deficit	per	approved	budget	

  

Refer	to	page	116	for	a	comparison	of	actual	expenditure	to	budget	

26. Irregular expenditure 

  

Opening	balance	

Current	expenditure	

Expenditure	ratified	by	Board	

Closing balance 

  

The use of a sole service provider for specialised printing services for board and committee documents 

was	requested	and	approved	by	the	Chief	Executive	Officer	in	2007.	This	authority	has	since	lapsed	and	no	

subsequent	approval	was	obtained.	Renewal	of	the	authority	will	be	obtained	in	the	next	finanical	year	as	per	

supply chain management regulations.  
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AMG     

Advance	Management	Group

APTA     

Association	for	Promotion	of	Tourism	to	Africa

BARSA      

Board	of	Airline	Representatives	of	South	Africa

BEE     

Black	Economic	Empowerment

BOTG      

Best of Travel Group

CB     

Convention Bureau

DEDT     

Department	of	Economic	Development	and	Tourism	

DM     

District	Municipality

EIA     

Environmental	Impact	Assessment

ETEYA      

Emerging	Entrepreneur	of	the	Year	Award	

FEDHASA    

Federated	Hospitality	Association	of	South	Africa

FIFA     

Federation	International	Football	Association

GSA     

General	Sales	Agency

HDI     

Historically	Disadvantaged	Individuals

ICC     

International	Convention	Centre

IT     

Information	Technology

IT     

Incentives	Travel

ITB     

International	Tourism	Bourse

JMA     

Joint	Marketing	Agreement

KSIA     

King	Shaka	International	Airport

KZN     

KwaZulu-Natal 

ME     

Meeting	&	Exhibition	

MEC     

Member	of	Executive	Council

MICE     

Meetings	Incentives	Conferences	and	Exhibition

NDT     

National	Department	of	Tourism	

SA     

South	Africa	

SACCI     

Southern	 African	 Association	 for	 the	 Conference	

Industry

SAPS     

South	Africa	Police	Service

SAT     

South	African	Tourism

SATOA     

Southern	African	Tour	Operator	Association

SATSA      

Southern	Africa	Tourism	Services	Association

SITE     

Society	of	Incentive	Travel	Executives

SMME     

Small,	Medium	and	Micro	Enterprise

SWC     

Soccer	World	Cup

TEP     

Tourism	Enterprise	Partnership

TGCSA     

Tourism	Grading	Council	of	South	Africa	

TKZN     

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal 

TQGF     

Tourism	Quarterly	Growth	Forum

UK     

United Kingdom

UNWTO    

United	Nations	World	Tourism	Organisation

US/USA     

United	States	of	America

WWW     

What	Where	and	When

Acronyms
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Suite 303, Tourist Junction, 160 Monty Naicker Road, Durban, 4001, PO Box 2516, Durban, 4000, South Africa, Switchboard: +27 (0) 31 366 7500
Fax: +27 (0) 31 305 6693, Airport Office: +27 (0) 32 436 0013, V&A Cape Town Office: +27 (0) 21 418 1684, Gauteng Info Office: +27 (0) 11 883 7640

Customer Care: 0860 101 099, uShaka Marine World: +27 (0) 31 337 8099, Email: tkzn@iafrica.com, Website: www.zulu.org.za
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